
 

 

DESERT WATER AGENCY   BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
JUNE 20, 2017                                                                      REGULAR MEETING AGENDA                                            
 

REGULAR MEETING   8:00 A.M.   OPERATIONS CENTER - 1200 SOUTH GENE AUTRY TRAIL – PALM SPRINGS – CALIFORNIA 

About Desert Water Agency: 

Desert Water Agency operates independently of any other local government.  Its autonomous elected board members are directly accountable to the people they serve. The Agency is one of the desert’s 
two State Water Contractors and provides water and resource management, including recycling, for a 325-square-mile area of Western Riverside County, encompassing parts of Cathedral City, Desert 
Hot Springs, outlying Riverside County and Palm Springs. 

1. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. APPROVAL OF MINUTES –  June 6, 2017  CIOFFI                                            
                                 

3. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT   KRAUSE                                                       
                 
4. COMMITTEE REPORTS – A. Finance – June 9, 2017  STUART 

  B. Executive – June 14, 2017      CIOFFI  
 

5. PUBLIC INPUT:  
Members of the public may comment on any item not listed on the agenda, but within the jurisdiction of the Agency.  In addition, members of the public may 
speak on any item listed on the agenda as that item comes up for consideration.  Speakers are requested to keep their comments to no more than three (3) 
minutes.  As provided in the Brown Act, the Board is prohibited from acting on items not listed on the agenda.                                                                  

  

6. SECRETARY-TREASURER’S REPORT – MAY 2017  BLOOMER 
 

7. ITEMS FOR ACTION  
A. Request Adoption of Ordinances Establishing Governing Regulations  KRIEGER 

(1) Ordinance No. 66 Governing Water Service 
(2) Ordinance No. 67 Governing Recycled Water Service 
(3) Ordinance No. 68 Governing Sewer Service 

 

B. Request Adoption of Resolutions Amending Rates, Fees and Charges  KRIEGER 
(1) Resolution No. 1167 Establishing Rates, Fees & Charges for Water Service 
(2) Resolution No. 1168 Establishing Rates, Fees & Charges for Recycled Water Service 
(3) Resolution No. 1169 Establishing Rates, Fees & Charges for Sewer Service 

 

C. Request Adoption of Fiscal Year 2017/2018 Operating, General and Wastewater Budgets  KRIEGER 
 

D. Request Adoption of Resolution No. 1170 Establishing Tax Rate FY 2017/2018  KRIEGER 

 
E. Request Authorization to Execute Quitclaim Deed to City of Cathedral City  JOHNSON   

 
F. Request Board Authorization for General Manager to Execute Easement in Favor   JOHNSON 

of Cathedral City 
     

8. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION   

A. May Water Production Figures KRAUSE 
 

9. DIRECTORS COMMENTS AND REQUESTS 
 

10. CLOSED SESSION 
 A.  CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al 
 

 B. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
  Name of Case: Agua Caliente Band of Cahuilla Indians vs. County of Riverside, et al 
  
 
 



 
DWA Board Agenda 
June 20, 2017 
Page 2 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 C. CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL – EXISTING LITIGATION 
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1) 
   Name of Case: Mission Springs Water District vs. Desert Water Agency 
 

 D. CONFERENCE WITH REAL PROPERTY NEGOTIATORS     
  Pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8 
  Property: 0.504 acre west of Indian Canyon Drive between Racquet Club Rd. and Via Olivera 
  APN No. 504-260-026 and portions of APN No. 504-260-025 and 504-260-027 
  Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and Steven L. Johnson, Asst. General Manager 
  Negotiating Parties: DWA and Ayres Advisors 
  Under Negotiation: Price and terms 
  

11. RECONVENE INTO OPEN SESSION – REPORT FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 

12. ADJOURN 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

Upon request, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required by Section 202 of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990.  Any person with 
a disability who requires a modification or accommodation in order to participate in a meeting is asked to contact Desert Water Agency’s Executive Secretary, at (760) 323-4971, at least 48 working hours 
prior to the meeting to enable the Agency to make reasonable arrangements.  Copies of records provided to Board members which relate to any agenda item to be discussed in open session may be 
obtained from the Agency at the address indicated on the agenda. 



       8810 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 06/06/17 

 
   MINUTES    

OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
June 6, 2017 

 
DWA Board: James Cioffi, President  ) 
 Joseph K. Stuart, Vice President   )         
 Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer ) 
 Patricia G. Oygar, Director ) 
 Craig A. Ewing, Director ) 
   
DWA Staff: Mark S. Krause, General Manager ) 
 Steve Johnson, Asst. General Manager ) 
 Martin S. Krieger, Finance Director ) 
 Sylvia Baca, Asst. Secretary of the Board ) 
 Irene Gaudinez, Human Resources Mgr. ) 
 Ashley Metzger, Outreach & Conserv. Mgr. ) 
    
Consultant: Michael T. Riddell, Best Best & Krieger ) 
    
Public: David Freedman, P.S. Sustainability Comm. ) 
 William Johnson, Palm Springs resident ) 
   
   

Attendance 

17837.  President Cioffi opened the meeting at 8:00 a.m. and asked 
everyone to join Vice President Stuart in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
  
17838.   President Cioffi called for approval of the May 16, 2017 
Regular Board meeting minutes.  
 
  Vice President Stuart moved for approval. After a second by 
Director Ewing, the minutes were approved as written (Secretary-Treasurer 
Bloomer abstained due to her absence). 
 
17839.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
provide an update on Agency operations. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on May 13 at approximately 5:20 p.m. stand-
by personnel responded to a report of a hit fire hydrant at the corner of 
Waverly Dr. and Golf Club Dr. Staff replaced the bolts, gasket and put the 
hydrant back in service. A police report was made and the water loss was 
estimated for a fully open 6-inch fire hydrant riser, which ran for 
approximately 30 minutes. 

Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 
 
Approval of 05/16/17 
Regular Board Mtg. 
Minutes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Manager’s 
Report 
 
 
 
Hit Fire Hydrant-
Waverly Dr. & Golf 
Club Dr. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2 



       8811 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 06/06/17 

   Mr. Krause stated for the month of May, approximately 39,000 
acre-feet of water was delivered to the basin and the Whitewater Hydro 
generated approximately 761,400 kWh. The plant went offline for 
approximately 7 hours on May 26 due to SCE problems associated with high 
winds. Staff anticipates collecting approximately $67,000 from SCE from the 
power produced. 
 
  Mr. Krause stated on Monday May 15, DWA met with CVWD 
and MWD in Riverside to discuss the current status of the Lake Perris Water 
Recovery project.  The briefing included discussion of agreements, costs, 
project schedule, CEQA, funding, project water yield, water rights and 
hydrogeology studies. A funding agreement between MWD and DWR has 
been finalized and will soon be executed.  It is an agreement for the funding 
of environmental analysis, planning, and preliminary design.  The agreement 
states that the project will recover all seeped water and deliver it to MWD in 
addition to its current Table A water.  The agreement states “MWD shall 
offer in writing to DWA and CVWD the opportunity to share this recovered 
water proportional to our relative maximum annual Table A amounts of Lake 
Perris”.  If DWA and/or CVWD decide to participate in this Project, MWD, 
DWA, and/or CVWD will need to execute additional funding agreements.  
DWA and CVWD have expressed their desire to see the findings of DWR’s 
hydrologic study first before making the final decision to participate.  
Overall, DWR and MWD costs incurred for planning, design and 
construction are estimated between 25 to 27 million dollars. It is anticipated 
that DWR will issue Water System Revenue Bonds that will be recovered 
through MWD, DWA and CVWD’s Statement of Charges. $7,250,000 is 
currently being billed to MWD in their statement of charges. DWR will serve 
as the Lead Agency for the Project under CEQA, and MWD shall serve as a 
Responsible Agency. 
 
  Continuing his report, Mr. Krause stated that significant 
progress has been made in the environmental review and approval of the 
California WaterFix project.  A final decision is expected in late spring or 
early summer this year.  This has made the State Water Contractors effort to 
resolve the method of cost of allocation all the more imperative.  Significant 
progress has been made in this area; however, more detailed analysis is 
necessary. It is anticipated that DWA staff will present a series of white 
papers to the Board prepared by the State Water Contractors (Based on papers 
prepared by MWD).  The papers will be presented this summer and fall.  The 
papers will explain the physical infrastructure, the benefits and reasons for 
improving and modernizing the system; the operations and the water supply 
yield; and the cost allocation amongst the contractors and finance. 
  
  Concluding his report, Mr. Krause noted the current system 
leak data, developer projects; and meetings and activities he participated on 
during the past several weeks. 
   
 

GM’s Report 
(Cont.) 
 
Whitewater Deliveries 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Lake Perris Water 
Recovery Project 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
California WaterFix 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
System Leak Data, 
Developer Projects & 
General Manager’s 
Meetings & Activities 
 
 
 
 



       8812 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 06/06/17 

17840.  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the May 30, 2017 
Executive Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the May 30, 2017 
Conservation & Public Affairs Committee were provided in the Board’s 
packet. 
 
  President Cioffi noted the minutes for the June 1, 2017 Finance 
Committee were provided in the Board’s packet. 
 
17841.  President Cioffi opened the meeting for public input. 
   
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board, President Cioffi closed the public comment period.  
 
17842.  President Cioffi called upon Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer to 
provide an overview of financial activities for the month of April 2017. 
 
  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer reported that the Operating Fund 
received $1,500,392 in Water Sales Revenue and $90,165 in Reclamation 
Sales Revenue. $70,026 was included in Miscellaneous Receipts 
(ACWA/JPIA premium refunds). $2,131,822 was paid out in Accounts 
Payable. Year-to-date Water Sales are 11% over budget, Year-to-date Total 
Revenues are 10% over budget and Year-to-date Total Expenses are 17% 
under budget. There were 22,398 active services as of April 30, 2017 
compared to 22,356 as of March 31, 2017. 
 
  Reporting on the General Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$1,550,354 was received in Property Tax Revenue. $721,930 was received 
in Groundwater Assessments ($547,571 from the Operating Fund & 
$174,359 from Private Pumpers). $384,830 was received in State Water 
Project Refunds. $18,796 was received in Whitewater Hydro Power Sales for 
March 2017. $2,602,679 was paid out in State Water Project charges. 
 
  Regarding the Wastewater Fund, Ms. Bloomer stated that 
$61,856 was received in Sewer Capacity charges. There are a total of 63 
contracts (46 Cathedral City Cove and 17 Dream Homes). Three contracts 
were paid in full with total delinquents of 24 (38%). $66,898 was paid out in 
Accounts Payable. 
 
17843.  President Cioffi called upon General Manager Krause to 
present staff’s request for adoption of Resolution No’s. 1161, 1163 and 1165 
Making Findings of Fact Relevant and Material to the Levy of a 
Replenishment Assessment and Levying a Replenishment Assessment for 
Fiscal Year 2017/2018 and Resolution No’s. 1162, 1164 and 1166 Levying 
a Water Replenishment Assessment for Fiscal Year 2017/2018 for the 
Whitewater River, Mission Creek and Garnet Hill Subbasins. 

Committee Reports 
Executive 05/30/17 
 
 
Conservation & Public 
Affairs 05/30/17 
 
 
 
 
Finance 06/01/17 
 
 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Secretary-Treasurer’s 
Report (April 2017) 
 
 
Operating Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
General Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Wastewater Fund 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Items for Action: 
Public Hearings 
2017/18 Whitewater 
River Subbasin GW 
Replenishment 
Assessment 
 
 
 
 
 



       8813 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 06/06/17 

  General Manager Krause stated at the May 16 meeting, a 
determination was made that funds should be raised by a replenishment 
assessment and the Board set today for a public hearing on the matter. The 
proposed assessment for the Whitewater River Subbasin will be set at $120 
per acre-foot. Notices of the public meeting and today’s public hearing were 
sent to all pumpers on May 16, 2017 and published in The Public Record on 
May 9, 2017. He noted the revisions to pages III-3, Section E. Staff 
recommends adoption of Resolution No. 1161 and 1162. 
   
  In response to President Cioffi, General Manager Krause stated 
$38 per acre-foot is currently being suppressed.  
 
  President Cioffi declared the public hearing open at 8:29 a.m. 
for the Whitewater River Subbasin Groundwater Assessment. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board and no written comments regarding the proposed assessment, 
President Cioffi closed the public hearing at 8:30 a.m.  
 
  Vice President Stuart moved to adopt Resolution No’s. 1161 
and 1162. Director Ewing seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1161 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY MAKING FINDINGS 
OF FACT RELEVANT AND MATERIAL TO THE LEVY 

OF A REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT  
PURSUANT TO DESERT WATER AGENCY LAW 

(WHITEWATER RIVER) 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1162 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

OF DESERT WATER AGENCY LEVYING A WATER 
REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT FOR THE FISCAL 

YEAR 2017-2018 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REPLENISHING GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES 

(WHITEWATER RIVER) 
 
17844.  President Cioffi declared the public hearing open at 8:32 a.m. 
for the Mission Creek Subbasin Groundwater Assessment. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board and no written comments regarding the proposed assessment, 
President Cioffi closed the public hearing at 8:33 a.m.  
  
 
 

Items for Action: 
(Cont.) 
Public Hearing: 
2017/2018 Whitewater 
River Subbasin 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2017/18 Mission Creek 
GW Replenish 
Open Public Hearing 
 
 
 
Close Public Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8814 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 06/06/17 

  Director Ewing moved to adopt Resolution No’s. 1163 and 
1164. President Cioffi seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1163 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DESERT WATER AGENCY MAKING FINDINGS OF FACT 
RELEVANT AND MATERIAL TO THE LEVY OF A 

REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT PURSUANT 
TO DESERT WATER AGENCY LAW 

(MISSION CREEK) 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1164 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DESERT WATER AGENCY LEVYING A WATER 
REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REPLENISHING GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES 

(MISSION CREEK) 
 
17845.  President Cioffi declared the public hearing open at 8:34 a.m. 
for the Garnet Hill Subbasin Replenishment Assessment. 
 
  There being no one from the public wishing to address the 
Board and no written comments regarding the proposed assessment, 
President Cioffi closed the public hearing at 8:35 a.m.  
 
  Vice President Stuart moved to adopt Resolution No’s. 1165 
and 1166. Director Ewing seconded the motion, which passed unanimously. 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1165 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DESERT WATER AGENCY FINDINGS OF FACT  
RELEVANT AND MATERIAL TO THE LEVY OF A  

REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT PURSUANT 
TO DESERT WATER AGENCY LAW 

(GARNET HILL) 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 1166 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 

DESERT WATER AGENCY LEVYING A WATER 
REPLENISHMENT ASSESSMENT FOR THE 

FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
REPLENISHING GROUNDWATER SUPPLIES 

(GARNET HILL) 
 
   
   
 

Items for Action: 
(Cont.) 
Public Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2017/18 Garnet Hill 
GW Replenishment 
Assessments 
Open Public Hearing 
 
Close Public Hearing 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1165 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 1166 
Adopted 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8815 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 06/06/17 

17846.  President Cioffi asked Agency Counsel Riddell to provide a 
report on the May 18, 2017 Annual Membership meeting and Board of 
Directors meeting of the State Water Contractors. 
 
  Mr. Riddell provided a report on the following items: 1) 
Annual Membership Meeting, 2) Election of SWC Board Officers, 3) SWP 
Operations Report, 4) General Manager’s Report, and 5) Cal Water Fix 
Allocation Discussions. 
 
17847.  President Cioffi called upon Finance Director Krieger to 
present the draft proposed Operating, General and Wastewater Budgets for 
2017/2018. 
 
  Mr. Kreiger noted that copies of the draft budgets along with 
budget highlights were provided to the Board.  He stated that the Finance 
Committee will be meeting this week for their final review. He announced 
he was available to meet directly with any members of the Board who had 
questions. 
 
17848.  Secretary-Treasurer Bloomer stated she recently attended the 
CSDA Legislative Days in Sacramento. 
 
17849.  President Cioffi asked Assistant General Manager Johnson to 
present staff’s investigation into relocating the fire hydrant and sample 
station at 2380 E. Smokewood Ave. 
 
  Assistant General Manager Johnson stated as requested by the 
board at its last meeting, an investigation was conducted on the history of the 
fire hydrant and sample station located in front of the residence at 2380 E. 
Smokewood Ave. As part of the investigation, staff reviewed the damage and 
maintenance record and performed a field investigation. There were no 
damage invoices within the past ten years nor hit and run records for the 
location. Staff also reviewed maintenance records and noted the last 
maintenance was performed in December 2015 (hydrant painted). 
 
  Continuing his report, Assistant General Manager Johnson said 
that staff performed a site survey of the area and confirmed the facilities are 
located within the street right-of-way. Staff came up with two options to 
relocate the facilities: 1) Relocate to the south with a cost estimate of 
$16,000; and 2) Utilize existing facilities and install a 90 degree angle on the 
hydrant lateral and sample station piping and relocate facilities to the north 
of current position, with a cost estimate of $5,000. Based on the research and 
site evaluation, staff believes relocation is unwarranted and therefore 
financially prohibited. Staff recommends not relocating the facilities at the 
Agency’s expense. However, relocating the facilities at the customer’s 
expense is an acceptable option. 
   

Discussion Items: 
05/18/17 SWC Mtg. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Draft 2017/2018 
Operating, General and 
Wastewater Budgets 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Director’s Report on 
Conference/Seminar 
Attendance 
 
 
Fire Hydrant & Sample 
Station Relocation 
Request/2380 E. 
Smokewood Ave. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8816 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 06/06/17 

  President Cioffi invited Mr. Johnson, the homeowner, to speak 
on this item. 
 
  Mr. Johnson stated he purchased the property in 2000 and had 
some construction work performed in 2002. He stated that the concrete pads 
around the facilities were replaced 6 months ago. He explained the neighbor 
to the south has a large wall, which forces traffic to his property. 
 
  The Board concurred they were not supportive of using 
ratepayer money to relocate the services. 
 
  President Cioffi requested staff meet with Mr. Johnson and 
City staff regarding this since the location is within the right-of-way. 
 
17850.  President Cioffi noted that Board packets included Outreach & 
Conservation reports for May 2017. 
 
  Mrs. Metzger announced a workshop in Riverside later this 
month regarding AB401 and that a comment letter is due July 31 to ACWA. 
She also noted that the Agency’s 2016 Water Quality report is currently 
posted on the website. 
 
17851.   At 9:32 a.m., President Cioffi convened into Closed Session 
for the purpose of Conference with Legal Counsel, (A) Existing Litigation, 
pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Agua Caliente Band 
of Cahuilla Indians vs. Coachella Valley Water District, et al; (B) Existing 
Litigation, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), ACBCI 
vs. County of Riverside, et al; (C) Existing Litigation, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.9 (d) (1), Mission Springs Water District 
vs. Desert Water Agency; (D) Real Property Negotiators, pursuant to 
Government Code Section 54956.8, Property-0.504 acre west of Indian 
Canyon Drive between Racquet Club Rd. and Via Olivera, Agency 
Negotiators: Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager and 
Steven L. Johnson, Assistant General Manager, Negotiating Parties: DWA 
and Ayres Advisors, Under Negotiation: Price and terms; and (E) Real 
Property Negotiators, pursuant to Government Code Section 54956.8, 
Property: Conveyance of Property, APN No. 687-030-019 to City of 
Cathedral City and Conveyance of Easement APN No. 677-402-021 to City 
of Cathedral City, Agency Negotiators: Mark S. Krause, General Manager 
and Steven L. Johnson, Assistant General Manager, Negotiating Parties: 
DWA and City of Cathedral City, Under Negotiations: Terms. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Discussion Items: 
(Cont.) 
Fire Hydrant & Sample 
Station Relocation 
Request/2380 E. 
Smokewood Ave. 
 
Public Input 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Outreach & 
Conservation – May 
2017 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Closed Session: 
A. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. CVWD, et 
al.  
B. Existing Litigation – 
ACBCI vs. Riverside 
County 
C.  Existing Litigation – 
MSWD vs. DWA 
D. Real Property 
Negotiators (DWA & 
Ayres Advisors) 
E. Real Property 
Negotiators (DWA & 
City of Cathedral City) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



       8817 

Desert Water Agency Regular Board Meeting Minutes 06/06/17 

 
17852.  At 10:42 a.m., President Cioffi reconvened the meeting into 
open session and announced there was no reportable action. 
   
17853.  In the absence of any further business, President Cioffi 
adjourned the meeting at 10:43 a.m. 
 
 
                                           ____________________________________ 

                                    James Cioffi, President                                  
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 

 
Reconvene –No 
Reportable Action 
 
 
 
Adjournment 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 

 

 

 
GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT 

JUNE 20, 2017 
 

  
    
 

Mesquite Property Fence and Landscaping Project: 
 
As part of the purchase agreement for the Mesquite Property, the Agency agreed to install 
screening vegetation on a 6-foot-tall fence.  The Agency coordinated with Riverside County Flood 
Control, which owns and maintains the adjacent flood control channel, to repair an existing 6-foot-
tall fence.  A DWA construction crew then removed built-up sand around the fence and installed an 
irrigation connection for the screening vegetation.  The Agency also removed any vegetation that 
could be used, and was being used, as shelter for homeless individuals.  Down to Earth landscaping 
will install irrigation piping and plant Pyracantha which will be used as the screen vegetation. 
        

Photo 1: Fence, looking south, before project. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                                              Photo 2: Fence, looking north, before project. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Mesquite Fencing 
(Cont.) 
 

Photo 2: Fence, looking south, after fence repair and grading. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Photo 3: Fence, looking north, after grading. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



18” Snow Creek Emergency Pipeline Replacement: 
 
In March 2017, a series of leaks occurred on the 1950’s section of the Snow Creek Pipeline, 
adjacent to HWY 111, South of Mountain Gate Development. The leaks were due to the 
deterioration and age of the pipe. The Agency was forced to reduce the flow through the pipeline 
to prevent further pipe ruptures. Starting on June 5th, Agency construction crews began replacing 
approximately 2,300 lineal feet of the deteriorating pipe with a new 18” Ductile Iron Pipe. Work 
Order 14-196-18 with a budget of $230,000 will cover the cost of the pipe installation. The estimated 
cost for the project is $200,000 with $100,000 for labor and $100,000 for materials. Work is 
expected to take 8 weeks to complete.  
 

 Photo 5: Construction on the 18" DIP pipeline using an Excavator. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Photo 4: Large rocks encountered during construction 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
Whitewater Deliveries 
 
From June 1 through June 13, the Whitewater Hydro has generated approximately 290,825 kWH. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



STREET NAME QUARTER SECTION NUMBER OF LEAKS

CALLE SAN RAPHAEL 4519NW 7

PASEO EL MIRADOR 4411NW 5

HERMOSA PL 4410SE 5

SATURMINO DR 4413NW 4

COTTONWOOD RD 4411NW 4

SUNNY DUNES RD 4423NW 3

CHINO DR 4410SE 3

CHIA RD 4411NW 3

MISSION RD 4410SE 3

BROADMOOR DR 4529NW 2

LIVMOR AVE 4413NE 2

SATURMINO DR (N/O TAHQUITZ CYN WAY) 4413NW 2

ALEJO RD 4412SW 2

LINDA VISTA RD 4411NE 1

CAMINO NORTE 4410NE 1

RAMON RD 4519NW 1

SUNNY DUNES RD 4519NW 1

SANTA ROSA DR 4415SE 1

SARAH ST 4517SW 1

AVENIDA CABALLEROS 4411NW 1

DEL LAGO RD 4401NW 1

VIA SOLEDAD 4423SW 1

LOUELLA RD 4413NE 1

AVENIDA PALOS VERDES 4411SW 1

SAHARA RD 4401SW 1

SEPULVEDA RD 4403NE1 1

S PALM CANYON DR 4423SW 1

CAMINO REAL 4423NW 1

CAMINO SAN MIGUEL 4519NE 1

TOTAL LEAKS IN SYSTEM: 61

* Streets highlighted in blue are being replaced as part of the

2016/2017 Replacement Pipeline Project

* Streets highlighted in green are included as part of the

proposed list of streets for the 2017/2018 Replacement

Pipeline Project

SYSTEM LEAK DATA

(PERIOD BEGINNING MAY 31, 2017 THRU JUNE 8, 2017)































7-A (1-3) 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 20, 2017 

 
RE: REQUEST FOR ADOPTION OF ORDINANCE NO. 66, 67 & 68  
 FOR WATER SERVICE, RECYCLED WATER SERVICE & SEWER 

SERVICE 
 

Summary of Changes 

Attached are copies of the revised ordinances governing water, recycled water and sewer 
service. Some areas within the ordinances were modified to correct minor typos and 
inconsistencies. The ordinances also address the following issues: 

Late Fees 

Ordinance No. 66 introduces late fees. Currently, the Agency’s delinquent customers do 
not pay any late fees. Our staff spends a significant amount of time handling delinquent 
accounts prior to water shutoff including notification and collection phone calls and door 
tagging properties. Staff recommends the implementation of a late fee, currently set at 
$25 to reduce and cover the cost of staff time associated with delinquent accounts. Late 
fees will also help encourage on-time payments.  

 

 

 

 

 
Coachella Valley  

Water District 
Indio Water 
Authority 

Mission Springs  
Water District 

Late charge day 25, 40 33 33 
Late charge 
amount 1.5%, $25 10% 10% or $5 

 

  

  
Desert Water Agency 

Current 
Desert Water 

Agency Proposed 

Late charge day none 30 
Late charge 
amount none $25 



Shutoff Policy 

Desert Water Agency’s shutoff policy is also more lenient than any of the surrounding 
water agencies. Staff recommends tightening the shutoff period by 30 days. This will 
streamline staff time and help encourage customers to pay their bill promptly. Shortening 
the shutoff period will also mean a customer will not have incurred as much billing, which 
lessens the financial burden needed to restore water service. 

In addition to adjusting the duration of time for customers to make payments before 
shutoff, staff recommends that we increase the amount of the charge to restore water 
service outside of standard hours from $105 to $150. Standard hours would be Monday 
through Friday from 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. This would allow staff to turn service back on 
the same day within normal DWA business hours.  

Staff is also recommending that we only accept the fee after hours in cash due to 
discrepancies that can arise with other payment methods (example: returned checks, 
incorrect confirmation numbers, etc.).  

 

 

 

Returned Payments 

Language in the previous ordinances only spoke to fees being issued for returned checks, 
but did not address fees charged if electronic payments or auto-payments are 
returned/rejected. The language is being updated to refer to all payment methods.  

Recommendations 

Staff recommends that the Board approve Ordinance Nos. 66, 67, and 68 by a roll call 
vote.  

  
Desert Water Agency 

Current 
Desert Water 

Agency Proposed 

Shutoff day 75 (+48 hours) 45 (+48 hours)  



 
 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 66 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULATIONS GOVERNING 
WATER SERVICE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  July 1, 2017 



REGULATIONS GOVERNING WATER SERVICE 
 

 
 
  

SECTION  1 DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
  1-1 Agency Definitions ................................................................. 1 
  1-2 Other Definitions .................................................................... 3 
 
SECTION 2 AUTHORITY 
  
  2-1 General Authority ................................................................... 4 
  2-2 Revision of Fees and Charges ................................................. 4  
  2-3 Authority of Inspectors ........................................................... 4 
 
SECTION 3 WATER SERVICE 
 
  3-1 General Provisions .................................................................. 5 
  3-2 Agency Consent ...................................................................... 7 
  3-3 Unauthorized Connections ...................................................... 7 
  3-4 Damage to Agency Facilities .................................................. 8 
  3-5 Notification of Change of Ownership ..................................... 8 
  3-6 Access to Premises .................................................................. 8 
  3-7 Responsibility ......................................................................... 9 
  3-8 Ownership ............................................................................... 9 
  3-9 Maintenance and Replacements .............................................. 9 
 
SECTION 4 WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
  4-1 Applications ............................................................................ 10 
  4-2 Premises to be Served ............................................................. 10 
  4-3 Division of Property ................................................................ 10 
  4-4 Separate Service Connections ................................................. 10 
  4-5 Approval of Drawings ............................................................ 10 
  4-6 Licensed Contractors .............................................................. 10 
  4-7 Service Size ............................................................................. 10 
  4-8 Service Connection Location .................................................. 10 
  4-9 Cost of Installation .................................................................. 11 
  4-10 Appurtenances ........................................................................ 11  
  4-11 Plan Checking ......................................................................... 11 
  4-12 Inspection of Connections ...................................................... 11 
 
 
 
 
 



 II

SECTION  5 TEMPORARY SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
  5-1 General Provisions .................................................................. 12 
  5-2 Applications ............................................................................ 12 
  5-3 Duration .................................................................................. 12 
  5-4 Responsibility for Metered Connections ................................ 12 
  5-5 Meter Readings, Billings & Collections ................................. 12 
  5-6 Meter and Backflow Protection Device Deposits ................... 12 
  5-7 Meter and Backflow Protection Device Installation Charges . 12 
  5-8 Monthly Service Charges ........................................................ 12 
  5-9 Service from Fire Hydrants ..................................................... 12 
  5-10 Service from other than Fire Hydrants ................................... 13 
 
SECTION  6 MAIN EXTENSION 
 
  6-1 General Provisions .................................................................. 14 
  6-2 Types of Extensions ................................................................ 15 
  6-3 Inspection ................................................................................ 16 
  6-4 Plan Checking ......................................................................... 16 
  6-5 Design Review ........................................................................ 16 
  
SECTION 7 FEES AND CHARGES 
 
  7-1 Regular Service Connection and Meter Installations ............. 17 
  7-2 Service Size Larger than Two Inch Installations .................... 18 
  7-3 Service Relocations ................................................................. 18 
  7-4 Service Abandonments ........................................................... 18 
  7-5 Change in Meter Sizes ............................................................ 18 
  7-6 Connection Charges (Front Footage Charge) ......................... 18 
  7-7 Meter Test Deposits ................................................................ 19 
  7-8 Replacements .......................................................................... 19 
  7-9 Plan Check Fees ...................................................................... 19 
  7-10 Inspection Fees ....................................................................... 19 
  7-11 Design Review Fees ................................................................ 19 
  7-12 Temporary Service Connections ............................................. 19 
  7-13 Restoration of Service ............................................................. 19 
  7-14 Backflow Protection Device Installations ............................... 19 
  7-15 Development Review Charge ................................................. 19 
  7-16 Water Quality Sampling ......................................................... 19 
  7-17 Account Establishment Fee .................................................... 20  
 
SECTION  8 MONTHLY CHARGES 
 
  8-1 Metered Services ..................................................................... 21 
  8-2 Commercial Fire Protection Services ..................................... 21 
  8-3 Backflow Protection Devices .................................................. 21 
  8-4 Construction and Temporary Services .................................... 21 
  8-5 Late Payment Charge .............................................................. 21 
 



 III

SECTION 9 CREDIT POLICY 
 
  9-1 Establishing Credit .................................................................. 22 
  9-2 Amount of Deposit .................................................................. 22  
  9-3 Application of Deposit ............................................................ 22 
  
SECTION 10 DISCONTINUANCE AND RESTORATION OF SERVICE 
 
  10-1 Discontinuance of Service ...................................................... 23 
  10-2 Restoration of Service ............................................................. 23 
  
SECTION 11 METER READING, BILLING AND COLLECTION POLICY 
 
  11-1 Meter Reading and Billing ...................................................... 24 
  11-2 Meter Test at Customer's Request .......................................... 25 
  11-3 Adjustment of Bills for Meter Error ....................................... 25 
  
SECTION 12 PRIVATE FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
  12-1 General Provisions .................................................................. 27 
  12-2 Installation Charge .................................................................. 27 
  12-3 Conditions for Service ............................................................ 27 
  12-4 Penalties for Misuse ................................................................ 27 
 
SECTION  13 CROSS CONNECTIONS 
 
  13-1 General Provisions .................................................................. 28 
  13-2 Protection from Cross Connections and Backflow ................. 28 
  13-3 Installation and Maintenance of Devices ................................ 28 
  13-4 Discontinuance of Service ...................................................... 28 
  13-5 Testing Charges ...................................................................... 28 
  
SECTION  14 ENFORCEMENT 
 
  14-1 General Provisions .................................................................. 29 
  14-2 Violations ................................................................................ 29 
  14-3 Discontinuance of Service ...................................................... 29 
  14-4 Abatement ............................................................................... 29 
  
SECTION  15 SEVERABILITY 
  
  15-1 Severability of Regulations ..................................................... 30 
 
SECTION  16 ADOPTION 
 
  16-1 Effective Date ......................................................................... 31 
  16-2 Previous Ordinance Repealed ................................................. 31  
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 1

REGULATIONS GOVERNING WATER SERVICE 
 
SECTION 1 - DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
 
1-1 AGENCY DEFINITIONS:  Whenever the words defined in this section, or 

pronouns used in their stead, occur in these Rules and Regulations, they shall have 
the meanings here given: 

 
1-1.1 ACCOUNT ESTABLISHMENT FEE shall mean an administrative charge for 
 Agency services to establish an account in the new owner’s name. 
 
1-1.2 AGENCY shall mean the Desert Water Agency organized and operated pursuant 

to the provisions of the Desert Water Agency Law, Stats. 1961, Ch. 1069. 
 
1-1.3 APPLICANT shall mean an individual, partnership, corporation, or agency which 

is the owner of the premises for which water service is being applied. 
 
1-1.4 BACKUP FACILITY CHARGE shall mean a charge levied on a premises for the 

purpose of providing water service connection capacity in the Agency's overall 
water supply. 

 
1-1.5 BOARD shall mean the Board of Directors of the Desert Water Agency. 
 
1-1.6 COMMERCIAL FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE shall mean any un-metered 

service connection to a private on-site automatic fire system designed and intended 
for fire extinguishing. 

 
1-1.7 CONNECTION CHARGE (Front Footage Charge) shall mean a charge levied on 

any premises for the purpose of providing water service. 
 
1-1.8 CONTRACTOR shall mean any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, or 

association duly licensed to perform work by the State of California in connection 
with the installation of water facilities. 

 
1-1.9 CUSTOMER shall mean the owner of a premises receiving water service. 
 
1-1.10 DEVELOPER shall mean a person, firm, corporation, partnership, or association 

who proposes to develop real property, or who subdivides real property for 
purposes of development. 

 
1-1.11 GENERAL MANAGER shall mean the General Manager of the Desert Water 

Agency. 
 
1-1.12 INSTALLATION CHARGE shall mean a charge levied on any premises 

covering material, labor and equipment for installing water system facilities. 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 2

1-1.13 INTRACT or ONSITE shall mean that area which lies inside the peripheral 
boundary of a subdivided area and/or a developed area. 

 
1-1.14 LOCAL AGENCY shall mean a city, county, or city and county. 
 
1-1.15 LOT shall mean a parcel or that portion of a parcel of land which is delineated or 

described as a single integral unit of a subdivision or parcel map. 
 
1-1.16 MAIN or WATER MAIN shall mean a water pipeline and appurtenances 

controlled by the Agency and located in a street, alley, easement, thoroughfare, or 
right-of-way which is used to serve connections for individuals, premises, 
customers, and the general public. 

 
1-1.17 MAIN EXTENSION shall mean the installation of any Agency water main and 

appurtenances either Intract or Offtract beyond the existing water system. 
 
1-1.18 MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE shall mean a charge levied on any premises 

for the purpose of covering costs for operating, maintaining and replacing the 
facilities, providing water service, and for billing, collection, and administrative 
costs. 

 
1-1.19 OFFTRACT or OFFSITE shall mean that area which lies outside the peripheral 

boundary of a subdivided area and/or a developed area. 
 
1-1.20 PERSON shall mean any individual, firm, corporation, company, political 

subdivision, city, county, district, the State of California, or the United States of 
America, or any department or agency thereof.  The singular shall in each case 
include the plural. 

 
1-1.21 PREMISES shall mean any lot, or property, or any building or other structure. 
 
1-1.22 PRIVATE PLUMBING shall mean the customer's pipeline and appurtenances 

extending from a point designated by the Agency, or at the point of connection to 
the Agency’s meter to the customer's house, building, or structure which receives 
water. 

 
1-1.23 REGULATIONS shall mean the current edition of, and any amendments or 

revisions to, the Agency's Regulations Governing Water Service. 
 
1-1.24 REPLACEMENT CHARGE shall mean a charge on any premises covering 

material, labor and equipment for replacing a service connection or portions thereof 
including, but not limited to, meter boxes, valve covers, extensions, and valve lids. 

 
1-1.25 RESIDENTIAL FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE shall mean any metered 

service connection to a private on-site automatic fire sprinkler system designed and 
intended for fire suppression. 

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 3

1-1.26 SERVICE AREA shall mean that area for which the Agency provides water 
service. 

 
1-1.27 SERVICE CONNECTION shall mean that service piping between a water main 

and the customer's private plumbing. 
 
1-1.28 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS shall mean the current edition of the Agency's 

Water System Construction Specifications. 
 
1-1.29 SUBDIVISION shall mean the division of any improved or unimproved land, 

shown on the latest equalized county assessment roll as a unit or as contiguous 
units, for the purpose of sale, lease, or financing, whether immediate or future, 
except for leases of agricultural land for agricultural purposes.  SUBDIVISION 
includes a condominium project or an apartment complex. 
 

1-1.30 SUPPLEMENTAL IMPORTED WATER CAPACITY CHARGE shall mean 
a charge levied on a premises for providing water source capacity provided by the 
Agency’s purchase of supplemental imported water. 

 
1-1.31 WATER shall mean water used for residential, commercial, and irrigation 

purposes. 
 
1-2 Other Definitions:  Words or terms not defined above shall be defined in 

accordance with the Glossary - Water and Waste Control Engineering prepared 
by the American Public Health Association and the Water Pollution Control 
Federation. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 4

SECTION 2 - AUTHORITY 
 
 
2-1 General Authority:  The General Manager may prescribe and enforce rules and 

procedures not in conflict or inconsistent with existing regulations to implement the 
application, administration, interpretation, and enforcement of these Regulations. 

 
2-2 Revision of Fees and Charges:  The Board may from time to time, by motion, 

resolution, or ordinance add, fix, alter, change, amend or revise any fees or charges 
for facilities and services. 

 
2-3 Authority of Inspectors:  The General Manager or his duly authorized 

representatives and/or employees of the Agency shall be permitted to enter upon all 
premises to which water service is being provided for the purpose of determining 
the size, depth, grade, location, and condition of any water facility, and to determine 
possible hazards relating to the health, safety and welfare of the people throughout 
the Agency's water system in accordance with the provisions of these Regulations. 

 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 5

SECTION 3 - WATER SERVICE 
 
3-1 General Provisions: 
 
3-1.1 Shortage of Water Supply and Interruption of Service:  The Agency shall 

exercise reasonable diligence and care to furnish and deliver a continuous and 
sufficient supply of water to the customer.  However, the Agency will not be liable 
for interruption, shortage or insufficiency of supply, or any loss or damage 
occasioned thereby,   The Agency cannot assure a continuous, uninterrupted supply 
of water. 

 
3-1.2 Right to Temporarily Suspend Service:  The Agency, whenever it shall find it 

necessary for any reason shall have the right to suspend temporarily the delivery of 
water.  In such cases, the Agency will attempt to provide a reasonable notice 
thereof, as circumstances may permit. 

 
3-1.3 Water Pressure Conditions: 
 
3-1.3.1 Acceptance:  The signing of an application for water connections or for water 

service shall be prima facie acceptance and consent to such conditions of pressure 
and service as may from time to time exist, and the applicant agrees to hold the 
Agency harmless from any and all damages caused by or arising out of low, high, 
or fluctuating pressure or interruptions of service. 

 
3-1.3.2 Higher Elevation Service Requests: The Agency assumes no obligation to serve 

water to elevations higher than its existing facilities can serve.  Due to topography, 
and other causes, the pressure is not uniform over the territory the system serves, 
and the Agency reserves the right to change to different pressures in various areas 
served.   Where premises are situated at such an elevation that they cannot be 
assured of a dependable supply from the distribution system of the Agency and/or 
where the desired rates of flow and/or pressures required by the particular operation 
to be conducted on the premises cannot be assured by the Agency, the parties, in 
consideration of the installation of water service must agree to accept such water 
service as the Agency is able to render from its distribution system;  to construct, if 
necessary, and maintain at customer's expense on customer's premises, a reservoir 
and/or a booster pump of sufficient capacity to furnish an auxiliary supply of water 
at such times as pressure in the Agency's mains may be insufficient to supply the 
premises with water and to execute a written release to the Agency for all claims 
for failure to furnish an adequate water supply.  

 
3-1.4 Obstructing Meter Boxes:  Water meters and meter boxes are property of the 

Agency and normally are placed on public property or on Agency easements.  It 
shall be a violation of these Regulations to damage or interfere with them or to 
place vehicles, dirt, trash, leaves, or lawn cuttings or other obstructions on or over 
the meter boxes. 

 
3-1.5 Damage to Meters by Hot Water:  Customer shall be liable for damage which 

may result from the backing up of hot water from the customer's premises to the 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 6

water meter.  Should damage occur, the customer shall be notified in accordance 
with Section 10-1.1 to correct the plumbing condition causing such damage and 
shall be assessed and charged for the cost of repairs to the water meter.  Should the 
condition not be corrected and/or the meter repair bill not paid within ten days after 
notice in accordance with Section 11-1.3, the water service for said premises shall 
be discontinued, and service shall not be restored until said bill is paid together with 
a charge for restoration of service. 

 
3-1.6 Changes in Customer's Equipment:  Customers making any material change in 

the size, character, or extent of the equipment or operations utilizing water service, 
or whose change in operation results in an increase in the use of water, shall 
immediately give the Agency a written notice of the nature of the change. 

 
3-1.7 Notices:  Notices from the Agency to a customer will normally be given in writing, 

and either mailed or delivered at the last known address.  Where conditions warrant 
and in emergencies, the Agency may resort to notification either by telephone or 
messenger.  Notices from the customer to the Agency may be given verbally or in 
writing at the Agency's office. 

 
3-1.8 Changes in Distribution System:  Any person making improvements or changes 

which will result in cutting, refitting, relocating, raising, or lowering of service 
connections, water mains, fire hydrants, meters, valves, or other parts of the water 
system by the Agency, will be required to agree in writing to indemnify the Agency 
for all cost incurred by the Agency in making such changes.  When the location of 
a meter is changed at the customer's request, the cost of making the change will be 
at the customer's expense. 

 
3-1.9 Resale of Water:  A customer of the Agency may not enter into any contract or 

agreement to resell water received from the Agency, nor shall the customer deliver 
or cause to be delivered, water acquired from the Agency to premises other than 
those prescribed in the application for service. 

 
3-1.10 Responsibility for Private Plumbing Facilities: The Agency has no responsibility 

in the maintenance and operation of a customer's water system beyond the 
Agency’s meter or point of ownership by the Agency.  The customer shall be 
responsible and liable for his own private plumbing facilities.  The customer shall, 
at his own risk and expense, furnish, install, and keep in good and safe condition 
all the equipment that may be required for receiving, controlling, applying, and 
utilizing water.  The Agency shall not be responsible for any loss or damage caused 
by the improper care or wrongful act of the customer or of any of his tenants, agents, 
employees, contractors, licensees, or permittees in installing or maintaining, using, 
operating, or interfering with such equipment.  The Agency shall not be responsible 
for damage to property caused by spigots, faucets, valves, faulty pipes, and other 
equipment that are open when water is turned on at the meter, either when the water 
is turned on originally or when turned on after a temporary turn off.  Customers 
having water heaters, boilers, refrigeration, or other devices requiring a continuous 
water supply should take all necessary action to prevent damage or the causing of 
injury to such devices as a result of the shutting off of the water supply.  At the 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 7

discretion of the Agency, a meter bypass may be installed as a part of the service to 
provide for a continuous supply of water during removal or repair of the meter.  The 
Agency shall be kept whole and harmless at all times of any claims resulting from 
matters involving quantities, quality, time, or occasion of delivery, or any other 
phase of the maintenance, operation, and service of a customer's water system. 

 
3-1.11 Quick Closing Valves:  No person or customer shall install or use a quick closing 

valve or other device when such valve or device during its operation causes water 
hammer or an abrupt change of pressure in any Agency service connection or main.  
When such a condition exists, the customer shall be required to discontinue use of 
such valve or device immediately upon notification by the Agency.  Upon failure 
to comply with a notice of correction of such condition, the water service shall be 
discontinued until the correction is made by a proper installation to eliminate all 
such water hammer or abrupt change of pressure which affects Agency service 
connections or mains, and the customer shall be responsible for payment of 
applicable fees for resumption of service. 

 
3-1.12 Check Valves:  If the placing of an approved check valve or other device on the 

customer’s side of the water meter is necessary for the safety of the Agency's water 
system or appurtenances thereof, such approved check valve shall be immediately 
installed by the Agency at the expense of the customer.  Future maintenance and 
repairs will be performed by the Agency at the customer's expense.  Check valves 
or other devices necessary for the safety and protection of the customer's private 
plumbing and appliances will be the responsibility of the customer to install and 
thereafter maintain. 

 
3-1.13 Ground Wire Attachments:  The Agency will hold the customer or any other 

responsible party liable for any damage to the Agency’s property which may be 
occasioned by the attachment of any ground wires to any plumbing which is, or 
may be, connected to a service connection or main belonging to the Agency. 

 
3-2 Agency Consent:  No premises shall receive water service from the Agency's water 

system without prior consent by the Agency.  No consent shall be given unless 
proper application has been made as provided in Section 4, and applicable charges 
have been paid in accordance with these Regulations.  The applicant is responsible 
for paying all costs and expenses incidental to the installation and maintenance of 
the customer’s own private plumbing facilities. 

 
3-3 Unauthorized Connections: 
 
3-3.1 Violations:  Customers are alerted to Civil Code Section 1882, which imposes 

triple damages for the illegal reconnection or diversion of water, and Penal Code 
Sections 624 and 625, which make it a crime to tamper with water facilities.  The 
following shall constitute a violation of the Regulations, and may result in 
additional charges by the Agency as well as any other civil or criminal remedies 
imposed, termination of service, or authorized by law.  

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 8

3-3.1.1 Connections:  To tap or make any connection to the Agency's facilities or 
unmetered private fire protection services. 

 
3-3.1.2 Operate Valves:  To open the valve or extract water from fire hydrants except for 

the suppression and extinguishment of fire or except when written consent is given 
by the Agency for temporary construction water use. 

 
3-3.1.3 Wasting Water:  To cause or permit the waste of water from the Agency's water 

system, or to maintain or cause or permit to be maintained, any leaky outlets, 
apparatus, or plumbing fixtures through which water is permitted to run to waste. 

 
3-3.1.4 Activating Service by Customer:  Should a person turn on the water supply, or 

permit or cause it to be turned on, without first having made proper application and 
having paid all required fees and charges, said person will be held liable for all 
charges and damages as a result of unauthorized activation of water service and 
water service shall be discontinued until the above charges are paid. 

 
3-3.2 Responsibility for Private Plumbing:  The Agency assumes no responsibility for 

the delivery of water through private plumbing or for any damage resulting from 
the operation of same. 

 
3-4 Damage to Agency Facilities:  When water is used or wasted due to a line break 

or other system impairment, the person causing the break or impairment shall pay 
all costs incurred by the Agency in repairing such damage, including staff and 
overhead costs.  In situations which, in the discretion of the General Manager, are 
emergencies, an additional charge in the amount of 100% of the above figure shall 
be imposed to attempt to recoup in behalf of the Agency and its water customers 
all direct and indirect costs of such damage, including the threat to the public health 
and safety caused thereby. In such emergency situations, the minimum billing shall 
be $500 because of the necessary, intangible, and indirect costs of all such 
emergencies to the Agency and its water customers. 

 
3-5 Notification of Change of Ownership:  It shall be the duty of every owner signing 

an application for water service to notify the Agency of any change in the 
ownership of said premises at least two business days prior to such change.  Every 
applicant shall be liable for the water furnished pursuant to such application until 
the Agency receives written notice to cancel such service.  Upon discovery of 
ownership change, water service will be discontinued unless the subsequent owner 
makes arrangements with the Agency to continue the service. Discontinuance of 
water service may require discontinuance of sewer service from the Agency. 

 
3-6 Access to Premises:  The Agency's duly authorized agents shall at all reasonable 

times have the right to enter the customer's premises for any purpose properly 
connected with its operations. 

 
3-7 Responsibility:  The Agency's responsibility ends at the customer's side of the 

meter or, in the case of an unmetered or other special installation, at the point where 
the Agency's facilities end. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 9

3-8 Ownership:  All service connections and meters shall remain at all times the 
property of the Agency. 

 
3-9 Maintenance and Replacement:  All service connections and meters shall be 

maintained, repaired, and replaced by the Agency when rendered unserviceable 
through normal wear and tear, provided that where replacements, repairs, and 
adjustments of any service and/or meter are rendered necessary by the act, 
negligence, or carelessness of the customer, the customer shall bear the expense. 

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 10

SECTION 4 - WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
 
4-1 Application:  An applicant who desires water service must complete an application 

form supplied by the Agency.  Each applicant for water service may be required to 
establish credit in accordance with Section 9. 

 
4-2 Premises to be Served:  The applicant shall describe the premises to be served, 

and only the premises so specified shall be connected to the Agency's water system.  
The Agency reserves the right to make separate connections to each and every unit, 
or to make a single connection to the entire premises. 

 
4-3 Division of Property:  Whenever property having a service connection is divided 

into two or more parcels, the existing service connection shall serve the parcel 
which it directly enters, and new service connections shall be required for each of 
the remaining parcels. 

 
4-4 Separate Service Connections:  A service connection of size and material 

specified by the Agency shall be required for service to each lot or parcel of a 
subdivision. 

 
4-5 Approval of Drawings:  Service connections made to existing Agency water mains 

for any premises shall be installed only by the Agency.   A developer may be 
allowed by the Agency to install service connections to mains installed by the 
developer, prior to acceptance by the Agency.  Such connections shall require water 
improvement drawings and shall depict the proposed facilities.  All drawings and 
specifications shall substantially conform to the Agency's Standard Specifications 
and shall be submitted to the Agency in advance of construction for prior approval 
by the Agency. 

 
4-6 Licensed Contractors:  Only duly authorized and licensed contractors, or 

employees or agents of the Agency, shall be permitted to install water facilities. 
 
4-7  Service Size:  The Agency reserves the right to determine the size of the service 

connection. 
 
4-8 Service Connection Location:  Where practicable, the Agency will install the 

service connection at a location selected by the applicant, but the Agency reserves 
the right to determine the location in relation to boundaries of the premises to be 
served.  Customarily, a service connection will terminate at a point behind and 
adjacent to the curb in streets or adjacent to the property line where no curb exists.  
In locations where the applicant's premises do not directly abut on a public 
thoroughfare, the Agency at its option may provide a service connection of 
conventional length terminating at some practicable location on public property, or 
on an Agency-owned easement, and the applicant has the responsibility of 
connecting thereto.  The applicant's private plumbing to connect to the Agency's 
service connection should not be installed until the service connection is installed.  
In the event the applicant's private plumbing is installed prior to the time the service 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 11

connection is installed, and its location does not correspond with that of the service 
connection, then the applicant must bear the additional cost of connecting the 
applicant's private plumbing to the Agency’s service connection. 

 
4-9 Cost of Installation:  The Agency will permit the installation of water service 

connections to the applicant's premises at the applicant's expense in accordance 
with Section 7-1. 

 
4-10 Appurtenances: 
 
4-10.1 Stops and Valves:  Each service connection shall have an Agency-owned meter 

stop on the inlet side of the meter for exclusive use by the Agency in controlling 
the use of the water through the service connection, a meter, a check valve, and a 
customer control valve on the outlet side of the meter for use by the customer.  If 
the meter stop is damaged by the customer, the customer shall be responsible for 
the cost of replacing meter stop.  The repair or replacement of the customer control 
valve on the customer's side of the meter will be the responsibility of the customer. 

 
4-10.2 Meters: All service connections shall be metered except in those cases where, for 

a limited time, the Agency shall find it desirable not to meter the service because 
of construction work or other special circumstances.  Customarily, meters will be 
installed in public property adjacent to the curb or property line, but, at the option 
of the Agency, they may be installed on the customer's premises in an appropriate 
housing.  No rent or other charge will be paid by the Agency for a meter located on 
the customer's property.  Meters will be sealed by the Agency at the time of 
installation, and no seal shall be altered or broken except by authorized employees 
or agents of the Agency.  If a meter seal is altered or a meter is damaged by a 
customer, the Agency shall have the right to charge the customer for the 
replacement of the meter. 

 
4-10.3 Cost of Installation:  The cost of installing the meter stop, meter, check valve,   

customer control valve, meter box, and all necessary pipe and fittings shall be borne 
by the customer and shall be in accordance with Section 7-1. 

 
4-11 Plan Checking:  The Agency will review and check the drawings for service 

connections, where main extensions are not required, at the applicant’s expense as 
provided in Section 7-9. Plan Check Fees as provided in Section 7-9 shall not apply 
to applicants for service connections to single family residences (classified as R-1).  

 
4-12 Inspection of Connections:  Every water service connection installed by other than 

the Agency shall be subject to inspection, at the applicant’s expense, as provided in 
Section 7-10.  The Agency may have an inspector in attendance at all times during 
the actual work. 

 
  



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 12

SECTION 5 - TEMPORARY SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
 
5-1 General Provisions:  Temporary services, whether from a fire hydrant or 

otherwise, are installed for the convenience and use of individuals, contractors and 
companies doing construction work.  However, temporary services are not limited 
to construction purposes, but may be installed for any use at the discretion of the 
Agency.  Service from facilities installed by a developer shall be considered 
temporary until the development has been accepted by the Agency.  Any temporary 
service may be discontinued during any emergency for the duration of the 
emergency.  The length and nature of such emergency will be determined by the 
Agency.  Temporary services are not transferable except to the successors of 
interest of the applicant by operation of the law. 

 
5-2 Applications:  An applicant who desires temporary water service must make 

application with the Agency. 
 
5-3 Duration:  Temporary service connections shall be terminated within six months 

after installation unless the applicant makes written application for and receives 
written extension of time from the Agency. 

 
5-4 Responsibility for Metered Connections:  The applicant for temporary service 

shall be held responsible for loss or damage to the temporary service connections 
from the time of installation until removal, or until 2 business days after notice in 
writing has been received by the Agency that the applicant has no further need of 
the temporary service. 

 
5-5 Meter Readings, Billings and Collections:  Meter readings, billings, and 

collections shall be in accordance with Section 11. 
 
5-6 Meter and Backflow Protection Device Deposits:  Deposits for meters and 

backflow protection device shall be in accordance with Section 7-12.1. 
 
5-7 Meter and Backflow Protection Device Installation Charges:  Charges for 

installations of meters and backflow protection deice shall be in accordance with 
Section 7-12.2. 

 
5-8 Monthly Service Charges:  Monthly service charges shall be in accordance with 

Section 8-4. 
 
5-9 Service from Fire Hydrants: 
 
5-9.1 General Provisions:  Upon application to and approval by the Agency, water may 

be procured from fire hydrants.  The applicant must specify hydrant location when 
making application.  All hydrant meters will be equipped with the appurtenant 
apparatus necessary to deliver fire flow demands without the necessity of 
disconnecting an existing temporary fire hydrant service.  The Agency will make 
the installation, all construction meter moves to other hydrant locations, and remove 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 13

the construction meter at the applicant's request and expense.  Construction meter 
moves will be made within two working days of notifying the Agency of the request 
to move said meter. Whenever the Agency deems the conditions feasible, it may 
accept requests for the installation, relocation and removal of temporary service 
connection by telephone.  The original receipt issued shall serve as a permit to 
receive water from only the designated hydrant.  When service is terminated, the 
deposit shall be refunded less any outstanding charges. 

 
5-9.2 Meter Relocation Charges:  Meter relocation charges shall be in accordance with 

Section 7-12.3. 
 
5-10 Service from Other Than Fire Hydrants: 
 
5-10.1 General Provisions:  A temporary service connection from a primary source other 

than a fire hydrant may be procured upon application to and approval by the 
Agency.  The application shall be made in accordance with Section 4. 

 
5-10.2 Service Installation and Removal Charges:  The charge for installation and 

removal shall be the greater of (a) the actual cost of installation including labor, 
material, and equipment plus applicable overheads, or (b) the charge for a regular 
service connection of equal size.  Payment and any necessary refund shall be made 
in accordance with Section 7-1.5 and 7-2. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 14

SECTION 6 - MAIN EXTENSIONS 

 
6-1 General Provisions: 
 
6-1.1 Individual Extensions:  The Agency will permit extension of its water mains and 

service connections to individual's premises at the individual's expense, subject to 
the Agency’s requirements and conditions. 

 
6-1.2 Agency Ownership:  Any such facilities which do not constitute private plumbing 

will be the sole property of the Agency upon acceptance by the Agency.  Before 
service is provided for permanent or temporary use, the applicant shall execute any 
and all documents required by the Agency to vest title to those facilities in the 
Agency. 

 
6-1.3 Specifications:  The size, type, quality of materials, and the actual construction will 

be done in accordance with the Agency’s Standard Specifications and approved 
drawings.  Construction shall be performed by a contractor acceptable to the 
Agency or by the Agency itself with its own forces.  The installation of the main 
extension will be under the inspection of and subject to the approval by the Agency. 

 
6-1.4 Costs:  Adjustment of any difference between the estimated cost and the actual cost 

of any main extension constructed hereunder will be made as provided in Section 
6-2.2. 

 
6-1.5 Feasibility:  The right is reserved, as the interests of the Agency may require, to 

determine the economic and/or engineering feasibility of any main extension and 
the Agency will not approve extensions for which the feasibility is negative or 
uncertain, as determined by the Agency in its sole discretion. 

 
6-1.6 Location:  Main extensions will be required in all streets fronting the premises and 

are to be installed in conjunction with proposed street improvements to the 
premises.  Main extensions will be located in streets, in easements provided to the 
Agency by the applicant or in easements obtained by the Agency, or in property 
deeded to the Agency.  Prior to installing a main extension, the applicant shall 
provide the Agency with such easements or deeds as may be necessary or 
reasonably appropriate to the operation thereof.  The Agency will not be required 
to make extensions where street grades have not been brought to those established 
by public authority. 

 
6-1.7 Parallel Mains:  Where the premises are located adjacent to a street exceeding 70 

feet in width, or a freeway, waterway, or railroad right-of-way, the Agency may 
elect to install a main extension on the same side thereof as the premises in lieu of 
extending a service connection across said street, freeway, waterway or railroad 
right-of-way from an existing or proposed unit.  Parallel mains may also be required 
to eliminate island or median crossings of service and fire hydrant connections. 

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 15

6-1.8 Agency Right to Allow Connections:  The Agency shall have the right at any time 
to allow other users to connect to the Agency's water system at any location, 
whether built by the Agency or by another party and transferred to the Agency, 
subject to payment of such fees as may be required by agreement or by resolution 
of the Board. 

 
6-1.9 Minimum Sizing:  The Agency will not permit a main extension of less than eight 

inches in diameter unless approved in advanced by the Agency. 
 
6-1.10 Agency Right to Design and Construct:  The Agency reserves the right to design 

and construct water facilities at its discretion.  The cost of said facilities shall be 
borne by the applicant including, but not limited to design, materials, and 
installation. 

 
6-1.11 Separate Service Connections:  A service connection of size and material required 

by the Agency's specifications shall be placed to each lot or parcel of a subdivision. 
 
6-2 Types of Extensions: 
 
6-2.1 General: 
 
6-2.1.1 Oversizing:  If the Agency elects to require a size or type of main extension in 

excess of the requirements of the applicant, the applicant will be reimbursed for the 
additional incremental cost of the material for the oversized requirement only, 
pursuant to the terms and conditions fixed by the Agency’s General Manager. 

 
6-2.1.2 Off-tract Improvements:  If off-tract improvements are required to serve the 

applicant's in-tract improvements, the cost of required facilities shall be borne by 
the applicant, including, but not limited to design, materials and installation. 

 
6-2.1.2.1 Main Extension Refund Agreement:  The Agency may elect to enter into a 

refunding agreement with the applicant.  The refunding agreement shall contain 
such terms and conditions as the Board shall from time to time deem appropriate.  
Any refund shall be based on a front footage charge. 

 
6-2.2 By Agency:  The Agency, at its option, may extend its water system to the 

applicant's premises at the applicant's expense.  The applicant shall pay the Agency 
a deposit equal to the estimated cost of the main extension, as determined by the 
Agency.  Said deposit shall be used to compensate the Agency and/or any 
contractors and suppliers engaged by the Agency in the installation of the main 
extension.  Within 60 days after the cost of the main extension has been determined, 
any difference between the cost and the deposit shall be paid by or refunded to the 
applicant.  The Agency will not be required to pay interest on the deposit.  Where 
two or more applicants apply for service from the same main extension, the Agency 
may allocate the costs proportionately. 

 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 16

6-2.3 By Applicant:  The applicant shall furnish security to the Local Agency to 
guarantee the installation of the main extension in the amount equal to the estimated 
cost thereof as determined by the Agency. The applicant will be required to enter 
into a written agreement with the Agency for the construction and installation of 
required facilities and deposit with the Agency a sum of money equal to ten percent 
of the estimated construction costs as determined by the Agency for the purpose of 
covering the cost of inspection and incidentals.  The mains and appurtenances shall 
be installed by a contractor holding a valid California contractor's license in 
accordance with the provisions of Division 3, Chapter 9 of the Business and 
Professions Code of the State of California, or any amendments thereto.  As used 
in this Section, the word "applicant" shall be deemed to include the word 
"subdivider". 

 
6-3 Inspection:  The Agency will provide inspection of the main extension at the 

applicant's expense as provided in Section 7-10. 
 
6-4 Plan Checking:  The Agency will review and check the drawings for the main 

extension prior to approval at the applicant's expense as provided in Section 7-9. 
 
6-5 Design Review:  The Agency will perform design review for tentative projects on 

an actual cost basis.  An estimate will be prepared by the Agency prior to 
performing said review in accordance with Section 7-11. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 17

SECTION 7 - FEES AND CHARGES 
 
7-1 Service Connections and Meter Installations:  Each applicant shall pay to the 

Agency charges for the installation of regular metered service connections and 
metered residential fire protection service connections then in effect as established 
by resolution of the Board. 

 
7-1.1 Time of Payment:  Service Connection and Meter Installation Charges shall be 

paid to the Agency prior to issuance of a financial arrangement letter from the 
Agency to the appropriate governmental entity or prior to the provision of water 
service, whichever occurs first. 

 
7-1.2 Meter Installations:  Charges for meter installations shall be based on the size of 

the meter. 
 
7-1.3 Backup Facility Charges and Supplemental Imported Water Capacity 

Charges:   Every applicant for a regular metered service connection or metered 
residential fire protection service connection shall, in addition to all other charges, 
pay a Backup Facility Charge and Supplemental Imported Water Capacity Charge 
based on the size and type of use of the applicant's metered connection. 

 
 The purpose of the Backup Facility Charge is to raise a portion of the funds required 

by the Agency to develop new water production and storage facilities. 
Supplemental Imported Water Capacity Charges are necessary to acquire rights for 
imported water.  Backup Facility Charges and Supplemental Imported Water 
Capacity Charges shall also apply to existing metered service connections for which 
increased delivery capability is requested and larger service connections and meters 
are installed.  In such event, both charges shall apply to the difference in service 
and delivery capacity between the new meter and the old meter which is being 
replaced.  

 
7-1.3.1 Exemption:  The Backup Facility Charge and Supplemental Imported Water 

Capacity Charge shall apply to all applications for metered service, regardless of 
type of use, but shall not apply to applications for temporary service or unmetered 
private fire protection service.  The Backup Facility Charge may be reduced or 
eliminated where certain water improvement facilities constructed in the Base Zone 
will be required of an applicant.  The reduction or elimination will be no greater 
than the value of the constructed facilities as determined by the Agency’s General 
Manager, whose decision will be final. 

 
7-1.4 Customer Control Valve Installations:  Charges will be collected for the 

installation of customer control valves.  The charge will be determined in 
accordance with the size of the meter required. 

 
7-1.5 Service Connection Installations:  Charges will be collected for the installation of 

service connections.  Charge shall be based on the size required to provide adequate 
service. 

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 18

7-1.5.1 Exemption:  A developer who installs water facilities in accordance with Section 
6-2.3 shall not be charged a Service Connection Charge for those service 
connections that developer installs. 

 
7-1.5.2 Pavement/Concrete Removals and Replacements:  If pavement/concrete 

removal and replacement or other street improvements are required, a charge will 
be added to the Service Connection Charge to cover the additional cost of the 
pavement/concrete removal. 

 
7-2 Service Size Larger Than Two Inch Installations:  A charge will be collected for 

installation of service connections larger in diameter than two inches.  An estimate 
shall be prepared by the Agency, and upon payment of the amount of said estimate 
by the applicant, the work shall be scheduled.  Should the records show that the 
cost exceeded the amount deposited by the applicant, the applicant shall be billed 
for the difference and same shall become due and payable within ten days 
thereafter.  Should the same not be paid within ten days, the Agency shall 
discontinue water service to the premises where the work was done and shall not 
furnish water thereto until said bill, together with an additional charge for 
restoration of service, is paid. 

 
7-3 Service Relocations:  A charge will be collected for the relocation of activated 

service connections and shall be the greater of (a) the actual cost including labor, 
material and equipment plus applicable overheads, or (b) the charge of a regular 
service connection of equal size.  Payment shall be in accordance with Sections 7-
1 and 7-2. 

 
7-4 Service Abandonments:  A charge will be collected for the abandonment of 

service connections and shall consist of the actual cost including labor, material and 
equipment plus applicable overheads.  Payment shall be in accordance with 
Sections 7-1 and 7-2. 

 
7-5 Change in Meter Sizes:   A charge will be collected for the installation of a larger 

meter at the request of the customer and upon Agency approval.  The charge will 
consist of the cumulative difference in meter charges between the smaller meter 
and the larger meter, in accordance with Sections 7-1.2, 7-1.3 and 7-1.4.  If, 
however, the installation of a larger meter requires a larger service connection 
installation, the charge to the customer shall also include the full cost of the service 
connection in accordance with Section 7-1 and 7-2. 

 
7-6 Connection Charges (Front Footage Charge):  Every applicant who wishes to 

connect to the Agency's water system shall execute the Agency's standard water 
service application and pay the Connection Charge where applicable as set by 
resolution of the Board. 

 
7-6.1 Exemption:  A developer who installs water facilities in accordance with Section 

6-2.3 shall not be charged a Connection Charge for those water facilities that 
developer installs. 

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 19

7-7 Meter Test Deposits:  A deposit will be required to cover the reasonable cost of a 
meter test as set by resolution of the Board. 

 
7-8 Replacements:  A charge will be collected for the replacement of service 

connections or portions thereof, including but not limited to, meter boxes, valve 
covers, extensions, and valve lids.  The specific amounts of such charges and the 
time of payment by the customer shall be determined by the Agency and may 
include a reasonable minimum. 

 
7-9 Plan Check Fees:  Plan Check Fees are established by resolution of the Board and 

shall be charged for the Agency's services in checking the plans for required water 
facilities. 

 
7-10 Inspection Fees:  The Agency shall provide inspection, at the applicant's expense, 

at the applicable hourly rate paid by the Agency for an inspector plus approved 
administrative and general charges. 

 
7-11 Design Review Fees:  Design Review Fees are established by resolution of the 

Board and shall be charged for the Agency's services in analyzing the water system 
requirements for proposed developments. 

 
7-12 Temporary Service Connections:  Temporary Service Connection Charges as 

follows are set by resolution of the Board: 
 
7-12.1 Deposits:  A deposit will be required for each construction meter, in addition to a 

deposit for each backflow protection device.  When service is terminated, the 
deposits shall be refunded less any outstanding charges. 

 
7-12.2 Installations:  A charge will be collected for the installation of each construction 

meter, in addition to a charge for the installation of the backflow protection device. 
 
7-12.3 Relocations:  A charge will be collected for the relocation of each construction 

meter and backflow protection device. 
 
7-13 Restoration of Service:  A charge to be set by resolution of the Board will be 

collected for restoring service that has been discontinued. 
 
7-14 Backflow Protection Device Installations:  A charge will be collected for the 

installation of each backflow protection device as set by resolution of the Board. 
 
7-15 Development Review Charge:  Development Review Charges are established by 

resolution of the Board and shall be charged for the Agency’s service in the 
preparation of will-serve letters, development bond amounts, and response to 
initial studies. 

 
7-16 Water Quality Sampling: A charge will be collected for Agency collection and 

analysis of development Bacteriological Samples as set by resolution of the Board. 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 20

7-17 Account Establishment Fee: An administrative fee charged for the establishment 
of an account in a new owner’s name as set by resolution of the Board. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 21

SECTION 8 - MONTHLY CHARGES 
 
 
8-1  Metered Services:  For all metered service, the charges for service shall consist of 

"Monthly Service Charge," "Quantitative Charge," and "Zone Pumping Charge" 
for water delivered. 

 
8-1.1 Monthly Service Charges:  The monthly charge for all types or classes of service 

shall be determined by the size of the meter and shall be set by resolution of the 
Board. 

 
8-1.2 Quantitative Charges:  The quantitative charge for all metered and unmetered 

water used for all purposes shall be set by resolution of the Board. 
 
8-1.3 Zone Pumping Charges:  The service zones of the Agency are designated on a 

Service Area Map on file in the Agency's office.  It shall consist of a base rate zone 
and separate pumping elevation zones.  The Quantitative Charge shall be set by 
resolution of the Board and shall apply to all zones.  In addition, charges to be set 
by resolution of the Board shall be collected in the pumping elevation zones to 
reflect the extra costs of pumping to such higher elevations. 

 
8-2 Commercial Fire Protection Services:  A Monthly Service Charge as set by 

resolution of the Board shall be determined by the size of the service for unmetered 
commercial fire protection services. 

 
8-3 Backflow Protection Devices:  Monthly charges as set by resolution of the Board 

will be collected for testing and necessary minor repairs of each device. 
 
8-4 Construction and Temporary Services:  Monthly Service Charges in accordance 

with Section 8-1 will be collected for metered and unmetered service for 
construction work and for service of temporary or limited duration. 

 
8-4.1 Backflow Protection Devices:  Monthly service charges to be set by resolution of 

the Board. 
 
8-5 Late Payment Charge: Monthly water charges that become delinquent after 30 

days (billing period) will incur a late fee charge set by Resolution of the Board. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 22

SECTION 9 - CREDIT POLICY 
 
 
9-1 Establishing Credit:  Water service, in all cases, will be kept in the name of the 

property owner.  Each applicant for water service will be required to establish credit 
to the satisfaction of the Agency before service will be rendered.  Owner's credit 
will be deemed established, with no deposit required, if the new owner can provide 
proof of ownership for the residential property to be serviced, and/or the owner has 
had previous service within the Agency service area during the past two years and 
maintained an account history where service has not been discontinued for 
nonpayment for 12 consecutive months.  All non-residential service will require a 
deposit, unless the owner has other non-residential service with the Agency and has 
maintained an account history where service has not been discontinued for 
nonpayment for 12 consecutive months. 

 
9-2 Amount of Deposit:  Where credit cannot be established pursuant to Sections 9-1, 

a deposit shall be required and shall consist of two times the average monthly bill 
using the most recent 12 months of consecutive service to determine the average.  
Where a deposit amount cannot be determined by taking an average of the 12 most 
recent months of service, a minimum deposit will be required based on the size of 
the water meter which serves the property.  The minimum deposit shall be set by 
resolution of the Board. 

 
9-3 Application of Deposit:   Deposits shall be held for one year.  Upon the completion 

of one year's continuous service, during which time service had not been 
discontinued for nonpayment, the deposit shall be applied to the water account.  If 
service is discontinued for nonpayment, the deposit shall remain with the Agency 
until completion of 24 months of continuous service or until service is ordered 
discontinued by the Applicant. 

 
 The deposit, less the amount of any unpaid water and sewer bills, will be refunded 

without interest upon discontinuance of service by the applicant. 
 
 Refundable deposits may be forfeited to the Agency, as provided by law, if 

unclaimed by the depositor within three years from the date service is discontinued. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 23

SECTION 10 - DISCONTINUANCE AND RESTORATION OF SERVICE 
 
 
10-1 Discontinuance of Service: 
 
10-1.1 Agency Initiated:  The Agency has the right to discontinue water or sewer service, 

or both, if a customer fails to comply with these Regulations.  Under such 
circumstances, the Agency will make a reasonable effort to notify the customer.  
Prior to discontinuance of service, notice is not necessary when the noncompliance, 
violation, or infraction of these Regulations by the customer results, or is likely to 
result in a dangerous or unsanitary condition on the premises, or in the water 
system, or elsewhere.  In such case the Agency may order immediate 
discontinuance of service. 

 
 Before discontinuing service, subject to the exception as otherwise provided above, 

the Agency will give the customer notice in writing specifying the reason or reasons 
why service may be discontinued and granting an opportunity to be heard within 
five days of receipt of said notice.  The service address, if different from the billing 
address, will also receive a notice with an opportunity to be heard within five days 
of receipt of said notice.  If the customer or occupant fails or refuses to comply with 
the notice or fails to request an opportunity to be heard within five days after the 
presentation of the notice, then the Agency may discontinue service to the 
customer.  If the person requests the opportunity to be heard and is heard, the 
Agency will thereafter determine if service shall be continued. 

 
10-1.2 At Customer's Request:  A customer may have service discontinued by notifying 

the Agency at least 48 hours (2 business days) in advance of the desired date of 
discontinuance.  Service will only be discontinued on the Agency's normal working 
days and during normal working hours unless approved by the Agency in advance. 

 
10-2 Restoration of Service:   
 
10-2.1 General Provisions:  A customer whose service has been discontinued may have 

it restored by making application and paying applicable restoration of service 
charges in accordance with Section 7-13. 

 
10-2.2 Unauthorized Restoration:  It shall be a violation of these Regulations, and a 

crime, for any person to make an unauthorized reconnection to the Agency’s water 
system once service to the premises has been discontinued in accordance with 
Section 3-3.1.4. 

 
  
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 24

SECTION 11 - METER READING, BILLING AND COLLECTION 
 
11-1 Meter Reading and Billing: 
 
11-1.1 Rendering of Bills:  Bills for water service shall be based upon monthly meter 

readings and monthly billings. 
 
11-1.2 Pro-ration of Bills:  The charges applicable to opening periods, closing bills, and 

bills rendered for periods corresponding to less than one month will be computed 
as follows: 

 
 The amount of the minimum charge and the quantity allowed therefore in each of 

the several quantity rate blocks will be prorated on the basis of the ratio of the 
number of days in the period that service is provided to the number of days in an 
average billing period.  The measured quantity of usage will be applied to such 
prorated amounts and quantities. 

 
11-1.3 Payment of Bills:  During each month, the Agency shall mail a statement covering 

charges for all water received by the customer during the preceding month. Charges 
shall be due and payable upon receipt of the statement.  If it is necessary for the 
Agency to visit the premises to collect payment, a collection charge to be 
determined by the General Manager will be added to the amount owing.  Any form 
of payment submitted for payment of water service which is not honored and has 
been returned by the bank shall be subject to a return payment fee.  Such payments 
shall be replaced by the customer with cash or cashier’s check including a returned 
payment fee as determined by the Agency in order to avoid discontinuance of water 
service.  

 
11-1.4 Delinquent Accounts:  The bill for water service shall be delinquent if not paid 

within 30 days after billing. Bills for sewer service, groundwater replenishment 
service, or other services provided by the Agency shall be delinquent if not paid 
when due.  Nonpayment of any such delinquency shall constitute a violation of this 
ordinance and shall be cause for terminating water service as well as sewer service.  
When delinquency occurs, a final notice (including a late fee charge) will be mailed 
to the billing address.  If payment has not been received 15 days after final notice 
has been issued, the service address, if different from the billing address, will be 
tagged 48 hours in advance of scheduled turn off to give the occupant opportunity 
to pay the outstanding account.  If occupant does not pay the outstanding account 
or make arrangements for payment by the date of scheduled turn off, then water 
and/or sewer service may be discontinued without further notice. 

 
 Service shall not be restored to the premises until all charges including fees, if any, 

have been paid in full.  An owner whose service has been discontinued for 
nonpayment of bills, or whose deposit shall have been applied in whole or in part 
to the payment of any bills, will be required to reestablish credit by a cash deposit 
in accordance with Section 9-1. 

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 25

 A customer who has a delinquency for any premises served by the Agency may not 
receive water service, recycled water service, or sewer service on another premises 
until all delinquencies, including fees, are paid in full.  Additionally, when a service 
has been terminated for nonpayment, all charges may be transferred to another 
account held in the sole name of the same owner.  This account will become 
delinquent if payment is not made within 15 days from the date of delinquency 
transfer, and will be subject to turnoff without further notice.  The Agency may file 
liens against the property or any other properties owned by the delinquent customer 
within the State of California to enforce collection of delinquent accounts. 

 
11-2 Meter Test at Customer's Request: 
 
11-2.1 General Provisions:  A customer may request the Agency to test the meter serving 

the premises.  The Agency will require the customer to deposit an amount for such 
test in accordance with Section 7-7.  The deposit will be returned if the meter is 
found to register more than two percent fast.  The Agency shall request the 
customer's presence when the test is conducted.  A written report of the test will be 
available to the customer. 

 
11-3 Adjustment of Bills for Meter Error: 
 
11-3.1 General Provisions:  When a water meter is found to be out of order, the charge 

for water will be based, at the option of the Agency, on one of the following: 
 
  The average monthly consumption for the three preceding months during 

which the meter is known to have registered correctly; or 
 
  An estimate of consumption based either upon the customer's prior use 

during the same season of the year or upon a reasonable comparison with 
the use of other customers receiving the same class of service during the 
same period and under similar circumstances and conditions; or 

 
  The consumption as registered by a substitute meter; or 
 
  In accordance with Section 11-3.3. 
 
11-3.2 Meter Reading Inaccessibility:  When a meter is covered or otherwise 

inaccessible so that it cannot be read, an average bill will be rendered and 
accumulated errors, if any, will be adjusted when the meter is first thereafter read. 

 
11-3.3 Adjustment Based Upon Meter Test:  If a meter tested in accordance with Section 

11-2 is found to be registering more than two percent fast, another meter will be 
installed and the Agency will refund to the customer the meter test deposit plus the 
amount of the overcharge based on corrected meter readings for the period the 
meter was in use, but not to exceed a period of four months immediately proceeding 
the request for the meter test. 

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 26

 When, upon test, a meter is found to be registering more than 25 percent slow, the 
Agency may bill the customer for the amount of the undercharge based on corrected 
meter readings for the period the meter was in service but not to exceed a period of 
two months immediately preceding the request for the meter test.  The meter test 
deposit will be retained by the Agency to cover the testing of the meter. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 27

 SECTION 12 – COMMERCIAL FIRE PROTECTION SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
 
12-1 General Provisions:  When a commercial fire protection service connection is 

installed, the control valve thereon will be left closed and sealed until a written 
order to turn on the water is received from the customer.  The Agency shall not be 
liable for damage of any kind for any reason that may occur on or to the premises 
served.  A double check valve must be installed on the commercial fire protection 
service connection of a type approved by the National Board of Fire Underwriters 
and equipped with a bypass detection meter. 

 
12-2 Installation Charge:  The charge for a commercial fire protection service 

installation shall be the actual cost including labor, material and equipment plus 
applicable overheads.  Payment shall be made in accordance with Section 7-2. 

 
12-3 Conditions for Service:  Unless otherwise approved by the Agency, a commercial 

fire protection service connection of size and material required by the Agency's 
specifications shall be placed to each and every lot or parcel of a subdivision 
requiring private fire protection service. 

 
 Commercial fire protection service shall be used for no other purposes than for the 

discharge of water in case of fire and for the use of water therefor through automatic 
or manual means for the extinguishing of fire; and it shall be unlawful to install on 
said systems any taps, hose bibs or outlets from which water may be drawn for 
other uses. 

 
12-4 Penalties for Misuse:  Use of water from a commercial fire protection service for 

purposes other than extinguishing a fire or testing of the fire line shall constitute a 
violation of these regulations and the customer shall be charged for the 
unauthorized use as determined by the Agency’s General Manager. 

 
For repeated unauthorized usage, the Agency reserves the right to discontinue the 
commercial fire protection service and install a regular or fire flow meter at the 
customer’s expense, including all fees as outlined in Section 7-1.3.  Upon 
installation of said metered facility, service shall thereafter be classified as a 
metered service and shall be billed at the applicable rate.  The Agency shall not be 
held liable for damage which may result from said discontinuance of service. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 28

SECTION 13 - CROSS CONNECTIONS 
 
 
13-1 General Provisions:  There shall be no connections installed, located, maintained, 

or operated between the water supply system of the Agency, including its 
appurtenant mains, pipes, fixtures and equipment, and any other water supply 
system which might cause contamination or pollution of the water and physical 
parts of the Agency's water system.  The Agency shall have the right to discontinue 
the supply of water to the premises where this condition exists. 

 
13-2 Protection from Cross Connections and Backflow:  Water service connections 

shall be protected from the hazards of cross connection and backflow in accordance 
with the regulations of the California State Department of Public Health and 
ordinances of the County of Riverside or any other provision of law. 

 
13-3 Installation and Maintenance of Devices:  Backflow protection devices of an 

approved type shall be installed and maintained at the expense of the customer.  
Installation costs will be charged in accordance with Section 7-14.   Maintenance 
costs to be charged in accordance with Section 13-5. 

 
13-4 Discontinuance of Service:  The service of water to any premises may be 

discontinued by the Agency without notice if unprotected cross connections exist 
on the premises, or if a defect is found in an installed backflow protection device, 
or if a backflow protection device has been removed or bypassed, and service will 
not be restored until such conditions or defects are corrected.  Discontinuance of 
service may be summary, immediate, and without notice whenever if, in the 
judgment of the General Manager, such action is necessary to protect the water 
supply or the safety of the water system, and the Agency's determination shall be 
final and conclusive. 

 
13-5 Testing Charges:  All backflow protection devices shall be tested at least once a 

year, or more often in those instances where successive inspections indicate 
repeated failure.  The defective devices shall be repaired, overhauled or replaced at 
the expense of the customer.  A charge in accordance with Section 8-3 shall be 
added to the water bill for testing and minor repairs.  Charges for repairs amounting 
to $100 or more, including applicable overheads, will be billed to the customer 
separately.  

 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 29

SECTION 14 - ENFORCEMENT 
 
 
14-1 General Provisions:  The following procedures are established for enforcement of 

these Regulations, not for penalty.  All Customers shall be held strictly responsible 
for any and all acts of tenants, agents or employees, and those Customers shall be 
liable for any expense, loss or damage incurred by the Agency, all pursuant to these 
Regulations. 

 
14-2 Violations: 
 
14-2.1 Written Notice:  Any Person found in violation of these Regulations will be 

notified pursuant to Section 10-1.1, except when immediate discontinuance of 
service is required as provided  in that Section. 

 
14-2.2 Corrective Action:  Upon notification by the Agency of any violation of these 

Regulations, the Customer shall immediately take whatever corrective action may 
be necessary. 

 
14-3 Discontinuance of Service:  The Agency may discontinue service for any violation 

of these Regulations as provided in Section 10. 
 
14-4 Abatement:  During any period of discontinuance of service, occupancy of such 

premises shall constitute a public nuisance, whereupon the Agency may cause 
abatement proceedings to be brought against said premises.  In such event, and as 
a condition of restoration of service, the Customer shall reimburse the Agency for 
reasonable attorney's fee and cost of suit arising in said action, in addition to the 
charges provided for in Section 9 and Section 10. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 30

SECTION 15 - SEVERABILITY 
 
 
15-1 Severability of Regulations:  These Regulations and the various sections, parts, 

and clauses thereof are hereby declared to be separable.  If any part, section, 
subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of these Regulations is for any 
reason held to be unconstitutional or unlawful, such provision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of these Regulations. 

 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 66 – Water Service 31

SECTION 16 - ADOPTION 
 
 
16-1 Effective Date:  Except as otherwise provided herein, this Ordinance becomes 

effective on July 1, 2017. 
 
16-2 Previous Ordinance Repealed:  Ordinance No. 58 is hereby repealed. 
 
 
 ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      James Cioffi, President 
      Board of Directors 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
 
 
 



 
 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 67 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULATIONS GOVERNING 
RECYCLED WATER SERVICE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  July 1, 2017 



REGULATIONS GOVERNING RECYCLED WATER SERVICE 
 

 
SECTION  1 DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
  1-1 Agency Definitions ........................................................... 1 
  1-2 Other Definitions .............................................................. 3 
 
SECTION 2 AUTHORITY 
  
  2-1 General Authority ............................................................. 4 
  2-2 Revision of Fees and Charges ........................................... 4  
  2-3 Authority of Inspectors ..................................................... 4 
  2-4 Recycled Water Service .................................................... 4 
 
SECTION 3 RECYCLED WATER SERVICE 
 
  3-1 General Provisions ............................................................ 5 
  3-1.1 Shortage of Recycled Water Supply and Interruption 
   of Service .......................................................................... 5 
  3-1.2 Right to Temporarily Suspend Service ............................. 5 
  3-1.3 Recycled Water Pressure Conditions ................................ 5 
  3-1.3.1 Acceptance ........................................................................ 5 
  3-1.3.2 Higher Elevation Service Requests ................................... 5 
  3-1.4 Obstructing Meter Facility ................................................ 5 
  3-1.5 Changes in Customer’s Equipment ................................... 6 
  3-1.6 Notices .............................................................................. 6 
  3-1.7 Change in Distribution System ......................................... 6 
  3-1.8 Resale of Recycled Water ................................................. 6 
  3-1.9 Responsibility for Private Plumbing Facilities ................. 6 
  3-1.10 Quick Closing Valves ....................................................... 7 
  3-1.11 Ground Wire Attachments  ............................................... 7 
  3-2 Agency Consent ................................................................ 7 
  3-3 Unauthorized Connections ................................................ 7 
  3-3.1 Violations .......................................................................... 7 
  3-3.1.1 Connections ...................................................................... 7 
  3-3.1.2 Wasting Recycled Water .................................................. 7 
  3-3.1.3 Activating Service by Customer ....................................... 7 
  3-3.2 Responsibility for Private Plumbing ................................. 8 
  3-4 Damage to Agency Facilities ............................................ 8 
  3-5 Notification of Change of Ownership ............................... 8 
  3-6 Access to Premises ............................................................ 8 
  3-7 Responsibility ................................................................... 8 
  3-8 Ownership ......................................................................... 8 
  3-9 Maintenance and Replacements ........................................ 8 
 



 II

SECTION 4 RECYCLED WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
  4-1 Application ........................................................................ 9 
  4-2 Premises to be Served ....................................................... 9 
  4-3 Division of Property .......................................................... 9 
  4-4 Approval of Drawings ...................................................... 9 
  4-5 Licensed Contractors ........................................................ 9 
  4-6 Service Size ....................................................................... 9 
  4-7 Service Connection Location ............................................ 9 
  4-8 Cost of Installation ............................................................ 10 
  4-9 Appurtenances .................................................................. 10 
  4-9.1 Valves ............................................................................... 10 
  4-9.2 Meters ............................................................................... 10 
  4-9.3 Cost of Installation ............................................................ 10 
  4-10 Plan Checking ................................................................... 10  
  4-11 Inspection of Connections ................................................ 10 
   
SECTION  5 MAIN EXTENSIONS 
 
  5-1 General Provisions ............................................................ 11 
  5-1.1 Individual Extensions ....................................................... 11 
  5-1.2 Agency Ownership ........................................................... 11 
  5-1.3 Specifications .................................................................... 11 
  5-1.4 Costs .................................................................................. 11 
  5-1.5 Feasibility .......................................................................... 11 
  5-1.6 Location ............................................................................ 11 
  5-1.7 Agency Right to Allow Connections ................................ 11 
  5-1.8 Minimum Sizing ............................................................... 12 
  5-1.9 Agency Right to Design and Construct ............................ 12 
  5-2 Types of Extensions .......................................................... 12 
  5-2.1 General .............................................................................. 12 
  5-2.1.1 Offtract Improvements ...................................................... 12 
  5-2.2 By Agency ........................................................................ 12 
  5-2.3 By Applicant ..................................................................... 12 
  5-3 Inspection .......................................................................... 12 
  5-4 Plan Checking ................................................................... 12 
  5-5 Design Review .................................................................. 13 
 
SECTION  6 FEES AND CHARGES 
 
  6-1 Service Connections and Meter Installations .................... 14 
  6-1.1 Time of Payment ............................................................... 14 
  6-1.2 Meter Installations ............................................................ 14 
  6-1.3 Backup Facility Charges ................................................... 14 
  6-1.3.1 Exemption ......................................................................... 14 
  6-1.4 Flow Control Valve Installation ....................................... 14 
  6-1.5 Outlet Valve ...................................................................... 14 
  6-1.6 Service Connection Installations ...................................... 14 



 III

 
  6-1.6.1 Exemption ......................................................................... 15 
  6-2 Adjustable Funds for Meter Installation ........................... 15 
  6-3 Service Relocations ........................................................... 15 
  6-4 Service Abandonments ..................................................... 15 
  6-5 Change in Meter Sizes ...................................................... 15 
  6-6 Meter Test Deposits .......................................................... 15 
  6-7 Replacements .................................................................... 15 
  6-8 Plan Check Fees ................................................................ 15 
  6-9 Inspection Fees ................................................................. 16 
  6-10 Design Review Fees .......................................................... 16 
  6-11 Restoration of Services ..................................................... 16 
  6-12 Development Review Charge ........................................... 16 
 
SECTION 7 MONTHLY CHARGES 
 
  7-1 Metered Services ............................................................... 17 
  7-1.1 Monthly Service Charges .................................................. 17 
  7-1.2 Quantitative Charges ......................................................... 17 
  7-1.3 Flow Control Valves ......................................................... 17 
 
SECTION  8 CREDIT POLICY 
 
  8-1 Establishing Credit ............................................................ 18 
  8-2 Amount of Deposit ............................................................ 18 
  8-3 Application of Deposit ...................................................... 18 
 
SECTION 9 DISCONTINUANCE AND RESTORATION OF SERVICE 
 
  9-1 Discontinuance of Service ................................................ 19 
  9-1.1 Agency Initiated ................................................................ 19 
  9-1.2 At Customer’s Request ..................................................... 19 
  9-2 Restoration of Service ....................................................... 19 
  9-2.1 General Provisions ............................................................ 19 
  9-2.2 Unauthorized Restoration ................................................. 19 
 
SECTION 10 METER READING, BILLING AND COLLECTION 
 
  10-1 Meter Reading, and Billing ............................................... 20 
  10-1.1 Rendering of Bills ............................................................. 20 
  10-1.2 Proration of Bills ............................................................... 20 
  10-1.3 Payment of Bills ................................................................ 20 
  10-1.4 Delinquent Accounts ......................................................... 20 
  10-2 Meter Test at Customer’s Request .................................... 21 
  10-2.1 General Provisions ............................................................ 21 
  10-3 Adjustment of Bills for Meter Error ................................. 21 
  10-3.1 General Provisions ............................................................ 21 
  10-3.2 Meter Reading Inaccessibility .......................................... 21 



 IV

  10-3.3 Adjustment Based on Meter Test ...................................... 21 
 
SECTION 11 CROSS CONNECTIONS 
 
  11-1 General Provisions ............................................................ 23 
  11-2 Protection from Cross Connection and Backflow ............ 23 
  11-3 Installation and Maintenance of Devices .......................... 23 
  11-4 Discontinuance of Service ................................................ 23 
  11-5 Testing Charges ................................................................ 23 
 
SECTION 12 ENFORCEMENT 
 
  12-1 General Provisions ............................................................ 24 
  12-2 Violations .......................................................................... 24 
  12-2.1 Written Notice ................................................................... 24 
  12-2.2 Corrective Action .............................................................. 24 
  12-3 Discontinuance of Service ................................................ 24 
 
SECTION  13 SEVERABILITY 
 
  13-1 Severability of Regulations ............................................... 25 
 
SECTION  14 WASTEWATER RECLAMATION  
  MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
  14-1 General Provisions ............................................................ 26 
 
SECTION  15 ADOPTION 
  
  15-1 Effective Date ................................................................... 27 
  15-2 Previous Ordinance Repealed ........................................... 27 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
1

REGULATIONS GOVERNING RECYCLED WATER SERVICE 
 
 

SECTION 1 - DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
 
1-1 AGENCY DEFINITIONS:  Whenever the words defined in this section, or 

pronouns used in their stead, occur in these Rules and Regulations, they shall have 
the meanings here given: 

 
1-1.1 AGENCY shall mean the Desert Water Agency organized and operated pursuant to 

the provisions of the Desert Water Agency Law, Stats.1961, Ch. 1069. 
 
1-1.2 APPLICANT shall mean an individual, partnership, corporation or agency which is 

the owner of the premises for which recycled water service is being applied. 
 
1-1.3 BACKUP FACILITY CHARGE shall mean a charge levied on a premises for the 

purpose of providing recycled water service connection capacity in the Agency’s 
overall recycled water system. 

 
1-1.4 BOARD shall mean the Board of Directors of the Desert Water Agency. 
 
1-1.5 CONTRACTOR shall mean any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, or 

association duly licensed to perform work by the State of California in connection 
with the installation of recycled water service facilities. 

 
1-1.6 CUSTOMER shall mean the owner of the premises receiving recycled water 

service. 
 
1-1.7 DEVELOPER shall mean a person, firm, corporation, partnership, or association 

who proposes to develop real property, or who subdivides real property for purposes 
of development. 

 
1-1.8 GENERAL MANAGER shall mean the General Manager of the Desert Water 

Agency. 
 
1-1.9 INSTALLATION CHARGE shall mean a charge levied on any premises for 

material, labor, and equipment to install recycled water system facilities. 
 
1-1.10 INTRACT or ONSITE shall mean that area which lies inside the peripheral 
 boundary of a subdivided area and/or a developed area. 
 
1-1.11 LOCAL AGENCY shall mean a city, county, or independent special district of the 

State of California. 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
2

1-1.12 LOT shall mean a parcel or that portion of a parcel of land which is delineated or 
described as a single integral unit of a parcel map. 

 
1-1.13 MAIN or RECYCLED WATER MAIN shall mean a recycled water pipeline and 

appurtenances controlled by the Agency and located in a street, alley, easement, 
thoroughfare, or right of way which is used to serve connections for individuals, 
premises, customers, and the general public. 

 
1-1.14 MAIN EXTENSION shall mean the installation of any Agency recycled water main 

and appurtenances either intract or offtract beyond the existing recycled water 
system. 

 
1-1.15 MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE shall mean a charge levied on any premises to 

cover costs for operating, maintaining and replacing the facilities providing recycled 
water service, and for the billing, collection, and administrative costs. 

 
1-1.16 OFFTRACT or OFFSITE shall mean that area which lies outside the peripheral 

boundary of a subdivided area and/or a developed area. 
 
1-1.17 PERSON shall mean any individual, firm, corporation, company, political 

subdivision, city, county, district, the State of California, or the United States of 
America, or any department or agency thereof.  The singular shall in each case 
include the plural. 

 
1-1.18 PREMISES shall mean any lot, property, or any building or other structure. 
 
1-1.19 PRIVATE PLUMBING shall mean the customer’s pipeline and appurtenances 

extending from a point designated by the Agency to the customer’s lake, pump 
building, water storage structure, surface impoundment, or irrigation system which 
receives recycled water. 

 
1-1.20 RECYCLED WATER is water which, as a result of treatment of municipal 

wastewater is suitable for a direct beneficial use or a controlled use that would not 
otherwise occur and is therefore considered a valuable resource. 

 
1-1.21 REGULATIONS shall mean the current edition of, and any amendments or 

revisions to, the Agency's Regulations Governing Recycled Water Service. 
 
1-1.22 REPLACEMENT CHARGE shall mean a charge on any premises covering 

material, labor, and equipment to replace a service connection or portions thereof 
including, but not limited to, meter boxes, valve covers, extensions, and valve lids. 

 
1-1.23 SERVICE AREA shall mean that area for which the Agency provides recycled 

water service. 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
3

1-1.24 SERVICE CONNECTION shall mean that service piping between a recycled water 
main and the customer’s private plumbing. 

 
1-1.25 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS shall mean the current edition of the Agency’s 

Recycled Water System Construction and Operating Specifications. 
 
1-1.26 SUBDIVISION shall mean the division of any improved or unimproved land, shown 

on the latest equalized county assessment roll as a unit or as contiguous units, for the 
purpose of sale, lease, or financing, whether immediate or future, except for leases 
of agricultural land for agricultural purposes.  SUBDIVISION includes a 
condominium project or an apartment complex. 

 
1-2 Other Definitions:  Words or terms not defined above shall be defined in accordance 

with the Glossary - Water and Waste Water Control Engineering prepared by the 
American Public Health Association and the Water Pollution Control Federation. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
4

SECTION 2 - AUTHORITY 
 
 
2-1 General Authority:  The General Manager may prescribe and enforce rules and 

procedures not in conflict or inconsistent with existing regulations to implement the 
application, administration, interpretation, and enforcement of these Regulations. 

 
2-2 Revision of Fees and Charges:  The Board may from time to time by motion, 

resolution, or ordinance add, fix, alter, change, amend, or revise any fees or charges 
for facilities and services. 

 
2-3 Authority of Inspectors:  The General Manager or his duly authorized 

representatives and/or employees of the Agency shall be permitted to enter upon all 
premises to which recycled water service is being provided for the purpose of 
determining the size, depth, grade, location, and condition of any recycled water 
facility and to determine possible hazards relating to the health, safety, and welfare 
of the people throughout the Agency’s recycled water system in accordance with 
these Regulations. 

 
2-4 Recycled Water Service:  The Agency provides recycled water service as directed 

by the General Manager.  Property owners within the Agency who use potable water 
for non-potable uses, including but not limited to cemeteries, golf courses, parks, 
highway landscape areas and industrial use, and for whom recycled water is available 
at a reasonable cost, are required to use recycled water in lieu of potable water for 
such purposes pursuant to California Water Code Section 13550. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
5

SECTION 3 – RECYCLED WATER SERVICE 
 
 
3-1 General Provisions: 
 
3-1.1 Shortage of Recycled Water Supply and Interruption of Service:  The Agency 

shall attempt to furnish and deliver a continuous and sufficient supply of recycled 
water to the customer, and to avoid any shortage or interruption of delivery of same.  
However, the Agency will not be liable for interruption, shortage, or insufficiency of 
supply, or any loss or damage occasioned thereby.  The Agency cannot assure a 
continuous, uninterrupted supply of recycled water. 

 
3-1.2 Right to Temporarily Suspend Service:  The Agency, whenever necessary for any 

reason, shall have the right to suspend temporarily the delivery of recycled water.  In 
such cases, the Agency will attempt to provide a reasonable notice thereof, as 
circumstances may permit.   

 
3-1.3 Recycled Water Pressure Conditions: 
 
3-1.3.1 Acceptance:  The signing of an application for recycled water connections or for 

recycled water service shall constitute acceptance and consent to such conditions of 
pressure and service as may from time to time exist, and the applicant agrees to hold 
the Agency harmless from any and all injury or damage caused by, or arising out of 
low, high, or fluctuating pressure or interruptions of service. 

 
3-1.3.2 Higher Elevation Service Requests:  The Agency assumes no obligation to serve 

recycled water to elevations higher than its existing facilities can serve. Due to 
topography, and other causes, recycled water pressure is not uniform throughout the 
territory the system serves, and the Agency reserves the right to change to different 
pressures in various areas served.  Where premises are situated at such an elevation 
that they cannot be assured of a dependable supply from the distribution system of 
the Agency and/or where the desired rates of flow and/or pressures required by the 
particular operation to be conducted on the premises cannot be assured by the 
Agency, the applicant agrees to accept such recycled water service as the Agency is 
able to render from its distribution system; to construct, if necessary, and maintain at 
customer’s expense on customer’s premises, a reservoir and/or a booster pump of 
sufficient capacity to furnish an auxiliary supply of recycled water at such times as 
pressure in the Agency’s mains may be insufficient to supply the premises with 
recycled water; and to release the Agency from all claims for failure to furnish an 
adequate recycled water supply. 

 
3-1.4 Obstructing Meter Facility: Recycled water meters and appurtenances shall be the 

property of the Agency and normally are placed on public property or on Agency 
easements.  It shall be a violation of these Regulations to damage or interfere with 
them or to place obstructions on or over the meter and/or appurtenances. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
6

3-1.5 Changes in Customer’s Equipment:  Customers making any material change in the 
size, character, or extent of the equipment or operations utilizing recycled water 
service, or whose change in operation results in an increase in the use of recycled 
water, shall immediately give the Agency a written notice of the nature of the change. 

 
3-1.6 Notices:  Notices from the Agency to a customer will normally be given in writing, 

and either mailed or delivered at the last known address.  Where conditions warrant 
and in emergencies, the Agency may resort to notification either by telephone or 
messenger.  Notices from the customer to the Agency must be delivered in writing 
to the Agency’s office. 

 
3-1.7 Change in Distribution System:  Any person making improvements or changes 

which will result in cutting, refitting, relocating, raising, or lowering service 
connections, recycled water mains, meters, valves, or other parts of the recycled 
water system of the Agency, shall indemnify the Agency for all costs incurred by the 
Agency in making such changes.  When the location of a meter is changed at the 
customer’s request, the cost of making the change will be at the customer’s expense. 

 
3-1.8 Resale of Recycled Water:  A customer of the Agency may not enter into any 

contract or agreement to resell recycled water received from the Agency, nor shall 
the customer deliver or cause to be delivered, recycled water acquired from the 
Agency to premises other than those described in the application for service. 

 
3-1.9 Responsibility for Private Plumbing Facilities:  The Agency has no responsibility 

for the maintenance or operation of a customer’s recycled water system beyond the 
Agency’s meter or point of ownership by the Agency.  The customer shall be 
responsible and liable for his own private plumbing facilities. The customer shall, at 
his own risk and expense, furnish, install, and keep in good and safe condition all the 
equipment that may be required for receiving, controlling, applying, and utilizing 
recycled water.  The Agency shall not be responsible for any loss or damage caused 
by the improper care or wrongful act of the customer or any of his tenants, agents, 
employees, contractors, licensees, or permittees in installing or maintaining, using, 
operating, or interfering with such equipment.  The Agency shall not be responsible 
for damage to property caused by spigots, faucets, valves, faulty pipes, and other 
equipment that are open when water is turned on at the meter, either when the 
recycled water is turned on originally or when turned on after a temporary turn off.  
Customers having aquatic animals, plants, and landscaping or anything else requiring 
a continuous water supply should take all necessary action to prevent damage or the 
causing of injury as a result of the shutting off of the recycled water supply.   The 
customer agrees to hold the Agency harmless from any and all claims resulting from 
matters involving quantities, quality, time or occasion of delivery, or any other phase 
of the maintenance, operation, and service of a customer’s recycled water system. 

 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
7

3-1.10 Quick Closing Valves:  No person or customer shall install or use a quick closing 
valve or other device when such valve or device during its operation causes water 
hammer or an abrupt change of pressure in any Agency service connection or main.  
When such a condition exists, the customer shall be required to discontinue use of 
such valve or device immediately upon notification by the Agency.  Upon failure to 
comply with a notice of correction of such condition, the recycled water service shall 
be discontinued until the correction is made by a proper installation to eliminate all 
such water hammer or abrupt change of pressure which affects Agency service 
connections or mains, and the customer shall be responsible for payment of 
applicable fees for resumption of service. 

 
3-1.11 Ground Wire Attachments:  The Agency will hold the customer or any other 

responsible party liable for any damage to the Agency’s property which may be 
occasioned by the attachment of any ground wires to any plumbing which is, or may 
be connected to a service connection or main belonging to the Agency. 

 
3-2 Agency Consent:  No premises shall receive recycled water service from the 

Agency’s recycled water system without prior consent of the Agency.  No consent 
shall be given unless proper application has been made as provided in Section 4, and 
applicable charges have been paid in accordance with these Regulations.  The 
applicant is responsible for paying all costs and expenses incidental to the installation 
and maintenance of the customer’s own private plumbing facilities. 

 
3-3 Unauthorized Connections: 
 
3-3.1 Violations:  Customers are alerted to Civil Code Section 1882, which imposes triple 

damages for the illegal reconnection or diversion of water, and Penal Code Sections 
624 and 625, which make it a crime to tamper with water facilities.  The following 
shall constitute a violation of these Regulations and may result in additional charges 
by the Agency as well as any other civil or criminal actions imposed or authorized 
by law. 

 
3-3.1.1 Connections:  To tap or make any connection to the Agency’s recycled water mains. 
 
3-3.1.2 Wasting Recycled Water:  To cause or permit the waste of recycled water from the 

Agency’s recycled water system or to maintain, or cause or permit to be maintained 
any leaky outlets, apparatus, or plumbing fixtures through which recycled water is 
permitted to run to waste. 

 
3-3.1.3 Activating Service by Customer:  Turning on the recycled water supply or 

permitting or causing it to be turned on without first having made proper application 
and having paid all required fees and charges is prohibited.  Any violator will be held 
liable for all charges and damages as a result of unauthorized activation of recycled 
water service, which charges and damages may be tripled as authorized by law and 
recycled water service shall be discontinued until the above charges and damages are 
paid in full. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
8

3-3.2 Responsibility for Private Plumbing:  The Agency assumes no responsibility for 
the delivery of recycled water through private plumbing or for any damage resulting 
from the operation of same. 

 
3-4 Damage to Agency Facilities:  When recycled water is used or wasted due to a line 

break or other system impairment, the person causing the break or impairment shall 
pay all costs incurred by the Agency in repairing such damage, including staff and 
overhead costs and all direct and indirect costs incurred by the Agency.  When the 
line break or system impairment creates an emergency condition, the minimum 
billing shall be $500 because of the necessary, intangible and indirect costs of all 
such emergencies to the Agency and its recycled water customers. 

 
3-5 Notification of Change of Ownership:  It shall be the duty of every owner signing 

an application for recycled water service to notify the Agency of any change in the 
ownership of said premises at least two business days prior to such change.  Every 
applicant shall be liable for the recycled water furnished pursuant to such application 
until the Agency receives written notice to cancel such service.  Upon discovery of 
ownership change, recycled water service will be discontinued unless the subsequent 
owner makes arrangements with the Agency to continue service. 

 
3-6 Access to Premises:  The Agency’s duly authorized agents shall at all reasonable 

times have the right to enter the customer’s premises for any purpose properly 
connected with its operations. 

 
3-7 Responsibility: The Agency’s responsibility ends at the customer’s side of the meter, 

or in the case of other special installations, at the point where the Agency’s facilities 
end. 

 
3-8 Ownership: All service connections and meters shall remain at all times the 

property of the Agency.  
 
3-9 Maintenance and Replacements:  All service connections and meters shall be 

maintained, repaired, and replaced by the Agency when rendered unserviceable 
through normal wear and tear; provided that where replacements, repairs, and 
adjustments of any service and/or meter are rendered necessary by the act, 
negligence, or carelessness of the customer, the customer shall bear the expense. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
9

SECTION 4 – RECYCLED WATER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
 
4-1 Application: An applicant who desires recycled water service must complete an 

application form supplied by the Agency.  Each applicant for recycled water service 
may be required to establish credit in accordance with Section 8. 

 
4-2 Premises To Be Served:  The applicant shall describe the premises to be served, and 

only the premises so specified will be connected to the Agency’s recycled water 
system.   

 
4-3 Division of Property:  Whenever property having a service connection is divided 

into two or more parcels, the existing service connection shall serve the parcel which 
it directly enters, and new service connections shall be required for each of the 
remaining parcels. 

 
4-4 Approval of Drawings:   Service connections made to the Agency’s existing 

recycled water mains for any premises shall be installed only by the Agency.  A 
developer may be allowed to install service connections to those mains installed by 
the developer prior to acceptance by the Agency.  All proposed service connections 
shall require recycled water improvement drawings and shall depict the proposed 
facilities.  All drawings and specifications shall substantially conform to the 
Agency’s Standard Specifications and shall be submitted to the Agency in advance 
of construction for prior approval by the Agency. 

 
4-5 Licensed Contractors:  Only duly authorized and licensed contractors, or 

employees or agents of the Agency shall be permitted to install recycled water 
facilities. 

 
4-6 Service Size:   The Agency reserves the right to determine the size of the service 

connection. 
 
4-7 Service Connection Location:  Where practicable, the Agency will install the 

service connection at a location selected by the applicant, but the Agency reserves 
the right to determine the location in relation to boundaries of the premises to be 
served.  Customarily, a service connection will terminate at a point behind and 
adjacent to the curb in streets or adjacent to the property line where no curb exits.  In 
locations where the applicant’s premises do not directly abut on a public 
thoroughfare, the Agency, at its option, may provide a service connection of 
conventional length terminating at some practicable location on public property or 
on Agency-owned easement, and the applicant has the responsibility of connecting 
thereto.  The applicant’s private plumbing connecting to the Agency’s service 
connection should not be installed until the service connection is installed.  In the 
event the applicant’s private plumbing is installed prior to the time the service 
connection is installed, and its location does not correspond with that of the service 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
10

connection, then the applicant must bear the additional cost of connecting the 
applicant’s private plumbing to the Agency’s service connection. 

  
4-8 Cost of Installation:  The Agency will permit the installation of recycled water 

service connections to the applicant’s premises at the applicant’s expense in 
accordance with Section 6-1. 

 
4-9 Appurtenances: 
 
4-9.1 Valves:  Each service connection shall have a meter isolation valve on the inlet side 

of the meter for exclusive use by the Agency in controlling the use of the recycled 
water through the service connection, meter, flow control valve, and a meter isolation 
valve on the outlet side of the meter.  If Agency facilities are damaged by the 
customer, the Agency shall provide for all repairs and the customer shall be 
responsible or all replacement and/or repair costs.  

 
4-9.2 Meters:  All recycled service connections shall be metered.  Customarily, meters 

will be installed in public property adjacent to the curb or property line, but, at the 
option of the Agency, meters may be installed on the customer’s premises in an 
appropriate housing.  No rent or other charge will be paid by the Agency for a meter 
located on the customer’s property.  Meters will be sealed by the Agency at the time 
of installation, and no seal shall be altered or broken except by authorized employees 
or agents of the Agency.  If a meter seal is altered or a meter is damaged by a 
customer, the Agency shall have the right to charge the customer for the replacement 
of the meter, and may triple the charges when authorized by law. 

 
4-9.3 Cost of Installation: The cost of installing the meter and all appurtenances shall 

be borne by the customer and shall be in accordance with Section 6-1. 
 
4-10 Plan Checking:  The Agency will review and check the drawings for service 

connections where main extensions are not required at the applicant’s expense as 
provided in Section 6-8. 

 
4-11 Inspection of Connections:  Every recycled water service connection installed by 

other than the Agency shall be subject to inspection in accordance with Section 6-9.  
The Agency may have an inspector in attendance at all times during the actual work. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
11

SECTION 5 – MAIN EXTENSIONS 
 
 
5-1 General Provisions: 
 
5-1.1 Individual Extensions:  The Agency will permit extension of its recycled water 

mains and service connections to individual’s premises at the individual’s expense, 
subject to the Agency’s requirements and conditions. 

 
5-1.2 Agency Ownership:  Any such facilities which do not constitute private plumbing 

will be the sole property of the Agency upon acceptance by the Agency. Before 
service is provided for permanent use, the applicant shall execute any and all 
documents required by the Agency to vest title to those facilities in the Agency. 

 
5-1.3 Specifications:  The size, type, quality of materials, and the actual construction will 

be done in accordance with the Agency’s Standard Specifications and approved 
drawings.   Construction shall be performed by a contractor acceptable to the Agency, 
or by the Agency itself with its own forces.    The installation of the main extension 
will be under the inspection by and subject to the approval of the Agency. 

 
5-1.4 Costs:  Adjustment of any difference between the estimated cost and the actual cost 

of any main extension constructed hereunder will be made as provided for in Section 
6-2. 

 
5-1.5 Feasibility:    The right is reserved, as the Agency may require, to determine the 

economic and/or engineering feasibility of any main extension and the Agency will 
not approve extensions for which feasibility is negative or uncertain as determined 
by the Agency in its sole discretion. 

 
5-1.6 Location:  Main extensions are to be installed in conjunction with proposed street 

improvements to the premises whenever possible.  Main extensions will be located 
in streets, in easements provided to the Agency by the applicant or in easements 
obtained by the Agency, or in property deeded to the Agency.  Prior to installing a 
main extension, the applicant shall provide the Agency with such easements or deeds 
as may be necessary or reasonably appropriate to the operation thereof. The Agency 
will not be required to make extensions where street grades have not been brought to 
those established by public authority. 

 
5-1.7 Agency Right to Allow Connections:  The Agency shall have the right at any time 

to allow other users to connect to the Agency’s recycled water system at any location, 
whether built by the Agency or by another party and transferred to the Agency, 
subject to payment of such fees as may be required by agreement or by resolution of 
the Board. 

 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
12

5-1.8 Minimum Sizing:  The Agency will not permit a main extension of less than eight 
inches in diameter unless approved in advance by the Agency. 

 
5-1.9 Agency Right to Design and Construct:  The Agency reserves the right to design 

and construct any recycled water facilities which will become part of the Agency’s 
system. The cost of said facilities shall be borne by the applicant including, but not 
limited to design, materials and installation. 

 
5-2 Types of Extensions: 
 
5-2.1 General: 
  
5-2.1.1 Offtract Improvements:  If offtract improvements are required to serve the 

applicant’s intract improvements, the cost of all required facilities shall be borne by 
the applicant including, but not limited to, design, materials and installation. 

 
5-2.2 By Agency:  The Agency, at its option, may extend its recycled water system to the 

applicant’s premises at the applicant’s expense.  The applicant shall pay the Agency 
a deposit equal to the estimated cost of the main extension, as determined by the 
Agency. Said deposit shall be used to compensate the Agency and/or any contractors 
and suppliers engaged by the Agency in the installation of the main extension.  
Within 60 days after the cost of the main extension has been determined, any 
difference between the cost and the deposit shall be paid by or refunded to the 
applicant.  The Agency will not be required to pay interest on the deposit.  Where 
two or more applicants apply for service from the same main extension, the Agency 
may allocate the costs proportionately. 

 
5-2.3 By Applicant:  The applicant shall furnish security bond to the Local Agency to 

guarantee the installation of the main extension in the amount equal to the estimated 
cost thereof as determined by the Agency.  The applicant will be required to enter 
into a written agreement with the Agency for the construction and installation of 
required facilities and deposit with the Agency a sum of money equal to twenty 
percent of the estimated construction costs as determined by the Agency for the 
purpose of covering the cost of inspection and incidentals. The mains and 
appurtenances shall be installed by a contractor holding a valid California 
Contractor’s license in accordance with the provisions of Division 3, Chapter 9, of 
the Business and Professions Code of the State of California, or any amendments 
thereto.  As used in this Section, the word “applicant” shall be deemed to include the 
word “subdivider.” 

 
5-3 Inspection:  The Agency will provide inspection of the main extension at the 

applicant’s expense as provided in Section 6-9. 
 
5-4 Plan Checking:  The Agency will review and check the drawings for the main 

extension prior to approval at the applicant’s expense as provided in Section 6-8. 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
13

5-5 Design Review:  The Agency will perform design review for tentative projects on an 
actual cost basis.  An estimate will be prepared by the Agency prior to performing 
said review in accordance with Section 6-10. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
14

SECTION 6 – FEES AND CHARGES 
 
 
6-1 Service Connections and Meter Installations:  Each applicant shall pay to the 

Agency charges for the installation of metered recycled water service connections 
then in effect as established by resolution of the Board. 

 
6-1.1 Time of Payment:  Recycled Water Service Connection and Meter Installation 

Charges shall be paid to the Agency prior to the provision of recycled water service. 
 
6-1.2 Meter Installations:  Charges for meter installations shall be based on the size and 

location of the meter and the actual installation cost plus any applicable overheads 
required to provide adequate service. 

 
6-1.3 Backup Facility Charges:  Every applicant for a recycled water service connection 

shall, in addition to all other charges, pay a Backup Facility Charge based on the size 
of the applicant’s metered connection. 

 
 The purpose of the Backup Facility Charge is to raise a portion of the funds required 

by the Agency to develop recycled water supplies and construct storage and 
distribution facilities.  The Backup Facility Charge shall also apply to existing 
metered service connections for which increased delivery capability is requested and 
larger service connections and meters are installed.  In such event, the charge shall 
apply to the difference in service and delivery capacity between the new meter and 
the old meter which is being replaced. 

 
6-1.3.1 Exemption:  The Backup Facility Charge may be reduced or eliminated where 

certain recycled water improvement facilities constructed will be required of an 
applicant.    The reduction or elimination will be no greater than the value of the 
constructed facilities as determined by the Agency’s General Manager, whose 
decision will be final. 

 
6-1.4 Flow Control Valve Installation:  Charges will be collected for the installation of 

flow control valves and all appurtenances.  The charge will be determined in 
accordance with the size of the flow control valve required and actual installation 
cost and any applicable overheads required to provide adequate service. 

 
6-1.5 Outlet Valve:  Charges will be collected for installation of an outlet valve.  The 

charge shall be based on the size and actual installation cost and any applicable 
overheads required to provide adequate service. 

 
6-1.6 Service Connection Installations:  Charges will be collected for the installation of 

service connections.  Charge shall be based on the size and actual installation cost 
and any applicable overheads required to provide adequate service. 

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
15

6-1.6.1 Exemption:  A developer who installs recycled water facilities in accordance with 
Section 5-2.3 shall not be charged a Service Connection Charge for those service 
connections that developer installs. 

 
6-2 Adjustable Funds for Meter Installation:  A charge will be collected for 

installation of service connections.  An estimate shall be prepared by the Agency, 
and upon payment of the amount of said estimate by the applicant, the work shall be 
scheduled.  Adjustable funds are estimates only, subject to any price change and open 
to final accounting.  Any monies remaining above actual costs will be returned to the 
applicant within 60 days in accordance with Section 5-2.2 and any difference above 
estimates will be billed to applicant.  Any amounts billed to applicants are due and 
payable within ten days thereafter.  Should the same not be paid within ten days, the 
Agency shall discontinue recycled water service to the premises where the work was 
done and shall not furnish recycled water thereto until said bill, together with 
additional charge for restoration of service, is paid. 

 
6-3 Service Relocations:  A charge will be collected for the relocation of activated 

service connections and shall consist of the actual cost including labor, material, and 
equipment plus applicable overheads. Payment and necessary refund shall be in 
accordance with Section 6-2. 

 
6-4 Service Abandonments:  A charge will be collected for the abandonment of service 

connections and shall consist of the actual cost including labor, material, and 
equipment plus applicable overheads.  Payment and necessary refund shall be in 
accordance with Section 6-2. 

 
6-5 Change in Meter Sizes:  A charge will be collected for the installation of a larger 

meter at the request of the customer and upon Agency approval.  The charge will 
consist of the cumulative difference in meter charges between the smaller meter and 
the larger meter in accordance with Section 6-1.2, 6-1.3, and 6-1.4.  If, however, the 
installation of a larger meter requires a larger service connection installation, the 
charge to the customer shall include the full cost of the service connection in 
accordance with Section 6-2. 

 
6-6 Meter Test Deposits:  A deposit will be required to cover the reasonable cost of a 

meter test and set by resolution of the Board. 
 
6-7 Replacements:  A charge will be collected for the replacement of service 

connections or portions thereof including, but not limited to, meter boxes, valve 
covers, extensions, and valve lids.  The specific amounts of such charges and the 
time of payment by the customer shall be determined by the Agency and may include 
a reasonable minimum. 

 
6-8 Plan Check Fees:  Plan Check Fees are established by resolution of the Board and 

shall be charged for the Agency’s services in checking the plans for required recycled 
water facilities. 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
16

6-9 Inspection Fees:  The Agency shall provide inspection at the applicant’s expense at 
the applicable hourly rate paid by the Agency for an inspector plus approved 
administrative and general charges. 

 
6-10 Design Review Fees:  Design Review Fees are established by resolution of the Board 

and shall be charged for the Agency’s services in analyzing the recycled water system 
requirements for proposed developments. 

 
6-11 Restoration of Services:  A charge to be set by resolution of the Board will be 

collected for restoring service that has been discontinued. 
 
6-12 Development Review Charge:  Development Review Charges are established by 

resolution of the Board and shall be charged for the Agency’s service in the 
preparation of will serve letters, developer bond amounts, and response to initial 
studies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
17

SECTION 7 – MONTHLY CHARGES 
 
 
7-1 Metered Services:  For all metered service, the charges for service shall consist of 

“Monthly Service Charge,” “Quantitative Charge,” and “Zone Pumping Charge” for 
recycled water delivered. 

 
7-1.1 Monthly Service Charges:  The monthly charge for all types or classes of service 

shall be determined by the size of the meter and shall be set by resolution of the 
Board or by mutual agreement. 

 
7-1.2 Quantitative Charges: The quantitative charge for all metered recycled water used 

for all purposes shall be set by resolution of the Board or by mutual agreement. 
 
7-1.3 Flow Control Valves:  Monthly Service Charges as set by resolution of the Board 

will be collected for testing and necessary minor repairs of each valve. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
18

SECTION 8 – CREDIT POLICY 
 
 
8-1 Establishing Credit:  Recycled water service, in all cases, will be kept in the name 

of the property owner.  Each applicant for recycled water service will be required to 
establish credit to the satisfaction of the Agency before service will be rendered.  
Owner’s credit will be deemed established with no deposit required, if the new owner 
can provide proof of ownership for the property to be serviced, and/or the owner has 
had previous service within the Agency service area during the past two years and 
maintained an account history where service has not been discontinued for 
nonpayment for 12 consecutive months. 

 
8-2 Amount of Deposit:  Where credit cannot be established pursuant to Sections 8-1, a 

deposit shall be required and shall be determined based on meter size.  The minimum 
deposit shall be set by resolution of the Board. 

 
8-3 Application of Deposit:  Deposits shall be held for one year.  Upon the completion 

of one year’s continuous service, during which time service had not been 
discontinued for nonpayment, the deposit shall be applied to the recycled water 
account.  If service is discontinued for nonpayment, the deposit shall remain with the 
Agency for 2 years from the date of reconnection of service after being disconnected 
for non-payment or until service is ordered discontinued by the applicant. 

 
 The deposit, less the amount of any unpaid recycled water bills, will be refunded 

without interest upon discontinuance of service by request of the applicant. 
 
 Refundable deposits may be forfeited to the Agency, as provided by law, if 

unclaimed by the depositor within three years from the date service is discontinued. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
19

SECTION 9 – DISCONTINUANCE AND RESTORATION OF SERVICE 
 
 
9-1 Discontinuance of Service: 
 
9-1.1 Agency Initiated:  The Agency has the right to discontinue service if a customer 

fails to comply with these Regulations or any other rule, regulation, ordinance, or 
resolution of the Agency.  Under such circumstances, the Agency will make a 
reasonable effort to notify the customer prior to discontinuance of service. However, 
such notice shall not be required when the noncompliance, violation, or infraction by 
the customer results, or is likely to result, in a dangerous or unsanitary condition on 
the premises, or in the recycled water system, or elsewhere.   

 
 Except as otherwise provided above, prior to discontinuing service for reasons other 

than non-payment (delinquency), the Agency will give the customer a notice in 
writing specifying the reason or reasons why service may be discontinued and 
granting an opportunity to be heard within five days of receipt of said notice.  A copy 
of the notice will also be sent to the service address if different from the billing 
address.  If the customer or occupant fails or refuses to comply with the notice or 
fails to request an opportunity to be heard within a period of five days after 
presentation of the notice, then the Agency may discontinue service to the customer.  
If the person requests the opportunity to be heard and is heard, the Agency will 
thereafter determine if service shall be continued. 

 
9-1.2 At Customer’s Request:  A customer may have service discontinued by notifying 

the Agency at least 2 business days in advance of the desired date of discontinuance.  
Service will only be discontinued on the Agency’s normal working days and during 
normal working hours unless approved by the Agency in advance. 

 
9-2 Restoration of Service: 
 
9-2.1 General Provisions:  A customer whose service has been discontinued may have it 

restored by making application and by paying applicable restoration of service 
charges in accordance with Section 6-11.   

 
9-2.2 Unauthorized Restoration:  It shall be a violation of these Regulations, and a crime, 

for any person to make an unauthorized reconnection to the Agency’s recycled water 
system once service to the premises has been discontinued in accordance with 
Section 3-3.1.3. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
20

SECTION 10 – METER READING, BILLING AND COLLECTION 
 
 
10-1 Meter Reading, and Billing: 
 
10-1.1 Rendering of Bills:  Bills for recycled water service shall be based upon monthly 

meter reading and monthly billings. 
 
10-1.2 Proration of Bills:  The charges applicable to opening periods, closing bills, and 

bills rendered for periods corresponding to less than one month will be computed as 
follows: 

 
 The amount of the minimum charge and the quantity allowed therefore, in each of 

several quantity rate blocks, will be prorated on the basis of the ratio of the number 
of days in the period that service is provided to the number of days in an average 
billing period.  The measured quantity of usage will be applied to such prorated 
amounts and quantities. 

 
10-1.3 Payment of Bills:  During each month, the Agency shall mail a statement covering 

charges for all recycled water received by the customer during the preceding month.  
Charges shall be due and payable upon receipt of the statement.  If it is necessary for 
the Agency to visit the premises to collect payment, a collection fee to be determined 
by the General Manager will be added to the amount owing. Any check or electronic 
form of payment submitted for payment of recycled water service which is not 
honored and has been returned by the bank shall be subject to a return payment fee.  
Such checks/payments shall be replaced by the customer with cash or money order, 
including the returned payment fee as determined by the Agency, in order to avoid a 
discontinuance of recycled water service. 

 
10-1.4 Delinquent Accounts:  The bill for recycled water service shall be delinquent if not 

paid within 30 days after billing.  When delinquency occurs, a final notice will be 
mailed to the billing address.  If payment has not been received 15 days after a final 
notice has been issued, the service address, if different from the billing address, will 
be tagged 48 hours in advance of scheduled turn off to give the customer opportunity 
to pay the outstanding account.  If customer does not pay the outstanding account or 
make arrangements for payment by the date of scheduled turn off, then service may 
be discontinued without further notice. 

 
 Service shall not be restored to the premises until all charges outstanding must be 

paid including fees, if any, have been paid in full. An owner whose service has been 
discontinued for nonpayment of bills, or whose deposit shall have been applied in 
whole or in part to the payment of any bills, will be required to reestablish credit by 
a cash deposit in accordance with Section 8-1.   

 
 A customer who has a delinquency for any premises served by the Agency may not 

receive recycled water service, water service, or sewer service on another premise 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
21

until all delinquencies, including fees, are paid in full.  Additionally, when a service 
has been terminated for nonpayment, all charges may be transferred to another 
account held in the sole name of the same owner.  This account will become 
delinquent if payment is not made within 15 days from the date of delinquency 
transfer, and will be subject to turnoff without further notice. The Agency may file 
liens against the property or any other properties owned by the delinquent customer 
within the State of California to enforce collection of delinquent accounts. 

 
10-2 Meter Test at Customer’s Request: 
 
10-2.1 General Provisions:  A customer may request the Agency test the meter serving the 

premises.  The Agency will require the customer to deposit an amount for such test 
in accordance with Section 6-6.  The deposit will be returned if the meter is found to 
register more than two percent fast.  The Agency shall require the customer’s 
presence when the test is conducted.  A written report of the test will be available to 
the customer. 

 
10-3 Adjustment of Bills for Meter Error: 
 
10-3.1 General Provisions:  When a meter is found to be out of order, the charge for 

recycled water will be based, at the option of the Agency, on one of the following: 
 
 The average monthly consumption for the three preceding months during which the 

meter is know to have registered correctly, or; 
 
 An estimate of consumption based either upon the customer’s prior use during the 

same season of the year or upon a reasonable comparison with the use of other 
customers receiving the same class of service during the same period and under 
similar circumstances and conditions, or; 

 
 The consumption as registered by a substitute meter, or; 
 
 In accordance with Section 10-3.3. 
 
10-3.2 Meter Reading Inaccessibility:  When a meter is covered or otherwise inaccessible 

so that it cannot be read, an average bill will be rendered and accumulated errors, if 
any, will be adjusted when the meter is first thereafter read. 

 
10-3.3 Adjustment Based on Meter Test:  If a meter tested in accordance with Section 10-

2 is found to be registering more than five percent fast, another meter will be installed 
and the Agency will refund to the customer the meter test deposit plus the amount of 
the overcharge based on corrected meter readings for the period the meter was in use, 
but not to exceed a period of four months immediately proceeding the request for the 
meter test. 

 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
22

 When, upon testing, a meter is found to be registering more than 5 percent slow, the 
Agency may bill the customer for the amount of the undercharge based on corrected 
meter readings for the period the meter was in service but not to exceed a period of 
two months immediately preceding the request for the meter test.  The meter test 
deposit will be retained by the Agency to cover the testing of the meter. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
23

SECTION 11 – CROSS CONNECTIONS 
 
 
11-1 General Provisions:  There shall be no connections installed, located, maintained, 

or operated between the recycled water supply system of the Agency, including its 
appurtenant mains, pipes, fixtures and equipment, and any other water supply system 
which might cause contamination or pollution of the water and physical parts of the 
Agency’s water system.  The Agency shall have the right to discontinue the supply 
of recycled water to the premises where this condition exits. 

 
11-2 Protection from Cross Connections and Backflow:  Water service connections 

shall be protected from the hazards of cross connection and backflow in accordance 
with the regulations of the California State Department of Public Health, the County 
of Riverside, this Agency, or any other provision of law. 

 
11-3 Installation and Maintenance of Devices:  Flow control devices of an approved 

type shall be installed and maintained at the expense of the customer in accordance 
with Sections 6-1.4 for installation and 7-1.3 for monthly charges. 

 
11-4 Discontinuance of Service:  The service of recycled water to any premises may be 

discontinued by the Agency without notice if unprotected cross connections exist on 
the premises, or if a defect is found in an installed backflow protection device, or if 
a backflow protection device has been removed or bypassed, and service will not be 
restored until such conditions or defects are corrected.  Discontinuance of service 
may be summary, immediate, and without notice whenever, in the judgment of the 
General Manager, such action is necessary to protect the potable water supply or the 
safety of the potable water system, and the Agency’s determination shall be final and 
conclusive. 

 
11-5 Testing Charges:  All flow control devices shall be tested at least once a year, or 

more often in those instances where successive inspections indicate repeated failure. 
The defective devices shall be repaired, overhauled or replaced at the expense of the 
customer.  A charge shall be added to the recycled water bill for testing and minor 
repairs. Charges for repairs amounting to $100 or more, including applicable 
overheads, will be billed to the customer separately. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
24

SECTION 12 – ENFORCEMENT 
 
 
12-1 General Provisions:  The following procedures are established for enforcement of 

these Regulations, not for penalty.  All customers shall be held strictly responsible 
for any and all acts of tenants, agents, or employees, and those customers shall be 
liable for any expense, loss, or damage incurred by the Agency, all pursuant to these 
Regulations. 

 
12-2 Violations: 
 
12-2.1 Written Notice:  Any person found in violation of these Regulations will be notified 

pursuant to Section 9-1.1, except when immediate discontinuance of service is 
required as provided for in that Section. 

 
12-2.2 Corrective Action:  Upon notification by the Agency of any violation of these 

Regulations, the customer shall immediately take whatever corrective action may be 
necessary. 

 
12-3 Discontinuance of Service:  The Agency may discontinue service for any violation 

of the Regulations as provided in Section 9-1 and 11-4. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
25

SECTION 13 – SEVERABILITY 
 
 
13-1 Severability of Regulations:  These Regulations and the various sections, parts and 

clauses thereof, are hereby declared to be separable.  If any part, section, subsection, 
paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of these Regulations is for any reason held to 
be unconstitutional or unlawful, such provision shall not affect the validity of the 
remaining portions of these Regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
26

SECTION 14 – WASTEWATER RECLAMATION MEMORANDUM OF        
UNDERSTANDING 

 
 
14-1 General Provisions:  Nothing in this ordinance should be interpreted or construed 

to modify, alter, or supersede any portion or terms of the Wastewater Reclamation 
Memorandum of Understanding between the City of Palm Springs and the Desert 
Water Agency dated June 12, 1985. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

ORD-RES/Ordinance No 67 – Recycled Water 
27

SECTION 15 - ADOPTION 
 
 
15-1 Effective Date:  Except as otherwise provided herein, this Ordinance becomes 

effective on July 1, 2017. 
 
15-2 Previous Ordinance Repealed:  Ordinance No. 60 is hereby repealed. 
 
 
 ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2017. 
 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      James Cioffi, President 
      Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



 
 
 

 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 68 
DESERT WATER AGENCY 

 
 
 
 
 
 

REGULATIONS GOVERNING 
SEWER SERVICE 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE:  July 1, 2017 



 

 

REGULATIONS GOVERNING SEWER SERVICE 
 

 
SECTION  1 DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
  1-1 Agency Definitions ........................................................... 1 
  1-2 Other Definitions .............................................................. 4 
 
SECTION 2 AUTHORITY 
  
  2-1 General Authority ............................................................. 5 
  2-2 Revision of Fees and Charges ........................................... 5  
  2-3 Authority of Inspectors ..................................................... 5 
 
SECTION 3 SEWER SERVICE 
 
  3-1 Required Service Connection ........................................... 6 
  3-2 Changes in Customer’s Equipment ................................... 6 
  3-3 Changes in Collection System .......................................... 6 
  3-4 Agency Consent ................................................................ 6 
  3-5 Damage to Agency Facilities ............................................ 6 
  3-6 Unauthorized Connections ................................................ 7 
  3-7 Responsibility for Private Plumbing Facilities ................. 7 
  3-8 Notification of Change of Ownership ............................... 7 
  3-9 Access to Premises ............................................................ 7 
  3-10 Responsibility ................................................................... 7 
  3-11 Ownership ......................................................................... 7 
  3-12 Maintenance ...................................................................... 7 
  3-13 Replacement ...................................................................... 8 
   
SECTION 4 SEWER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
  4-1 Application ........................................................................ 9 
  4-2 Premises to be Served ....................................................... 9 
  4-3 Division of Property .......................................................... 9 
  4-4 Separate Service Connections ........................................... 9 
  4-5 Approval of Drawings ...................................................... 9 
  4-6 Licensed Contractors ........................................................ 9 
  4-7 Street Lateral Size ............................................................. 9 
  4-8 Street Lateral Location ...................................................... 9 
  4-9 Installation ........................................................................ 10 
  4-10 Cost of Installation ............................................................ 10  
  4-11 Interceptors /Separators .................................................... 10 
  4-11.1 Interceptor / Separator Surcharge ..................................... 10 
  4-11.2 Interceptor / Separator Installation ................................... 10 
  4-12 Plan Checking ................................................................... 10 
  4-13 Inspection and Connection ................................................ 10 



 

 II

SECTION  5 SEWER EXTENSIONS 
 
  5-1 General Provisions ............................................................ 11 
  5-1.1 Individual Extensions ....................................................... 11 
  5-1.2 Agency Ownership ........................................................... 11 
  5-1.3 Specifications .................................................................... 11 
  5-1.4 Costs .................................................................................. 11 
  5-1.5 Feasibility .......................................................................... 11 
  5-1.6 Location ............................................................................ 11 
  5-1.7 Parallel Mains ................................................................... 11 
  5-1.8 Agency Right to Allow Connections ................................ 12 
  5-1.9 Minimum Sizing ............................................................... 12 
  5-1.10 Agency Right to Design and Construct ............................ 12 
  5-1.11 Separate Service Connections ........................................... 12 
  5-2 Types of Extensions .......................................................... 12 
  5-2.1 General .............................................................................. 12 
  5-2.1.1 Oversizing ......................................................................... 12 
  5-2.1.2 Offtract Improvements ...................................................... 12 
  5-2.1.2.1 Main Extension Refund Agreement ................................. 12 
  5-2.2 By Agency ........................................................................ 12 
  5-2.3 By Applicant ..................................................................... 13 
  5-3 Inspection .......................................................................... 13 
  5-4 Plan Checking ................................................................... 13 
  5-5 Design Review .................................................................. 13 
 
SECTION  6 FEES AND CHARGES 
 
  6-1 Capacity Charges .............................................................. 14 
  6-1.1 Time of Payment ............................................................... 14 
  6-2 Connection Charges (Front Footage Charge) ................... 14 
  6-2.1 Time of Payment ............................................................... 14 
  6-2.2 Exemption ......................................................................... 14 
  6-3 Plan Check Fees ................................................................ 14 
  6-4 Inspection Fees ................................................................. 14 
  6-5 Design Review Fees .......................................................... 14 
  6-6 Development Review Charge ........................................... 14 
 
SECTION 7 MONTHLY CHARGES 
 
  7-1 Monthly Service Charges .................................................. 15 
  7-1.1 Quantitative Charges ......................................................... 15 
  7-1.2 Treatment by Other Entities .............................................. 15 
  7-2 Interceptor / Separator Surcharge ..................................... 15 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 III

SECTION  8 CREDIT POLICY 
 
  8-1 Establishing Credit ............................................................ 16 
  
SECTION 9 DISCONTINUANCE AND RESTORATION OF SERVICE 
 
  9-1 Discontinuance of Service ................................................ 17 
  9-1.1 Agency Initiated ................................................................ 17 
  9-1.2 At Customer’s Request ..................................................... 17 
  9-2 Restoration of Service ....................................................... 17  
  9-2.1 General Provisions ............................................................ 17 
  9-2.2 Unauthorized Provisions ................................................... 17 
 
SECTION 10 BILLING AND COLLECTION 
 
  10-1 Rendering of Bills ............................................................. 18 
  10-2 Proration of Bills ............................................................... 18 
  10-3 Payment of Bills ................................................................ 18 
  10-4 Delinquent Accounts ......................................................... 18 
 
SECTION 11 REGULATIONS OF WASTE AND WATER 
 
  11-1 Discharges ......................................................................... 20 
  11-2 Admission of Prohibited Discharges ................................ 21 
  11-3 Pretreatment ...................................................................... 21 
  11-4 Industrial Wastes ............................................................... 22 
  11-5 Maintenance of Pretreatment Facilities ............................ 22 
  11-6 Monitoring ........................................................................ 22 
  11-6.1 Control Manhole ............................................................... 22 
  11-6.2 Sampling ........................................................................... 22 
  11-6.3 Interceptors / Separators ................................................... 22 
 
SECTION 12 ENFORCEMENT 
 
  12-1 General Provisions ............................................................ 23 
  12-2 Violations .......................................................................... 23 
  12-2.1 Written Notice ................................................................... 23 
  12-2.2 Corrective Action .............................................................. 23 
  12-3 Discontinuance of Service ................................................ 23 
  12-4 Abatements ....................................................................... 23 
 
SECTION  13 SEVERABILITY 
 
  13-1 Severability of Regulations ............................................... 24 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 IV

SECTION  14 EFFLUENT TO COACHELLA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
  14-1 Provisions .......................................................................... 25 
  14-2 Plan Checks and Inspection .............................................. 25 
  14-3 Connections ...................................................................... 25 
  14-4 Bonds ................................................................................ 25 
  14-5 Transfer of Title ................................................................ 25 
  14-6 Sewer Capacity Charge ..................................................... 25 
  14-7 Operations and Maintenance ............................................ 25 
  14-8 Monthly Charges ............................................................... 25 
  14-8.1 District Charges ................................................................ 26 
  14-8.1.1 Monthly Service Charge ................................................... 26 
  14-8.1.2 “In Lieu of Taxes” Charge ................................................ 26 
  14-8.2 Agency Charges ................................................................ 26 
  14-8.2.1 Monthly Service Charge ................................................... 26 
  14-9 Termination ....................................................................... 26 
 
SECTION  15 EFFLUENT TO CITY OF PALM SPRINGS 
  
  15-1 Provisions .......................................................................... 27 
  15-2 Plan Checks and Inspection .............................................. 27 
  15-3 Connections ...................................................................... 27 
  15-4 Bonds ................................................................................ 27 
  15-5 Transfer of Title ................................................................ 27 
  15-6 Sewer Capacity Charge ..................................................... 27 
  15-7 Operations and Maintenance ............................................ 27 
  15-8 Monthly Charges ............................................................... 27 
  15-8.1 City Charges ..................................................................... 27 
  15-8.2 Agency Charges ................................................................ 28 
  15.9 Termination ....................................................................... 28 
 
SECTION  16 ADOPTION 
 
  16-1 Effective Date ................................................................... 29 
  16-2 Previous Ordinance Repealed ........................................... 29 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
1

REGULATIONS GOVERNING SEWER SERVICE 
 
 

SECTION 1 - DEFINITION OF TERMS 
 
 
1-1 AGENCY DEFINITIONS:  Whenever the words defined in this section, or 

pronouns used in their stead, occur in these Rules and Regulations, they shall have 
the meanings here given: 

 
1-1.1 AGENCY shall mean the Desert Water Agency organized and operated pursuant 

to the provisions of the Desert Water Agency Law, Stats.1961, Ch. 1069. 
 
1-1.2 APARTMENT shall mean any dwelling unit within a building containing three or 

more dwelling units with separate plumbing facilities, but shall not include any 
building commonly known as a hotel, motel, or condominium. 

 
1-1.3 APPLICANT shall mean an individual, partnership, corporation or agency which 

is the owner of the premises for which sewer service is being applied. 
 
1-1.4 BOARD shall mean the Board of Directors of the Desert Water Agency. 
 
1-1.5 BUILDING SEWER shall mean the customer’s pipeline extending from the 

customer’s house, building or structure, which receives waste discharge from the 
house, building, or structure and conveys it to the street lateral. 

 
1-1.6 CAPACITY CHARGE shall mean a charge levied on a premises for the purpose 

of providing treatment capacity in a waste water reclamation plant and for 
conveyance capacity in the sewer system. 

 
1-1.7 CITY shall mean the City of Palm Springs. 
 
1-1.8 CONDOMINIUM shall mean a unit of a development as defined in Section 1350 

of the Civil Code. 
 
1-1.9 CONNECTION CHARGE (Front Footage Charge) shall mean a charge levied 

by the Agency on any premises for the purpose of providing sewer service. 
 
1-1.10 CONTRACTOR shall mean any individual, firm, corporation, partnership, or 

association duly licensed to perform work by the State of California in connection 
with the installation of sewer facilities. 

 
1-1.11 CUSTOMER shall mean the owner of the premises receiving sewer service. 
 
1-1.12 DEVELOPER shall mean a person, firm, corporation, partnership, or association 

who proposes to develop real property, or who subdivides real property for 
purposes of development. 

 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
2

1-1.13 DISTRICT shall mean the Coachella Valley Water District.  
 
1-1.14 DUPLEX shall mean any building containing two dwelling units, excluding any 

building commonly known as a hotel, motel, apartment, or condominium. 
  
1-1.15 DWELLING UNIT shall mean a single family residence; each unit of a duplex, 

triplex or greater number of similar units; each unit of an apartment, condominium, 
motel, hotel, and each mobile home. 

 
1-1.16 EFFLUENT shall mean waste water or other liquid, partially or completely treated, 

or in its natural state, flowing out of a treatment plant, or associated basin or 
reservoir. 

 
1-1.17 EQUIVALENT DWELLING UNIT (EDU) shall mean a single family residence; 

each unit of a duplex, triplex, or a greater number of similar units; each unit of an 
apartment complex, condominium complex, and each mobile home.  Each 
recreational vehicle or travel trailer park space, and motel or hotel, shall constitute 
0.5 equivalent dwelling units.  Equivalent dwelling unit (EDU) for commercial use 
shall be based on actual water consumption or as determined by Agency. 

 
1-1.18 FIXTURE UNIT (FU) shall mean a unit value determined by the plumbing and 

fixture design for both the water supply and wastewater for each building. 
 
1-1.19 GENERAL MANAGER shall mean the General Manager of the Desert Water 

Agency. 
 
1-1.20 INDUSTRIAL WASTES shall mean industrial process wastes, including wastes 

from any producing, manufacturing, processing, or treatment process. 
 
1-1.21 INSTALLATION CHARGE shall mean a charge levied on any premises 

covering material, labor, and equipment for installing sewer system facilities. 
 
1-1.22 INTERCEPTOR / SEPARATOR SURCHARGE shall mean the charge 

established to provide inspection of an interceptor / separator as determined 
necessary. 

 
1-1.23 INTRACT or ONSITE shall mean that area which lies inside the peripheral 

boundary of a subdivided area and/or a developed area. 
 
1-1.24 LOCAL AGENCY shall mean a city, county, or city and county. 
 
1-1.25 LOT shall mean a parcel or that portion of a parcel of land which is delineated or 

described as a single integral unit of a subdivision or parcel map. 
 
1-1.26 MONTHLY SERVICE CHARGE shall mean a charge levied on any premises 

for the purpose of covering costs for operating, maintaining and replacing the 
facilities, providing sewer service, and for billing, collection, and administrative 
costs. 

 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
3

1-1.27 OFFTRACT or OFFSITE shall mean that area which lies outside the peripheral 
boundary of a subdivided area and/or a developed area. 

 
1-1.28 PERSON shall mean any individual, firm, corporation, company, political 

subdivision, city, county, district, the State of California, or the United States of 
America, or any department or agency thereof.  The singular shall in each case 
include the plural. 

 
1-1.29 PREMISES shall mean any lot, or property, or any building or other structure. 
 
1-1.30 PRIVATE PLUMBING shall mean the customer’s pipeline and appurtenances 

extending from a point designated by the Agency or at the point of connection to 
the Agency’s lateral to the customer’s house, building, or structure. 

 
1-1.31 REGULATIONS shall mean the current edition of, and any amendments or 

revisions to, the Agency's Regulations Governing Sewer Service. 
 
1-1.32 SERVICE AREA shall mean that area for which the Agency provides sewer 

service. 
 
1-1.33 SERVICE CONNECTION shall mean the same as STREET LATERAL. 
 
1-1.34 SEWAGE shall mean any untreated residential, commercial, or industrial 

wastewater or liquid introduced into the sewer system. 
 
1-1.35 SEWER SERVICE or SERVICE shall mean the furnishing of facilities for the 

collection, treatment and disposal of sewage, and all the administrative functions 
auxiliary thereto. 

 
1-1.36 SEWER SYSTEM shall mean the facilities for collection, treatment and disposal 

of sewage constructed by the Agency, maintained and operated by the Agency for 
the purpose of providing sewage service. 

 
1-1.37 SEWER MAIN or SEWER shall mean any sanitary sewage or treated industrial 

waste, or both, consisting of pipe and appurtenances including cleanouts and 
manholes for the collection of sewage and conveyance thereof. 

 
1-1.38 SEWER EXTENSION shall mean the installation of any sewer and 

appurtenances, either intract or offtract beyond the existing sewer system. 
 
1-1.39 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS shall mean the current edition of the Standard 

Specifications for the Construction of Sewer Systems of the Agency. 
 
1-1.40 STREET LATERAL shall mean that service piping between a sewer main and the 

customer’s private plumbing. 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
4

1-1.41 STREET SEWER shall mean that portion of any sewer main controlled by the 
Agency, located in a street, alley, easement, thoroughfare or right of way which is 
used for connections to serve individuals, premises, customers, and the general 
public. 

 
1-1.42 SUBDIVISION shall mean the division of any improved or unimproved land 

shown on the latest equalized county assessment roll as a unit or as contiguous 
units, for the purpose of sale, lease, or financing, whether immediate or future, 
except for leases of agricultural land for agricultural purposes.  SUBDIVISION 
includes a condominium project or an apartment project. 

 
1-1.43 WASTE WATER RECLAMATION PLANT shall mean any arrangement of 

devices and structures used for treating sewage. 
 
1-2 Other Definitions:  Words or terms not defined above shall be defined in 

accordance with the Glossary - Water and Waste Water Control Engineering 
prepared by the American Public Health Association and the Water Pollution 
Control Federation. 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
5

SECTION 2 - AUTHORITY 
 
 
2-1 General Authority:  The General Manager may prescribe and enforce rules and 

procedures not in conflict or inconsistent with existing regulations to implement the 
application, administration, interpretation, and enforcement of these Regulations. 

 
2-2 Revision of Fees and Charges:  The Board may from time to time, by motion, 

resolution, or ordinance, add, fix, alter, change, amend or revise any fees or charges 
for facilities and services. 

 
2-3 Authority of Inspectors:  The General Manager or his duly authorized 

representatives and/or employees of the Agency shall be permitted to enter upon all 
premises to which sewer service is being provided for the purpose of determining 
the size, depth, grade, location, and condition of any sewer facility, and to 
determine the location and discharge connections of plumbing fixtures; and 
inspection, observation, measurement, sampling, and testing of the quantity and 
nature of sewage being discharged to any sewer in accordance with the provisions 
of  these Regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
6

SECTION 3 – SEWER SERVICE 
 
 
3-1 Required Service Connection:  Upon providing a sewer in any area within the 

Agency’s service area, the Agency may declare the further maintenance or use of 
septic tanks or any other local means of sewage disposal in such area to be a public 
nuisance and may require all buildings to be connected with the sewer within 90 
days from the completion of such sewer or within 90 days after written notice.  In 
any event, the prevailing monthly sewer charge shall be imposed to all such 
developed properties at the expiration of the 90 day notice period.  A sewer will be 
deemed available if the main sewer has been constructed and is available for use in 
any public street, alley, or right of way within 100 feet of the building to be served. 

 
3-2 Changes in Customer’s Equipment:  Customers making any material change in 

the size, character or extent of the equipment or operations utilizing sewer service, 
or whose change in operation results in an increase in the discharge of wastewater, 
shall immediately give the Agency a written notice of the nature of the change. 

 
3-3 Changes in Collection System:  Any person making improvements or changes 

which will result in cutting, refitting, relocating, raising or lowering of street 
laterals, sewer mains or other parts of the sewer system by the Agency will be 
required to agree in writing to indemnify the Agency for all costs incurred by the 
Agency in making such changes.  When the location of a street lateral is changed 
at the customer’s request, the cost of making such change will be at the customer’s 
expense. 

 
3-4 Agency Consent:  No premises shall receive sewer service without prior consent 

of the Agency.  No consent shall be given unless proper application has been made 
as provided in Section 4, and applicable charges have been paid in accordance with 
these Regulations.  The applicant is responsible for paying all costs and expenses 
incidental to the installation and maintenance of the customer’s own private 
plumbing facilities. 

 
3-5 Damage to Agency Facilities:  When damage is due to a line break or other system 

impairment, the person causing the break or impairment shall pay all costs incurred 
by the Agency in repairing such damage, including staff and overhead costs.  In 
situations which in the discretion of the General Manager are emergencies, an 
additional charge in the amount of 100% of the above figure shall be imposed to 
attempt to recoup in behalf of the Agency and its sewer service customers all direct 
and indirect costs of such damage, including the threat to the public health and 
safety caused thereby.  In such emergency situations, the minimum billing shall be 
$500 because of the necessary, intangible and indirect costs of all such emergencies 
to the Agency and its sewer customers. 

 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
7

3-6 Unauthorized Connections:  It shall be a violation of these Regulations to alter, 
disturb, uncover, use, make any connections to, or openings into any street sewer 
or appurtenances thereto without first obtaining permission in writing from the 
Agency.  No person shall make a connection of roof downspouts, exterior 
foundation drains, areaway drains, air conditioning drains, swimming pool drains, 
or other sources of surface runoff or ground water to a street lateral which is 
connected directly or indirectly to a street sewer. 

 
3-7 Responsibility for Private Plumbing Facilities:  The Agency has no 

responsibility in the maintenance and operation of a customer’s sewer system 
beyond the point of ownership by the Agency.  The customer shall be responsible 
and liable for his own private plumbing facilities.  The customer shall, at his own 
risk and expense, furnish, install, and keep in good and safe condition all the 
equipment that may be required for discharging sewage.  The Agency shall not be 
responsible for any loss or damage caused by the improper care or wrongful act of 
the customer or of any of his tenants, agents, employees, contractors, licensees, or 
permittees in installing or maintaining, using, operating, or interfering with such 
equipment.  The Agency shall be kept whole and harmless at all times of any claims 
resulting from matters involving quantities, quality, time or occasion of service, or 
any other phase of the maintenance, operation, and service of a customer’s sewer 
system. 

 
3-8 Notification of Change of Ownership:  It shall be the duty of every owner signing 

an application for sewer service to notify the Agency of any change in the 
ownership of said premises at least two (2) business days prior to such change.  
Every applicant shall be liable for the sewer service furnished pursuant to such 
application until the Agency receives written notice to cancel such service.  Upon 
discovery of ownership change, sewer service will be discontinued unless the 
subsequent owner makes arrangements with the Agency to continue the service.  
Discontinuance of sewer service may require discontinuance of water service from 
the Agency. 

 
3-9 Access to Premises:  The Agency’s duly authorized agents shall at all reasonable 

times have the right to enter the customer’s premises for any purpose properly 
connected with its operations. 

 
3-10 Responsibility: The Agency’s responsibility ends at the customer connection to 

Agency facilities located within Agency or public right-of-way. 
 
3-11 Ownership:  All street laterals shall remain at all times the property of the Agency. 
 
3-12 Maintenance:  Street laterals located within an Agency or public right-of-way shall 

be maintained and repaired by the Agency.  Any expense caused to the Agency 
shall be charged to the customer whenever the act, negligence or carelessness of 
the customer results in the need for repair by the Agency.  If determined by Agency 
that customer’s responsibility begins at the wye connection of the lateral, 
maintenance and repairs to said lateral shall be performed by the customer. 

 
  



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
8

3-13 Replacement:  Street laterals within an Agency or public right-of-way shall be 
replaced by the Agency when rendered unserviceable through normal wear and 
tear, at the Agency’s expense.  Whenever the act, negligence, or carelessness of the 
customer results in the need for replacement of street laterals by the Agency, the 
expense of replacement will be charged to the customer.  In locations where the 
applicant’s premises do not directly abut on a public thoroughfare, the Agency shall 
not be responsible for replacement of that portion of the lateral that extends beyond 
the Agency or public right-of-way which shall be a portion of the customer’s private 
plumbing.  



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
9

SECTION 4 – SEWER SERVICE CONNECTIONS 
 
 
4-1 Application: An applicant who desires sewer service must complete an 

application form supplied by the Agency.  Each applicant for sewer service may be 
required to establish credit in accordance with Section 8. 

 
4-2 Premises To Be Served:  The applicant shall describe the premises to be served, 

and only the premises so specified will be connected to the sewer.  The Agency 
reserves the right to make separate connections to each and every unit, or to make 
a single connection to the entire premises. 

 
4-3 Division of Property:  Whenever property having a street lateral is divided into 

two or more parcels, the existing street lateral shall serve only the parcel which it 
directly enters, and new street laterals shall be required for each of the remaining 
parcels. 

 
4-4 Separate Service Connections:  A street lateral of size and material specified by 

the Agency shall be required for service to each lot or parcel of a subdivision. 
 
4-5 Approval of Drawings:  Every connection made to any sewer main from any 

premises shall be installed in accordance with the Agency’s Standard 
Specifications.  Sewer drawings will be required and they shall depict plan and 
profile views of proposed facilities.  All drawings and specifications shall 
substantially conform to the Agency’s Standard Specifications and shall be 
submitted to the Agency in advance of construction for prior approval by the 
Agency. 

 
4-6 Licensed Contractors:  Only duly authorized and licensed contractors, or 

employees or agents of the Agency shall be permitted to install sewer facilities. 
 
4-7 Street Lateral Size:   The Agency reserves the right to determine the size of the 

street lateral. 
 
4-8 Street Lateral Location:  Where practicable, the street lateral may be installed at 

a location selected by the applicant, but the Agency reserves the right to determine 
the location in relation to boundaries of the premises to be served.  Customarily, a 
street lateral will terminate at a point behind and adjacent to the curb in streets or 
adjacent to the property line where no curb exits.  In locations where the applicant’s 
premises do not directly abut on a public thoroughfare, the Agency, at its option, 
may approve the installation of a street lateral of conventional length terminating 
at some practicable location on public property or on an Agency-owned easement, 
and the applicant has the responsibility of connecting thereto.  In the event the 
applicant’s building sewer is installed prior to the time the street lateral is installed, 
and its location does not correspond with that of the street lateral, then the applicant 
must bear the additional cost of connecting the street lateral piping with the 
applicant’s building sewer. 

 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
10

4-9 Installation:  All street laterals to be installed by a developer shall be plugged.  
Connection to the building sewer is prohibited unless otherwise approved in writing 
by the Agency.  

 
4-10 Cost of Installation:  The Agency will permit the installation of street laterals to 

the applicant’s premises at the applicant’s expense. 
 
4-11 Interceptors / Separators:  All interceptors/separators (i.e. grease, oil, sand and 

lint traps) shall be installed in accordance with the applicable governmental and/or 
Agency requirements.  The applicant shall pay the cost of installation and 
maintenance.  The Agency may at any time inspect the installation and the 
operation of the facility and require the applicant to perform any maintenance 
necessary.  In all cases, the Agency shall be the final authority in determining the 
requirements of the installation and inspection of all interceptors/separators. 

 
4-11.1 Interceptor / Separator Surcharge:  The prevailing Interceptor/Separator 

Surcharge as provided for in Section 7-2 will be imposed on all premises required 
to install interceptors/separators. 

 
4-11.2 Interceptor / Separator Installation:  No interceptor/separator shall be installed 

without prior approval from the Agency.  Applicant shall notify the Agency two (2) 
business days prior to the start of installation and all installations shall be inspected 
by the Agency at the applicable hourly rate paid for an inspector by the Agency. 

 
4-12 Plan Checking:  The Agency will review and check the drawings for sewer service 

connections, where sewer main extensions are not required, at the applicant’s 
expense as provided in Section 6-3.  Plan Check Fees, as provided in Section 6-3, 
shall not apply to applicants for sewer service connections to single family 
residences (classified as R-1).  

 
4-13 Inspection and Connection:  Every connection made to any sewer main shall be 

subject to inspection in accordance with Section 6-4.  The Agency may have an 
inspector in attendance at all times during the actual work of connection. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
11

SECTION 5 – SEWER EXTENSIONS 
 
 
5-1 General Provisions: 
 
5-1.1 Individual Extensions:  The Agency will permit extension of its sewer mains and 

street laterals to individual’s premises at the individual’s expense subject to the 
Agency’s requirements and conditions. 

 
5-1.2 Agency Ownership:  Any such facilities which do not constitute private plumbing 

will be the sole property of the Agency upon acceptance by the Agency.  Before 
service is provided for permanent or temporary use, the applicant shall execute any 
and all documents required by the Agency to vest title to those facilities in the 
Agency. 

 
5-1.3 Specifications:  The size, type, quality of materials, and their actual construction 

will be done in accordance with the Agency’s Standard Specifications and the 
approved drawings.   Construction shall be performed by a contractor acceptable to 
the Agency or by the Agency itself with its own forces.  The installation of the 
sewer extension will be under the inspection of and subject to the approval of the 
Agency. 

 
5-1.4 Costs:  Adjustment of any difference between the estimated cost and the actual cost 

of any sewer extension constructed hereunder will be made as provided in Section 
5-2.2. 

 
5-1.5 Feasibility:  The right is reserved, as the interests of the Agency may require, to 

determine the economic and/or engineering feasibility of any sewer extension and 
the Agency will not approve extensions for which the feasibility is uncertain as 
determined by the Agency in its sole discretion. 

 
5-1.6 Location:  Sewer extensions will be required in all streets fronting the premises 

and to be installed in conjunction with proposed street improvements to the 
premises.  Sewer extensions will be located in streets, in easements provided to the 
Agency by the applicant, in easements obtained by the Agency, or in property 
deeded to the Agency.  Prior to installing a sewer extension, the applicant shall 
provide the Agency with such easements or deeds as may be necessary or 
reasonably appropriate to the operation thereof.  The Agency will not be required 
to make extensions where street grades have not been brought to those established 
by public authority. 

 
5-1.7 Parallel Mains:  Where the premises are located adjacent to a street exceeding 70 

feet in width, or a freeway, waterway, or railroad right of way, the Agency may 
elect to install a sewer main extension on the same side thereof as the premises in 
lieu of extending a service connection across said street, freeway, waterway, or 
railroad right of way from an existing or proposed unit.  Parallel mains may also be 
required to eliminate island or median crossings of sewer laterals. 

 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
12

5-1.8 Agency Right to Allow Connections:  The Agency shall have the right at any time 
to allow other users to connect to the Agency’s sewer system at any location, 
whether built by the Agency or by another party and transferred to the Agency, 
subject to payment of such fees as may be required by agreement or by resolution 
of the Board. 

 
5-1.9 Minimum Sizing:  The Agency will not permit a sewer main extension of less than 

eight inches in diameter unless approved in advance by the Agency. 
 
5-1.10 Agency Right to Design and Construct:  The Agency reserves the right to design 

and construct sewer facilities at its discretion. The cost of said facilities shall be 
borne by the applicant including but not limited to design, materials, and 
installation. 

 
5-2 Types of Extensions: 
 
5-2.1 General: 
 
5-2.1.1 Oversizing:  If the Agency requires a size or type of sewer extension in excess of 

the requirements of the applicant, the applicant will be reimbursed for the additional 
incremental cost of the material for the oversized requirement only, pursuant to the 
terms and conditions fixed by the Agency’s General Manager. 

 
5-2.1.2 Offtract Improvements:  If offtract improvements are required to serve the 

applicant’s intract improvements, the cost of required facilities shall be borne by 
the applicant, including but not limited to design, materials and installation. 

 
5-2.1.2.1 Main Extension Refund Agreement:  The Agency may elect to enter into a 

refunding agreement with the applicant. The refunding agreement shall contain 
such terms and conditions as the Board shall from time to time deem appropriate.  
Any refund shall be based on a front footage charge. 

 
5-2.2 By Agency:  The Agency, at its option, may extend its sewer system to the 

applicant’s premises at the applicant’s expense. The applicant shall pay the Agency 
a deposit equal to the estimated cost of the sewer extension, as determined by the 
Agency. Said deposit shall be used to compensate the Agency and/or any 
contractors and suppliers engaged by the Agency in the installation of the sewer 
extension.  Within 60 days after the cost of the sewer extension has been 
determined, any difference between the cost and the deposit shall be paid by or 
refunded to the applicant.  The Agency will not be required to pay interest on the 
deposit.  Where two or more applicants apply for service from the same sewer 
extension, the Agency may allocate the costs proportionately. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
13

5-2.3 By Applicant:  The applicant shall furnish security to the Local Agency to 
guarantee the installation of the sewer extension in the amount equal to the 
estimated cost thereof as determined by the Agency.  The applicant will be required 
to deposit with the Agency a sum of money equal to twenty percent of the estimated 
construction costs as determined by the Agency for the purpose of covering the cost 
of inspection and incidentals. The sewers and appurtenances shall be installed by a 
contractor holding a valid California Contractor’s license in accordance with the 
provisions of Division 3, Chapter 9, of the Business and Professions Code of the 
State of California, or any amendments thereto.  As used in this Section, the word 
“applicant” shall be deemed to include the word “subdivider.” 

 
5-3 Inspection:  The Agency will provide inspection of the sewer extension at the 

applicant’s expense as provided in Section 6-4. 
 
5-4 Plan Checking:  The Agency will review and check the drawings for the sewer 

extension prior to approval at the applicant’s expense as provided in Section 6-3. 
 
5-5 Design Review:  The Agency will perform design review for tentative projects on 

an actual cost basis.  An estimate will be prepared by the Agency prior to 
performing said review in accordance with Section 6-5. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
14

SECTION 6 – FEES AND CHARGES 
 
 
6-1 Capacity Charges:  Each applicant shall pay to the Agency a sewer capacity 

charge, then in effect, as established by resolution of the Board.  Capacity charges 
are based on equivalent dwelling units (EDU) and/or fixture units (FU) as 
determined by the Agency, and are subject to revision from time to time. 

 
6-1.1 Time of Payment:  The Capacity Charge shall be paid to the Agency prior to 

issuance of a financial arrangement letter from the Agency to the appropriate 
governmental entity or prior to the provision of water or sewer service, whichever 
occurs first. 

 
6-2 Connection Charges (Front Footage Charge):  Every applicant who wishes to 

connect to the Agency’s sewer system shall execute the Agency’s standard sewer 
service application and pay the Connection Charge where applicable in an amount 
established by resolution of the Board. 

 
6-2.1 Time of Payment:  The Connection Charge shall be paid to the Agency prior to 

issuance of a financial arrangement letter from the Agency to the appropriate 
governmental entity or prior to the provision of water or sewer service, whichever 
occurs first. 

 
6-2.2 Exemption:  A developer who installs sewer facilities in accordance with Section 

5-2.3 shall not be charged a Connection Charge for those sewer facilities that 
developer installs. 

 
6-3 Plan Check Fees:  Plan Check Fees are established by resolution of the Board and 

shall be charged for the Agency’s services in checking the drawings for required 
sewer facilities. 

 
6-4 Inspection Fees:  The Agency shall provide inspection at the applicant’s expense 

at the applicable hourly rate paid by the Agency for an inspector plus approved 
administrative and general charges. 

 
6-5 Design Review Fees:  Design Review Fees are established by resolution of the 

Board and shall be charged for the Agency’s services in analyzing the sewer 
requirements for proposed developments. 

 
6-6 Development Review Charge:  Development Review Charges are established by 

resolution of the Board and shall be charged for the Agency’s service in the 
preparation of will-serve letters, developer bond amounts, and response to initial 
studies. 

 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
15

SECTION 7 – MONTHLY CHARGES 
 
 
7-1 Monthly Service Charges: The monthly charge for all types or classes of service 

shall be set by Resolution of the Board.  Service Charges are based on equivalent 
dwelling units (EDU) and/or fixture units (FU) as determined by the Agency and 
are subject to revision as deemed necessary. 

 
7-1.1 Quantitative Charges: A Quantitative Charge for other than residential use and 

irrigation purposes shall be charged for metered water use as established by 
resolution of the Board. 

 
7-1.2 Treatment By Other Entities:  Charges include those payments the Agency is 

required to make to other entities to cover operation and maintenance and “in lieu 
of” taxes. 

 
7-2 Interceptor / Separator Surcharge:  The monthly charge for those premises with 

interceptors/separators shall be set by resolution of the Board. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
16

SECTION 8 – CREDIT POLICY 
 
 
8-1 Establishing Credit:  Sewer service, in all cases, will be kept in the name of the 

owner for water service.  Each application for sewer service will be required to 
establish credit to the satisfaction of the General Manager before service will be 
rendered.  Owner credit for sewer service will be deemed established with no 
additional deposit required, provided the requirements for establishing credit for 
water service has been approved 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
17

SECTION 9 – DISCONTINUANCE AND RESTORATION OF SERVICE 
 
 
9-1 Discontinuance of Service: 
 
9-1.1 Agency Initiated:  The Agency has the right to discontinue water or sewer service, 

or both, if a customer fails to comply with these Regulations.  Under such 
circumstances, the Agency will make a reasonable effort to notify the customer.  
Prior to discontinuance of service, notice is not necessary when the noncompliance, 
violation or infraction of these Regulations by the customer results in a dangerous 
or unsanitary condition on the premises, or in the sewer system, or elsewhere.  In 
such case, the Agency may order immediate discontinuance of service. 

 
 Before discontinuing service, subject to the exception as otherwise provided above, 

the Agency will give the customer a notice in writing specifying the reason or 
reasons why service may be discontinued and granting an opportunity to be heard 
within five days of receipt of said notice.  If the customer fails or refuses to comply 
with the notice or fails to require an opportunity to be heard within a period of five 
days after presentation of the notice, then the Agency may discontinue service to 
the customer.  If the person requests the opportunity to be heard and is heard, the 
Agency will thereafter determine if service shall be continued. 

 
9-1.2 At Customer’s Request:  A customer may have service discontinued by notifying 

the Agency at least two (2) business days in advance of the desired date of 
discontinuance.  Service will only be discontinued on the Agency’s normal working 
days and during normal working hours unless approved by the Agency in advance. 

 
9-2 Restoration of Service: 
 
9-2.1 General Provisions:  A customer whose service has been discontinued may have 

it restored by making application.   
 
9-2.2 Unauthorized Restoration:  It shall be a violation of these Regulations, and a 

crime, for any person to make an unauthorized reconnection to the Agency’s sewer 
system once service has been discontinued, in accordance with Section 3-6. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
18

SECTION 10 – BILLING AND COLLECTION 
 
 
10-1 Rendering of Bills:  The charges fixed for any premises served shall be billed and 

collected with the charges for water service furnished by the Agency.  Bills for 
sewer service shall be rendered monthly and are due and payable upon receipt.     
Any check or electronic payment submitted for payment of sewer service which is 
not honored and returned by the bank shall be subject to a return payment fee.  Such 
checks not paid in cash, money order or cashier’s check by the customer shall result 
in a discontinuance of sewer or water service. 

 
10-2 Proration of Bills:  The charges applicable to opening periods, closing bills and 

bills rendered for periods corresponding to less than one month will be computed 
as follows: 

 
 The amount of the minimum charge and the quantity allowed therefore will be 

prorated on the basis of the ratio of the number of days in the period that service is 
provided to the number of days in an average billing period.  The measured quantity 
of usage will be applied to such prorated amounts and quantities. 

 
10-3 Payment of Bills:  During each month, the Agency shall mail a statement covering 

charges for all sewer service received by the customer during the preceding month.  
Charges shall be due and payable upon receipt of the statement.  If it is necessary 
for the Agency to visit the premises to collect payment, a collection charge to be 
determined by the General Manager will be added to the amount owing.  Any check 
or electronic payment submitted for payment of sewer service which is not honored 
and has been returned by the bank shall be subject to a return payment fee.  Such 
payments shall be replaced by the customer with cash, money order or cashier’s 
check including a returned payment fee as determined by the Agency in order to 
avoid discontinuance of sewer and water service. 

 
10-4 Delinquent Accounts:  The bill for sewer service shall be delinquent if not paid 

within 30 days after billing.  When delinquency occurs, a final notice will be mailed 
to the billing address.  If payment has not been received 15 days after a final notice 
has been issued, the service address, if different from the billing address, will be 
tagged 48 hours in advance of scheduled turn off to give the occupant opportunity 
to pay the outstanding account.  If occupant does not pay the outstanding account 
or make arrangements for payment by the date of scheduled turn off, then water or 
sewer service, or both, may be discontinued without further notice. 

 
 Service shall not be restored to the premises until all charges which are delinquent, 

including fees, if any, have been paid in full.  An owner whose service has been 
discontinued for nonpayment of bills, or whose deposit shall have been applied in 
whole or in part to the payment of any bills, will be required to reestablish credit 
by a cash deposit in accordance with Section 8-1. 

 
 A customer who has a delinquency for any premise(s) served by the Agency may 

not receive sewer service, water service, or recycled water service on another 
premise until all delinquencies, including fees, are paid in full.  Additionally, when 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
19

a service has been terminated for nonpayment, all charges may be transferred to 
another account held in the sole name of the same owner.  This account will become 
delinquent if payment is not made within 15 days from the date of delinquency 
transfer, and will be subject to turnoff without further notice. The Agency may file 
liens against the property or any other properties owned within the State of 
California by the delinquent customer to enforce collection of delinquent accounts. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
20

SECTION 11 – REGULATIONS OF WASTE AND WATER 
 
 
11-1 Discharges:  Except as hereafter provided, no person or customer shall discharge 

or cause to be discharged any of the following described wastes or waters into any 
sewer of the Agency: 

 
11-1.1 Any liquid or vapor having a temperature higher than 150°F. 
 
11-1.2 Any waters or wastes which contain more than 150 milligrams per liter (mg/L) of 

fat, oil or grease. 
 
11-1.3 Any gasoline, benzine, naphtha, fuel oil, or other flammable or explosive liquid, 

solid or gas. 
 
11-1.4 Any waste products resulting from the handling, storage and sale of fruits and 

vegetables in wholesale or retail produce establishments, and wastes from plants 
engaged in the preparation, processing, or preserving of foods not intended 
primarily for immediate consumption. 

 
11-1.5 Any ashes, cinders, sand, mud, straw, shavings, metal, glass, rags, feathers, tar, coal 

tar, asphalt, cement, plastics, wood, paunch manure, or any other solid or viscous 
substance capable of causing obstruction to the flow in sewers or other interference 
with the proper operation of the sewer system. 

 
11-1.6 Any waters or wastes having a pH lower than 5.0 or higher than 9.5 having any 

other corrosive property capable of causing damage or hazard to structures, 
equipment, or personnel engaged in the operation or maintenance of the sewer 
system. 

 
11-1.7 Any waters or wastes having corrosive property capable of causing damage to or 

hazard to, or containing a toxic or poisonous substance in sufficient quantity to 
injure or interfere with the operation of a waste water reclamation plant, or to 
constitute a hazard to humans or animals. 

 
11-1.8 Any waters or wastes containing dissolved, suspended, or settleable solids of such 

character and quantity that abnormal attention or expense is required to handle such 
materials in the sewer system. 

 
11-1.9 Any noxious or malodorous gas or substance in a quantity capable of creating a 

public nuisance. 
 
11-1.10 Any water or wastes having a biological oxygen demand (BOD) greater than 400 

mg/L by weight. 
 
11-1.11 Any water or wastes containing more than 500 mg/L by weight of suspended solids 

(SS). 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
21

11-1.12 Any waters or wastes containing wax, whether emulsified or not, in excess of 100 
mg/L or containing substances which may solidify or become viscous at 
temperatures between 32°F and 150°F. 

 
11-1.13 Any garbage that has not been properly shredded. 
 
11-1.14 Any radioactive wastes or isotopes of such half-life or concentration as may exceed 

limits established by the Agency in compliance with applicable State or Federal 
regulations. 

 
11-1.15 Unusual volume of flow or concentration of wastes constituting slugs. 
 
11-1.16 Waters or wastes containing substances which are not amenable to treatment or 

reduction by the treatment processes employed, or are amenable to treatment only 
to such degree that the waste water reclamation plant effluent cannot meet the 
requirements of other agencies having jurisdiction. 

 
11-1.17 Any storm water, surface water, ground water, roof runoff, subsurface drainage, 

cooling water, or industrial waste. 
 
11-1.18 Any brines or dissolved salts in excess of 1000 mg/L to the sewer system including 

discharge of salts from regeneration of water softening units in industrial, 
commercial establishments and private residences and homes. 

 
11-2 Admission of Prohibited Discharges:  If any waters or wastes are discharged, or 

are proposed to be discharged to the sewer system, which waters or wastes contain 
the substances or possess the characteristics enumerated in Section 11-1, and which 
in the judgment of the Agency may have a deleterious effect upon the sewer system, 
or which otherwise create a hazard to life or constitute a public nuisance, the 
Agency may: 

 
11-2.1 Reject the wastes. 
 
11-2.2 Require pretreatment to an acceptable condition for discharge to the sewer system. 
 
11-2.3 Require control over the quantities and rates of discharge to the sewer system. 
 
11-2.4 Require payment to cover the added cost of handling the treatment of waters or 

wastes not covered by existing sewer charges under the provisions of these 
Regulations. 

 
11-3 Pretreatment:  Where required, in the opinion of the Agency, the customer shall 

provide at his own expense such pretreatment or handling as may be necessary to 
meet the Agency’s requirements and any plans, specifications, and any other 
pertinent information relating to proposed preliminary treatment, 
interceptors/separators, or handling facilities shall be submitted for the approval of 
the Agency and no construction of such facilities shall be commenced until 
approval is obtained and standards set forth in this Section are met. 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
22

11-4 Industrial Wastes:  Pretreatment of industrial wastes shall be in accordance with 
the Environmental Protection Agency pretreatment standards which have been 
promulgated for specific industrial classes. 

 
11-5 Maintenance of Pretreatment Facilities:  When pretreatment facilities are 

provided for any waters or wastes to meet the requirements of this Section, they 
shall be maintained in satisfactory and effective operation by the customer at its 
expense. 

 
11-6 Monitoring: 
 
11-6.1 Control Manhole:  When required by the Agency, the customer discharging 

industrial wastes shall install a suitable control manhole together with such 
necessary meters and other appurtenances in the building sewer to facilitate 
observation, sampling, and measurement of the wastes.  Such manhole shall be 
accessible and safely located, and shall be constructed in accordance with plans 
approved by the General Manager.  The manhole shall be installed by the customer 
at customer’s expense, and shall be maintained by the customer so as to be safe and 
accessible at all times. 

 
11-6.2 Sampling:  All measurements, tests, and analyses of the characteristics of water 

and wastes to which reference is made in these Regulations shall be determined in 
accordance with the latest edition of Standard Methods for the Examination of 
Water and Wastewater, published by the American Public Health Association, and 
shall be determined at the control manhole provided or upon suitable samples taken 
at said control manhole.  In the event that no special manhole has been required, 
the control manhole shall be considered to be the nearest downstream manhole in 
the sewer system from the point where the building sewer is connected. Sampling 
shall be carried out by customarily accepted methods to reflect the effect of 
constituents upon the waste water reclamation plant and to determine the existence 
of hazards to life, limb and property. 

 
11-6.3 Interceptors / Separators:  (i.e. grease, oil, sand and lint)  Interceptors / Separators 

shall be provided when, in the opinion of the Agency, they are necessary for the 
proper handling of liquid wastes containing grease in excessive amounts, or any 
flammable wastes, sand or other harmful ingredients; except that such interceptors 
/ separators shall not be required for dwelling units.  All interceptors / separators 
shall be of a type and capacity approved by the Agency, and shall be located as to 
be readily and easily accessible for cleaning and inspection.  Interceptors / 
separators shall be maintained in continuously efficient operation at all times by the 
customer and at the customer’s expense. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
23

SECTION 12 – ENFORCEMENT 
 
 
12-1 General Provisions:  The following procedures are established for enforcement of 

these Regulations, not for penalty.  All customers shall be held strictly responsible 
for any and all acts of tenants, agents or employees, and those customers shall be 
liable for any expense, loss, or damage incurred by the Agency, all pursuant to these 
Regulations. 

 
12-2 Violations: 
 
12-2.1 Written Notice:  Any person found in violation of these Regulations will be 

notified pursuant to Section 9-1.1, except when immediate discontinuance of 
service is required as provided in that Section. 

 
12-2.2 Corrective Action:  Upon notification by the Agency of any violation of these 

Regulations, the customer shall immediately take whatever corrective action may 
be necessary. 

 
12-3 Discontinuance of Service:  The Agency may discontinue service for any violation 

of these Regulations as provided in Section 9-1. 
 
12-4 Abatements:  During any period of discontinuance of service, occupancy of such 

premises shall constitute a public nuisance, whereupon the Agency may cause 
abatement proceedings to be brought against said premises.  In such event, and as 
a condition of restoration of service, the customer shall reimburse the Agency for 
reasonable attorney’s fee and the cost of suit arising in said action, in addition to 
the charges provided for in Section 8 and Section 9.   

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
24

SECTION 13 – SEVERABILITY 
 
 
13-1 Severability of Regulations:  These Regulations and the various sections, parts 

and clauses thereof, are hereby declared to be separable.  If any part, section, 
subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause, or phrase of these Regulations is for any 
reason held to be unconstitutional or unlawful, such provision shall not affect the 
validity of the remaining portions of these Regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
25

SECTION 14 – EFFLUENT TO COACHELLA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT 
 
 
14-1 Provisions:  The provisions of this Section shall apply to all facilities constructed 

for the purpose of transporting effluent to the Coachella Valley Water District 
(“District”) for treatment or disposal. 

 
14-2 Plan Checks and Inspection:  Plans and specifications for construction of sewer 

facilities shall be subject to approval by the Agency, as well as by the District, at 
District’s request.  Construction of the facilities will be subject to inspection by the 
Agency, as well as by the District, at District’s request.  The developer of property 
requiring such construction shall pay to the Agency the prevailing charges for plan 
checking and inspection services, as determined by the Agency and District. 

 
14-3 Connections:  Agency shall notify and obtain District’s approval before connecting 

into District’s sewer system. 
 
14-4 Bonds:  The developer of any property shall provide such bonds or other security 

as the Agency and the District may require to ensure construction of sewer 
facilities.  Neither the Agency nor the District shall be required to give assurances 
to any governmental agency that sewer service will be provided to the property 
until such security has been provided or the facilities have been accepted by the 
Agency and District.  

 
14-5 Transfer of Title:  Upon satisfactory completion of construction, a developer shall 

convey to District the title of those facilities lying within District’s boundaries.  The 
developer shall convey to the Agency the title to those facilities lying within the 
Agency’s boundaries and within the boundaries of the Whitewater River 
Stormwater Channel.  Title shall be free and clear of all mechanic’s liens, or other 
liens or encumbrances of any kind.  The developer shall provide such evidence of 
clear title as may be required by the Agency or District.  The developer shall also 
convey to the Agency and District all appropriate rights of way for such facilities.  
All instruments of conveyance shall be in a form approved by the Agency and 
District. 

 
14-6 Sewer Capacity Charge:  Each developer whose property is provided with sewer 

service shall pay to the Agency the Capacity Charge established by the Agency and 
in effect at the time application for service is made, but in no event shall such charge 
be less than that established by District. 

 
14-7 Operations and Maintenance:  The Agency shall operate and maintain all sewer 

facilities constructed pursuant to this Section, including such facilities as may be 
constructed within District’s boundaries. 

 
14-8 Monthly Charges:  Users shall pay a monthly charge for services provided by the 

Agency and District in an amount determined by resolution of the Board. 
 
14-8.1 District Charges:  The amount of the charge attributable to services provided by 

District shall consist of two components: 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
26

 
14-8.1.1 Monthly Service Charge:  A monthly service charge equal to that charged by 

District within its Improvement District No. 80, less customer account expense. 
 
14-8.1.2 “In Lieu of Taxes” Charge:  An amount, as determined by District, to compensate 

District for the use of its sewer system, and to provide funds equal to taxes or other 
charges for sewer service collected from landowners and customers within District 
which are not applicable to customer outside of its boundaries. 

 
14-8.2 Agency Charges:  
 
14-8.2.1 Monthly Service Charge:  The amount of the monthly charge attributable to the 

Agency shall include the amount necessary as determined by the Agency, to cover 
its costs for upgrading and maintaining the facilities, for billing, collections, and 
administrative costs.  The monthly charges are subject to change at any time by 
resolution of the Board. 

 
14-9 Termination:  The Agency shall have the right at any time to terminate the flow of 

effluent to District and to provide for the treatment or disposal of such effluent 
entirely within the Agency’s boundaries. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
27

SECTION 15 – EFFLUENT TO CITY OF PALM SPRINGS  
 
15-1 Provisions:  The provisions of this Section shall apply to all facilities constructed 

for the purpose of transporting effluent to the City of Palm Springs (“City”) for 
treatment or disposal. 

 
15-2 Plan Checks and Inspection:  Plans and specifications for construction of sewer 

facilities shall be subject to approval by the Agency, as well as by the City, at City’s 
request.  Construction of the facilities will be subject to inspection by the Agency, 
as well as by the City, at City’s request.  The developer of property requiring such 
construction shall pay to the Agency the prevailing charges for plan checking and 
inspection services, as determined by the Agency and City. 

 
15-3 Connections:  Agency shall notify and obtain City’s approval before connecting 

into City’s sewer system. 
 
15-4 Bonds:  The developer of any property shall provide such bonds or other security 

as the Agency and the City may require to ensure construction of sewer facilities.  
Neither the Agency nor the City shall be required to give assurances to any 
governmental agency that sewer service will be provided to the property until such 
security has been provided or the facilities have been accepted by the Agency and 
City.  

 
15-5 Transfer of Title:  Upon satisfactory completion of construction, a developer shall 

convey to City the title of those facilities lying within City’s boundaries.  The 
developer shall convey to the Agency the title to those facilities lying within the 
Agency’s boundaries.  Title shall be free and clear of all mechanic’s liens, or other 
liens or encumbrances of any kind.  The developer shall provide such evidence of 
clear title as may be required by the Agency or City.  The developer shall also 
convey to the Agency and City all appropriate rights of way for such facilities.  All 
instruments of conveyance shall be in a form approved by the Agency and City. 

 
15-6 Sewer Capacity Charge:  Each developer whose property is provided with sewer 

service shall pay to the Agency the Capacity Charge established by the Agency and 
in effect at the time application for service is made, but in no event shall such charge 
be less than that established by City in the City’s fee resolution. 

 
15-7 Operations and Maintenance:  The Agency shall operate and maintain all sewer 

facilities constructed pursuant to this Section, including such facilities as may be 
constructed within City’s boundaries. 

 
15-8 Monthly Charges:  Users shall pay a monthly charge for services provided by the 

Agency and City in an amount determined by resolution of the Board. 
 
15-8.1 City Charges:  The amount of the charge attributable to services provided by City 

be as established by the City in the City’s fee resolution.  Monthly charges are 
subject to change at any time by resolution of the City. 

 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
28

15-8.2 Agency Charges:  The amount of the monthly charge attributable to the Agency 
shall include the amount necessary as determined by the Agency to cover its cost 
for upgrading and maintaining the facilities, for billing, collections, and 
administrative costs.  The monthly charges are subject to change at any time by 
resolution of the Board. 

 
15.9 Termination:  The Agency shall have the right at any time to terminate the flow of 

effluent to City and to provide for the treatment or disposal of such effluent entirely 
within the Agency’s boundaries. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

SB/ORD-RES/Ordinance No 68 – Sewer Service 
29

SECTION 16 - ADOPTION 
 
 
16-1 Effective Date:  Except as otherwise provided herein, this Ordinance becomes 

effective on July 1, 2017. 
 
16-2 Previous Ordinance Repealed:  Ordinance No. 59 is hereby repealed. 
 
 
 ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2017. 
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      James Cioffi, President 
      Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



7-B (1-3) 

Page 1 of 3 
 

 
STAFF REPORT 

TO 
DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 20, 2017 

 
RE: REQUEST FOR ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NOS. 1167, 1168 & 

1169 ESTABLISHING RATES & FEES FOR DOMESTIC WATER 
SERVICE, RECYCLED WATER SERVICE & SEWER SERVICE 

 
Overview 

After a comprehensive rate study process with financial expert NBS, the Board of 
Directors implemented water, sewer and recycled water rates effective on January 1, 
2017. As part of the adoption of the multi-year rate plan developed by NBS and approved 
at the 2016 Prop 218 hearing, the Board decided to assess future rate adjustments close 
to the proposed implementation date.  

July 1, 2017 is the next planned step within the rate plan. Given the agency’s current 
financial needs, staff recommends implementing the increases as planned. Though the 
drought is officially over, water use levels have remained low and even further unexpected 
costs have been incurred due to new requirements (example: City of Palm Springs street 
work requiring DWA to raise valve lids).  

Resolution No. 1167 Establishing Rates, Fees and Charges for Domestic Water Service  

The resolution increases the volumetric rate for water from $1.57 to $1.72 per 

hundred cubic feet and updates the water service charges for domestic water customers 
in accordance with what NBS proposed in their final rate study report. 

Meter size Current Proposed 

July 1, 2017 

5/8”-3/4” $14.41 $18.12 

1” $14.41 $18.12 

1 ½” $27.52 $34.59 

2” $43.24 $54.35 

3” $85.18 $107.06 

4” $132.35 $166.36 

6” $263.40 $331.08 

8” $420.66 $528.74 

10” - $1,385.28 

12” - $1,747.66 



Page 2 of 3 
 

 
Resolution No. 1167 also updates the drought rate surcharge. Though we are not 
currently in a drought, staff recommends keeping the surcharge up to date and in line with 
the current water rates so that it is effective if needed. The drought rate surcharge would 
be implemented if later enacted by the Board of Directors in the case of extreme shortage. 
The baseline for the reduction is April 2015 to March 2016, which is a very low water use 
period. The Board would vote to enact the surcharge, which would only remain in place 
for six months unless increased or renewed by the Board. Staff will monitor consumption 
levels and revenues to alert the Board to consider action. 
 

Additional 

use reduction 

required 

Current per 

HCF 

Proposed  

July 1, 2017 

per HCF 

10%  $0.09 $0.10 

20% $0.21 $0.22 

30% $0.36 $0.38 

40% $0.56 $0.59 

50% $0.85 $0.88 

60% $1.27 $1.31 

 

Resolution No. 1167 adjusts the zone charges necessary to cover the costs associated 
with pumping water to higher elevations. This charge applies to a small portion of Desert 
Water Agency customers. The zone charges are as follows: 
 

ZONE Current 

per HCF 

Proposed 

July 1, 2017  

per HCF 

A $0.16 $0.18 

B $0.22 $0.24 

C $0.53 $0.56 

D $2.30 $2.43 

 

  



Page 3 of 3 
 

 

Resolution No. 1168 Updating Fees for Recycled Water Customers 

Staff recommends updating the fees to match the fees for domestic and sewer service. 
The fees are based on staff time. Staff time requirements are similar for recycled water 
customers. 

 

Resolution No. 1169 Establishing Rates, Fees and Charges for Sewer Service  

In its multi-year rate plan, NBS also studied the sewer charges that DWA imposes on its 
customers in the Cathedral City and Palm Springs area. NBS determined that the charges 
being imposed are not sufficient to cover DWA’s costs. In addition to the rate listed below, 
DWA also passes through the charges for conveyance and collection from either CVWD 
(Cathedral City) or City of Palm Springs (Palm Oasis and Dream Homes). This is the only 
change proposed to the current resolution. 

Sewer rate Current Proposed 

July 1, 2017 

per EDU $5.36 $5.55 

 

 

Staff recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Board of Directors adopt Resolution No. 1167 for domestic 
water rates, fees and charges; Resolution No. 1168 for recycled water rates, fees and 
charges; and Resolution No. 1169 on sewer rates, fees and charges. 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1167 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 
ESTABLISHING RATES, FEES & CHARGES 

FOR DOMESTIC WATER SERVICE, BACKUP FACILITY,  
SUPPLEMENTAL IMPORTED WATER CAPACITY  

AND SERVICE CONNECTION CHARGES 
 
 

 WHEREAS, by previous action this Board has approved various rates, fees and charges 

for water service, as provided by law; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is appropriate at this time to revise the Agency’s monthly charges for water 

service and for several other water related services, while restating all other rates, fees and charges 

which remain unchanged; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on December 15, 2016, this Board conducted a majority protest hearing for  

proposed revisions to the Agency’s monthly charges for water service over the next subsequent 

five years, as required by law, and determined that a majority protest did not exist; and 

 

 WHEREAS, having completed the public hearing, this Board wishes to take action to 

revise the Agency’s monthly charges for water service in the manner proposed at the hearing while 

restating other fees and charges that shall remain unchanged at this time;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert Water 

Agency that the Agency’s rates, fees and charges for water service shall be as follows: 

 

1. Backup Facility Charges.  Every applicant for a regular service connection shall, in 

addition to other charges, pay a Backup Facility Charge based on the size and location of 

the applicant’s service and meter connection as follows: 

 
Meter Charge 

5/8 x 3/4 inch $2,550 
1 inch $6,375 

1-1/2 inch $12,750 
2 inch $20,405 

 
 



 

                                                                                                              Page 2 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

          Backup Facility Charges (Cont.) 
 

Zone A        Charge 
5/8 x 3/4 inch $4,225 

1 inch $10,570 
1-1/2 inch $21,145  

2 inch $33,835 
 

Zone B Charge
 5/8 x 3/4 inch   $5,760
  1 inch $14,405

  1-1/2 inch $28,815
  2 inch $46,105

     

Zone C Charge
 5/8 x 3/4 inch $6,245
  1 inch $15,610

  1-1/2 inch $31,225
  2 inch $49,960

  
 

2. Supplemental Imported Water Capacity Charges.  Every applicant for a regular 

service connection shall, in addition to other charges, pay a Supplemental Imported Water 

Capacity Charge based on the size of the applicant’s service and meter connection as 

follows: 

Meter Size
 

 

Residential Charge 

5/8 x 3/4 inch $1,370.00 
1 inch $2,250.00 

1-1/2 inch $4,440.00 
2 inch $10,960.00 
3 inch $72,070.00 

     

Commercial Charge 
 5/8 x 3/4 inch $1,250.00 

 1 inch $2,740.00 
 1-1/2 inch $8,830.00 

 2 inch $15,090.00 
 3 inch $21,350.00 
 6 inch $677,430.00 

    
Irrigation

   
         Charge 

5/8 x 3/4 inch   $1,720.00 
1 inch   $6,530.00 

1-1/2 inch   $25,210.00 
2 inch   $23,970.00   



 

                                                                                                              Page 3 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 3. Backup Facility Charges and Supplemental Imported Water Capacity Charges for 

Increased Service.  A Backup Facility Charge and a Supplemental Imported Water 

Capacity Charge shall be required for all existing regular service connections for which 

increased capacity is requested and larger service connections and meters are installed.  

Said charges shall apply to the difference in service capacity between the new meter and 

service, and the meter and service which is being replaced. 

 

4. Exemption.  The Backup Facility Charge shall apply to all applications for regular 

service, regardless of the type of use, but shall not apply to applications for temporary 

service.   The Backup Facility Charge may be exempted, or partially exempted for private 

commercial fire protection service, and where certain water supply, storage, treatment and 

transmission facilities are required of an applicant.  The exemption will be determined by 

the Agency, whose decision will be final. 

 

 5. Accounting of Funds.   All revenues collected from backup facility charges shall 

be deposited with other such fees in a separate capital facilities account or fund in a manner 

to avoid any commingling of the charges with other revenues and funds of the Agency, 

except for temporary investments, and such revenues may be expended solely for the 

purpose for which the backup facility charges are collected.  Any interest income earned 

by moneys in said account or fund shall also be deposited in that account or fund and may 

be expended only for the purpose for which the backup facility charges are imposed.  The 

Agency shall make findings once each fiscal year with respect to any portion of the backup 

facility charges remaining unexpended or uncommitted in the account five or more years 

after deposit of the charges.  The findings shall identify the purpose to which the backup 

facility charges are to be put, and will demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the 

charges and the purpose for which the charges were imposed.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 4 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

6. Meter Installation Charge.  The charge for meter installation shall be as follows: 

 

Size Charge 
5/8 x 3/4 inch $255.00 

1 inch $355.00 
1-1/2 inch $530.00 

2 inch $705.00 
 

7. Customer Control Valve Charge. The customer control valve charge shall be as  

follows: 

Size Charge 
1 inch $360.00 

1-1/2 inch $370.00 
2 inch $435.00 

 

8.  Service Connection Charge.  The charge for service connection shall be as follows: 

 

Size Charge
   a.)  1 inch $1,800.00 
  2 inch $3,230.00 
   

   b.)  Pavement Patch $1,380.00 
  Concrete Patch $664.00 

 

9. Connection Charge.    A charge for all new connections based on the front footage 

served thereby shall be levied and collected at the rate of $70.00 per lineal foot of frontage, 

or the actual rate in accordance with a valid main extension refund agreement, whichever 

is greater. 

 

10. Meter Test Deposit. The required deposit for testing a water meter shall be as 

follows: 

Size        Deposit 
5/8 & 3/4 inch to 2 inches   $70.00 

3 inch or larger                             $140.00 

 

11. Plan Check Fees. The plan check fees for Agency installed water facilities with no 

mains shall be $140. For developer installed facilities with mains, the fee shall be $140, 

plus $0.10 per lineal foot of main installed. There is no charge for single residences not 

falling within the above categories. 



 

                                                                                                              Page 5 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

12. Design Review Fees. Fees charged for design review for water facilities shall be as 

follows: 

a.) Agency Engineering Department $140.00 per hour 
    b.) Engineering Consultants Actual cost plus 15% 
    c.) Legal Consultants Actual cost plus 15% 

 

13. Temporary Service Connection Charge. The following deposits and charges shall 

be imposed for a temporary service connection: 

a.) Deposits  
Meter  $964.00 
Backflow Device  $500.00 

Total   $1,464.00 
     

  b.) Meter Installation Charges  

 Meter  $70.00
 Backflow Device  $70.00
       Total  $140.00
     

  c.) Meter Relocation Charges  

  Each Occurrence $70.00
 

14. Restoration of Service. The charge for service restored on Agency’s normal 

working days and during normal working hours will be $70. The charge for service restored 

other than that on Agency’s normal working days and after normal working hours will be 

$150. To have service restored the same day, during working hours, payment must be 

received between 8:00 a.m. and 4:00 p.m. Payments received after 4:00 p.m. will be at the 

after hours rate for restoration of service the same day. 

 If service is discontinued or turned off by customer request for any reason, other 

than repairs, the restoration charges will be enforced if restoration of service is requested 

within 90 days of the initial request of discontinuance. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 6 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

15. Backflow Protection Device Installation Charges.  The following charges shall be 

imposed for the installation of a backflow protection device: 

 

   a.)  Double Check Device
  Size               Charge 
  3/4 inch $647.00 
  1 inch $812.00 
  1-1/2 inch $1,480.00 
  2 inch $1,870.00 

 
 

   b.)  Reduced Pressure Principal Device Assemblies 
  Size          Charge 
  3/4 inch $843.00 
  1 inch $1,005.00 
  1-1/2 inch $1,689.00 
  2 inch $2,053.00 

 
   

     

c.)  Double Check Device with Fire Service Outlet 
  Size        Charge 
  1 inch $1,000.00 
  1-1/2 inch $1,668.00 
  2 inch $2,149.00 
     

d.)  Reduced Pressure Device with Fire Service Outlet 
  Size        Charge 

  1 inch $1,193.00 
  1-1/2 inch $1,877.00 
  2 inch $2,333.00 

 

16.  Metered Service Charge.  Service charges for water service include a monthly 

service charge, a quantitative rate charge, and a zone charge if applicable, as follows:  

 

   a.)  Monthly Service Charge
  Size    Charge 
  5/8 x 3/4 inch $18.12 
  1 inch $18.12 
  1-1/2 inch $34.59 
  2 inch $54.35 
  3 inch $107.06 
  4 inch $166.36 
  6 inch $331.08 
  8 inch $528.74 
  10 inch $1,385.28 
  12 inch $1,747.66 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 7 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

  Metered Service Charge. (Cont.) 
 

   b.)  Quantitative Rate Charge
  The base rate charge for all metered and unmetered water 

used for all purposes other than through temporary service 
facilities shall be $1.72 per 100 cubic feet. 
 

   c.)  Temporary Service Quantitative Rate Charge 
  The base rate charged for all metered and unmetered water 

used for construction and temporary service shall be $854.36 
($1.96 per 100 cubic feet) per acre foot. 
 

   d.)  Zone Charges  

   
Zone 

Charge  per 100 
Cubic Feet 

  “Base” $0.00 
  “A”  $0.18 
  “B”  $0.24 
  “C”  $0.56 
     “D” (Tramway) $2.43 
  
   e.)  Drought Rate Surcharge
  The surcharge is in addition to the Quantitative Rate Charge. 

It may be applied in times of mandatory restrictions or 
extreme water supply shortage. 
 

 

Use Reduction Required 
Addition to Quantitative 

Rate Charge 
  10% $0.10 
  20% $0.22 
  30% $0.38 
  40% $0.59 
  50% $0.88 
  60% $1.31 

 

17.  Private Fire Protection Monthly Service Charges.  The monthly service charge for 

private fire protection shall be as follows: 

 
 Service Size                  Charge 
 4 inch   $20.41 
 6 inch   $44.54 
 8 inch   $76.71 
 10 inch   $119.60 
 12 inch   $143.73 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 8 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

18. Backflow Protection Device Repair Charge.  The monthly charge for backflow 

protection device repair shall be as follows: 

 
Size                   Charge 
3/4 inch   $3.00 

 1 inch   3.50 
 1-1/4 inch   3.50 
 1-1/2 inch   3.50 
 2 inch   3.50 
 2-1/2 inch   3.50 
 3 inch   3.50 
 4 inch   5.80 
 6 inch   5.80 
 8 inch   7.00 
 10 x 12 inch   7.00 

 

19. Construction and Temporary Service Monthly Charges.  The construction and 

temporary service monthly charge shall include the following and be set as follows: 

 

   a.  Monthly Service Charges
  To be in accordance with Item 16-a of this Resolution 

 

   b.  Quantitative Charges
  To be in accordance with Item 16-c of this Resolution 
   

   c.  Zone Pumping Charges
  To be in accordance with Item 16-d of this Resolution 
   

   d. Backflow Protection Device Charge: $34.15 
 

20. Deposit to Establish Credit.  The minimum deposit to establish credit will be two 

(2) times the average monthly bill.  If this cannot be determined, the minimum deposit shall 

be as follows: 

 Size             Deposit 
 5/8 x 3/4 inch   $ 100.00 
 1 inch   100.00 
 1-1/2 inch   150.00 
 2 inch   200.00 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 9 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 21.  Development Review.  A charge for Agency provided Administrative Services  

 shall be collected at the rate of $140 for each of the following: 

 
  a.) Will Serve Letter    

  b.) Development Bond Amount Letter    

  c.) Response to Initial Study    

 

 22. Water Quality Sampling. The charge for Agency collection and analysis of 

development bacteriological samples shall be at the rate of $75.00 per sample. 

 

 23. Account Establishment Fee Charge. An administrative charge for Agency services 

to establish account in the new owner’s name shall be $30.00 per account. 

 

 24. Late Fee. An administrative late fee charge of $25.00 per account will be assessed 

on accounts that are delinquent (30 days past due). 

 

25. Effective Date:  The charges set forth herein shall become effective on July 1, 2017 

and as of that date shall replace the charges set forth in Resolution Nos. 1144 & 1154. 

  

 ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2017.  

 
       ______________________________ 
       James Cioffi, President 
       Board of Directors 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

                                                                                                              Page 10 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

BACKUP FACILITY CHARGES 
FOR WATER SERVICE 

MARCH 7, 2017 
 
 
New development creates an additional demand for water.  In order to meet the new demand, new 

wells must be constructed to provide more water, new storage tanks must be constructed to store 

water for emergency use, equalizing, and fire storage, and new transmission pipelines must be 

constructed to transport water from wells to storage tanks and throughout the distribution system.  

New development in hillside areas and service areas above the Base Zone places demand upon 

facilities, such as booster pumping plants, water storage tanks and transmission pipelines, whose 

basic function is to lift the water up to and store in these higher zones. 

 

For the past eight years, new development has added an annual average of about 400 service 

connections to the Desert Water Agency water system.  At this growth rate, every three years new 

connections will create a demand for water equivalent to the production capacity of one well.  The 

increased demand will also burden storage, transmission, and booster pumping facilities in all 

Zones.  These facilities must be in place ahead of new connections.  Therefore, in most cases, the 

facilities are constructed in anticipation of demand, and costs of the facilities are recovered through 

the Backup Facility Charge. 

 

Staff has reviewed the costs that make up the Backup Facility Charge and find that a tiered rate is 

justified to recover cost of the well plants, booster plants, treatment plants, surface water facilities, 

storage reservoirs, and transmission mains required by each zone. 

 

All new development requiring water service will be charged for Backup Facilities.  The charge is 

based upon the capacity/service size ratio of the service provided and the proportional potential 

demand placed upon the available water production, transmission, treatment, pressure boosting 

and storage facilities.  The charge is not based upon the type of service connection (i.e., residential, 

commercial, and industrial).  The amount of the charge for any particular development is based on 

the number of services, service size, meter size and the assigned number of capacity units per 

service as determined by the Agency.  The capacity unit (C.U.) is based on the capacity/service 

size ratio of the service connection. 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 11 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

Service capacity ratios have historically been based on the relationship between capacity and pipe 

diameter.  Originally established in 1973, the service capacity/diameter relationship for the Agency 

was based on a 1” service size capacity ratio of Q=KD^2.54.  Depending on the specific hydraulic 

formula selected the service size relationship can range from D^2.5 to D^2.667.  These hydraulic 

formula and capacity/diameter relationships are empirical and therefore approximate.  The selected 

relationship of D^2.54 is reasonable in that it is slightly less than the median relationship of 

D^2.58. 

 

However, capacity is ultimately limited by the maximum continuous operation flow rate of the 

meter installed on each service connection. To account for this, the Agency has opted to utilize the 

AWWA meter factors in lieu of the abovementioned D^2.54 formula. AWWA meter factors are 

an industry standard and, therefore, a reasonable method to use in determining equivalent capacity 

units within the system. 

 

To determine the standard capacity for the Agency’s entire water system all active services smaller 

and larger than the standard one-inch service are converted to one-inch equivalent capacity units 

using the AWWA meter factors discussed above.   

 

Calculation of the C.U. for each service size in the Agency’s system is shown in the table below. 

 

SYSTEM CAPACITY UNITS

SERVICE 
SIZE  SERVICES  AWWA METER FACTORS CAPACITY UNITS

5/8” X 3/4”  210  0.40  84 

1”  18,565  1.00 18,565 

1-1/2”  862  2.00 1,724 

2”  2,975  3.20 9,520 

Total 22,612  29,893 

 

The charge per capacity unit is obtained by determining the cost of water production, pressure 

boosting, treatment, storage and transmission facilities and dividing it by the total capacity units 

served by the facilities.  The method for determining facility cost and total capacity units is 

discussed below. 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 12 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

The total number of current capacity units of each zone is obtained from the Desert Water Agency 

Information Systems Department. 

 

ZONES 
EXISTING CAPACITY UNITS 

WITHIN ZONE
 

BASE 

 

28,125 

A  1,282 

B  468 

C  18 

TOTAL  29,893 

 

To determine the total capacity units for each zone, we must first calculate the max demand day 

(MDD) value utilizing the current General Plan formula: 

 MDD = 1.85 x Average Day Annual Demand (ADD)  

Using annual production data from 2010 to 2013 (years that were not affected by State mandated 

drought conservation requirements), the ADD calculated equals 32.6 MGD, therefore, the MDD 

is equal to 60.3 MGD. If the MDD is equal to 60.3 MGD, the current gal/C.U./day is equal to 

2,017 gal/C.U./day (60.3MGD÷29,893).  

 

Since all service capacity must be met by the Base system pumping capacity, the current max 

demand on the Base system is equal to the MDD, or 60.3 MGD. The current pumping capacity for 

the Base system is 76.7 MGD, therefore, all of the existing units are using 78.6% of the total 

capacity of the Base system (60.3 MGD÷76.7 MGD). The total maximum capacity units for the 

entire system are then equal to 38,031 (29,893÷0.786). 

 

The current demand on Zone A is 2.58 MGD (2,017 x 1,282). The current pumping capacity for 

Zone A is 7.70 MGD, therefore, the existing Zone A units are using 33.5% of the total pumping 

capacity of Zone A (2.58 MGD÷7.70 MGD). The total Zone A capacity units are then equal to 

3,826 (1,282÷0.335).  

 

The current demand on Zone B is 0.94 MGD (2,017 x 468). The current pumping capacity for 

Zone B is 0.79 MGD, therefore, the existing Zone B units are using 118% of the total pumping 

capacity of Zone B (0.94 MGD÷0.79 MGD). The total Zone B capacity units are then equal to 396 



 

                                                                                                              Page 13 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

(468÷1.18), which is 72 units less than the existing amount of 468 units; therefore, Zone B requires 

additional pumping capacity to accommodate the additional 72 units. The amount of pumping 

capacity required is equal to 100 gpm (72 CU x 2,017 gal/CU/Day ÷ 1,440 min/day). The 

additional pumping capacity can be achieved by a 20 HP pump. Using the current cost of 

$3,869/HP for Zone B, this additional 20 HP will cost $77,380 and will be added to the Zone B 

total pumping costs.  

 

The current demand on Zone C is 0.036 MGD (2,017 x 18). The current pumping capacity for 

Zone C is 0.43 MGD, therefore, the existing Zone C units are using 8.3% of the total pumping 

capacity of Zone C (0.036MGD÷0.43MGD). The total Zone C capacity units are then equal to 216 

(18÷0.083). 

 

ZONES 
TOTAL CAPACITY UNITS 

WITHIN ZONE 
TOTAL CAPACITY UNITS 

SERVED PER ZONE
 

BASE  33,719 

 

38,031 

A  3,826 4,294  

B  468 684 

C  216 216 

TOTAL 38,031  

  

 

Facility costs per zone were determined by analyzing facility cost valuation from Agency Annual 

Operating Statistics Reports, cost estimates prepared in conjunction with the currently proposed 

budget and rate study, and by assessing the current facilities inventory by zone using the 2008 

General Plan Update.  The facilities cost valuation per capacity unit was determined from the total 

number of capacity units and the facilities costs per zone. 

 

The proposed Backup Facility Charge consists of a Base-Zone Charge and successively higher 

tiered charges for each pumped zone supplied from the Base-Zone and any additional zone 

supplying water to a higher zone.  The A-Zone receives all of its water supply from facilities in 

the Base-Zone, the B-Zone receives all of its water supply from facilities in the A-Zone, and the 

C-Zone receives all of its water supply from facilities in the B-Zone.  Water is booster-pumped 

through each successive zone to get to its final destination. 



 

                                                                                                              Page 14 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 

The Base Zone charge is composed of costs per capacity unit for production (wells and surface 

water supply), storage, pressure boosting, treatment and transmission facilities assignable to Base-

Zone service. 

 

PUMPING/WATER PRODUCTION COST 

 

In order to calculate the cost of pumping water per capacity unit we first determine the cost of 

those facilities from approved capital improvement budgets.  The ratio of plant cost to horsepower 

is determined. 

 

DESCRIPTION 

YEAR 
CONSTRUCTED

PUMPING PLANT 
HORSEPOWER

PUMPING PLANT 
COST*

 

Well 39 

 

2010 

 

450 HP Pumping Plant 

 

$1,320,156.59 

Well 40 2009 450 HP Pumping Plant $1,498,356.82 

Well 41  2006  450 HP Pumping Plant  $1,561,858.76 

Well 42  2006  200 HP Pumping Plant  $1,175,156.15 

TOTAL    1,550 HP  $5,555,528.32 

* Current Capital Improvement Budget Amounts for Pumping Plants. 

 

The most current pumping plant estimated costs are used to determine the ratio of pumping plant 

cost to unit of horsepower from the table above.  The unit cost of pumping per horsepower is 

$5,555,528.32/1,550 hp= $3,584/hp.  By applying this ratio to each active pumping plant the cost 

of each plant and the entire system pumping cost is determined by zone. 

Similarly, the cost of pressure boosting facilities is determined. 

 

DESCRIPTION 

YEAR 
CONSTRUCTED

BOOSTER PLANT 
HORSEPOWER

BOOSTER PLANT 
COST*

 
Zone 1240 Booster 

 
2016 

 

80 HP Booster Plant 

 

$950,000 

Janis Tuscany 
Booster Upgrades 

2016 
225 HP Booster 
Pumping Plant

$230,000 

TOTAL    305 HP  $1,180,000 

* Actual project costs, unadjusted for present value. 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 15 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

The most current pumping plant costs are used to determine the ratio of booster pumping plant 

cost to unit of horsepower from the table above.  The unit cost of booster pumping per horsepower 

is $1,180,000/305 hp= $3,869/hp.  By applying this ratio to each active pumping plant the cost of 

each plant and the entire system booster pumping cost is determined by zone.  However, when 

available the actual cost of the plant is used below in lieu of the unit costs. 

 

BASE-ZONE PUMPING COSTS 

WELL/BOOSTER 
BASE ZONES  DESCRIPTION

PLANT 
HORSEPOWER 

ZONE PUMPING 
COST ($3,584/HP)

Palm Springs  Well Pumping Plants  7,670  $27,489,280 

Chino  Well Pumping Plants  1,100  $3,942,400 

Chino  Booster Pumping Plants  475  $1,837,775* 

East  Well Pumping Plants  2,750  $9,856,000 

TOTAL      $43,125,455 

*$3,869/HP Unit Cost of Booster Pumping Per Horsepower. 

 

A-ZONE PUMPING COSTS 

WELL/BOOSTER 
A-ZONE  DESCRIPTION

PLANT 
HORSEPOWER 

ZONE PUMPING 
COST ($3,869/HP)

Andreas Hills  Acanto Booster  300  $1,160,700 

Janis Tuscany  Janis Tuscany Booster  150  $580,350 

Terrace  Terrace Booster  45  $174,105 

Palm Oasis  Well 17  Pumping Plant  150  $537,600* 

Palm Oasis Well 17 Booster 80 $309,520 

TOTAL      $2,762,275 

*$3,584/HP Unit Cost of Well Pumping Per Horsepower. 

 

B-ZONE PUMPING COSTS 

WELL/BOOSTER 
B-ZONE  DESCRIPTION

PLANT 
HORSEPOWER 

ZONE PUMPING 
COST ($3,869/HP)

Lower Southridge  Araby Booster  50  $193,450 

Foothill  Foothill Booster  60  $232,140 

Chino West Zone 1240 Booster 50 $193,450 

Additional  Capacity Needs 20 $77,380 

TOTAL      $696,420 



 

                                                                                                              Page 16 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 

C-ZONE PUMPING COSTS 

WELL/BOOSTER 
C-ZONE  DESCRIPTION

PLANT 
HORSEPOWER 

ZONE PUMPING 
COST (ACTUAL)

Upper Southridge  Southridge-2 
Booster

90  *$260,477 

TOTAL      $260,477 

*Actual cost of contract ($2,894/HP Unit Cost) 

 

PUMPING COST PER ZONE SUMMARY 

 

ZONE 

PUMPING 
COSTS 

WITHIN 
ZONE 

CAPACITY 
UNITS 

SERVED BY 
ZONE

CAPACITY 
UNIT COSTS  

WITHIN 
ZONE

CUMULATIVE 
CAPACITY UNIT 
PUMPING COST 

PER ZONE

BASE  $43,125,455  38,031  $1,133  $1,133 

A  $2,762,275  4,294  $643  $1,776 

B  $696,420  684  $1,018 $2,794 

C  $260,477  216  $1,205  $3,999 

 

The cumulative capacity unit pumping cost in the Base-Zone is the cost of pumping in the base 

zone divided by the total system capacity unit because the entire system including the upper zones 

benefit from the pumping done in the Base-Zone.  This unit cost is passed onto all zones.  The 

cumulative cost pumping in the elevated Zones is the accumulated cost from each zone the water 

was pumped through. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 17 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

WATER TREATMENT COSTS 

 

In order to calculate the cost of water treatment per capacity unit we first determine the cost of 

those facilities from actual project costs.  Only water in the Base-Zone is treated.  However, this 

water is used in the Base-Zone and all elevated zones. 

 

FOREBAY TREATMENT 
 

DESCRIPTION 

YEAR 
CONSTRUCTED *FOREBAY COST

Well 14 Forebay  1993  $376,750 

Well 16 Forebay  1993  $376,750 

TOTAL    $753,500 

*Based on $2.75/gallon input value. 

 

The cost of forebay treatment per capacity unit is therefore, $753,500/38,031 C.U.=$20/C.U. 

 

UV TREATMENT 
 

DESCRIPTION 

YEAR 
CONSTRUCTED *FOREBAY COST

UV Treatment (Snow Creek/Falls Creek)  2014  $317,142 

TOTAL    $317,142 

*Actual project costs. 

 

The cost of UV treatment per capacity unit is therefore, $317,142/38,031 C.U.=$8/C.U. 

 

CHLORINE INJECTION TREATMENT 
 

DESCRIPTION 

NUMBER OF 
ACTIVE SITES

AVG. COST 
PER SITE

ZONE PUMPING
COST (ACTUAL) 

Chlorine storage building and 
pad, injection vault 

9  $30,440  $273,960 

TOTAL      $273,960 

*Based on average construction cost per site to install chlorine injection facilities. 

The cost of chlorine injection treatment per capacity unit is therefore, $273,960/38,031 
C.U.=$7/C.U. 
 
 



 

                                                                                                              Page 18 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

TREATMENT COST PER ZONE SUMMARY 
 

ZONE 

FOREBAY 
TREATMENT 

COST 
PER ZONE 

UV 
TREATMENT 

COST PER 
ZONE

CHLORINE 
INJECTION 

TREATMENT 
COST PER ZONE 

TOTAL 
TREATMENT 

COST PER 
ZONE 

BASE   $20 $8  $7 $35 

A  $20 $8  $7 $35 

B  $20 $8  $7 $35 

C  $20 $8  $7 $35 

 

SURFACE WATER (STREAM) COSTS 

 
In order to calculate the cost of surface water per capacity unit we first determine the cost of those 

facilities from actual project costs.  Surface water is transmitted from the diversions into the Base-

Zones where it is transmitted to all elevated zones. 

 

DESCRIPTION 

YEAR 
CONSTRUCTED

*SURFACE WATER 
FACILITY COST

Snow Creek Diversion  1990  $2,000,000 

Falls Creek Diversion  1990  $1,300,000 

Chino North Diversion  1991  $458,000 

TOTAL    $3,758,000 

* Actual project costs, unadjusted for present value. 

The cost of treatment per capacity unit is therefore, $3,758,000/38,031 C.U.=$98/C.U. 

 

The surface water capacity unit cost per zone is as follows: 

 

ZONE 

COST OF TREATMENT 
PER CAPACITY UNIT

BASE ZONE  $98 

A-ZONE  $98 

B-ZONE  $98 

C-ZONE  $98 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 19 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

WATER STORAGE COSTS 

  

In order to calculate the cost of water storage per capacity unit we first determine the cost of those 

facilities from actual project costs and approved capital improvement budgets.  The ratio of storage 

cost to volume is determined. 

 

DESCRIPTION 

YEAR 
CONSTRUCTED

RESERVOIR 
STORAGE CAPACITY RESERVOIR COST*

Tahquitz 
Reservoir II 

2004  5,000,000 gallons  $2,299,785** 

Zone 1060  2016  500,000 gallons  $1,544,800* 

TOTAL    5,500,000 gallons  $3,844,585 

*Revised Budget Amount for project. 

** Actual project costs, unadjusted for present value. 

 

The most current water storage estimated costs are used to determine the ratio of water storage 

cost to unit of storage volume from the table above.  The unit cost of water storage per gallon is 

$3,844,585/5,500,000 GAL= $0.70/GAL.  By applying this ratio to each water storage reservoir, 

the cost of each reservoir and the entire system water storage costs are determined by zone. 

 

FUTURE STORAGE CAPACITY REQUIREMENTS  

 

The General Plan requires that the Agency have 18 hours ADD emergency storage, along with fire 

flow and equalization storage during energy Time of Use (T.O.U.) periods. The 18 hour ADD 

during T.O.U periods is 28 MG. The fire flow requirement for the system is 6.48 MG and the 

equalization, or operational storage is 40% of the MDD and is therefore equal to 24.1 MG. Adding 

all of these components equates to 58.58 MG of storage. The current storage capacity for the 

system is 58.85 MG, therefore, additional storage must be constructed. 

 

The existing pumping capacity of the system will accommodate an additional 8,138 capacity units 

(38,031 – 29,893). These additional units will add 16.4 MGD to the MDD. This additional demand 

will increase the storage requirement to 73 MG, requiring 14 MG of additional storage (73-58.85). 

The cost for the additional storage will be $9,800,000 ($0.70/gal x 14 MG). This additional storage 

cost will be added to the Base Zone. 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 20 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 

 

BASE-ZONE WATER STORAGE COSTS 

DESCRIPTION 

WATER STORAGE 
CAPACITY (GAL.)

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT STORAGE 

($/GAL.)
ZONE STORAGE 

COST

Palm Springs Main  34,650,000  0.70  $24,255,000 

Palm Springs Chino  7,300,000  0.70  $5,110,000 

Palm Springs East 
 

10,000,000  0.70  $7,000,000 

Additional Storage 14,000,000 0.70  $9,800,000 

TOTAL      $46,165,000 

 

 

A-ZONE WATER STORAGE COSTS 

DESCRIPTION 

WATER STORAGE 
CAPACITY (GAL.)

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT STORAGE 

($/GAL.)
ZONE STORAGE 

COST

Andreas Hills  3,000,000  0.70  $2,100,000 

Janis Tuscany  0.00  0.70  $0.00 

Terrace  725,000  0.70  $507,500 

Palm Oasis  2,050,000  0.70  $1,435,000 

Chino West 500,000 3.00* $1,500,000* 

TOTAL      $5,542,500 

*Actual project costs. 

 

 

 

B-ZONE WATER STORAGE COSTS 

DESCRIPTION 

WATER STORAGE 
CAPACITY (GAL.)

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT STORAGE 

($/GAL.)
ZONE STORAGE 

COST

Lower Southridge 400,000  0.70  $280,000 

Foothill  600,000  0.70  $420,000 

TOTAL      $700,000 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 21 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 

 

 

C-ZONE WATER STORAGE COSTS 

DESCRIPTION 

WATER STORAGE 
CAPACITY (GAL.)

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT STORAGE 

($/GAL.)
ZONE STORAGE 

COST

Upper Southridge 0.00  0.70  $0.00 

TOTAL      $0.00 

 

STORAGE COST  PER ZONE SUMMARY 
 

ZONE 

STORAGE 
COSTS 

WITHIN 
ZONE 

CAPACITY 
UNITS 

SERVED BY 
ZONE

CAPACITY 
UNIT COSTS  

WITHIN 
ZONE

CUMULATIVE 
CAPACITY UNIT 

STORAGE 
COST PER ZONE

BASE   $46,165,000  38,031  $1,213  $1,213 

A-ZONE  $5,542,500  4,294  $1,290  $2,503 

B-ZONE  $700,000  684  $1,023  $3,526 

C-ZONE  $0.00  216  $0.00  $3,526 

 

The cumulative capacity unit storage cost in the Base-Zone is the cost of storage in the Base-Zone 

divided by the total system capacity unit because the entire system including the upper zones 

benefit from the storage in the Base-Zone.  This unit cost is passed onto all zones.  The cumulative 

cost storage in the elevated zones is the accumulated cost from each zone the water was stored in, 

and then pumped out from. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 22 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 

 

WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

 

Historically, the Agency has calculated the cost of water transmission mains per capacity unit by 

determining the cost of those facilities from actual project costs and approved capital improvement 

budgets.  The ratio of cost per lineal foot to diameter is determined. 

 

DESCRIPTION 

YEAR 
CONSTRUCTED

PIPELINE 
LENGTH 

(L.F.)
*PIPELINE 

COST 

PIPELINE 
UNIT COST 

($/L.F.)

12”Alejo/Tamarisk/ 

Indian Canyon

2012/2014/2015  4,958  $1,290,176  $260/L.F. 

14”  - - - - 

15”  - - - - 

16” Sunny Dunes  2013 1,100 $301,462 $274/L.F. 

18”  - - - - 

20” E. Well Field  - - - - 

24” E. Well Field  - - - - 

26”  - - - - 

30” N. Well Field  - - - - 

36” Avenida Caballeros  2014/2015 2,659 $2,509,219 $944/L.F. 

42”  - - - - 

* Actual project cost, unadjusted for present value. 

 

Due to the lack of current data available for the varying sizes of transmission mains in our system, 

the Agency has opted to utilize a “unit construction cost for pipelines” equation used by Eastern 

Municipal Water District (EMWD) in their 2015 rate study (study conducted by Kennedy/Jenks 

Consultants). Said equation assumes that unit cost ($/linear foot) = Diameter (inch) x 40.47 x 

[Diameter (inch) ^-0.309]. Utilization of said equation allows the Agency to determine uniform unit 

construction estimates for all sizes of transmission mains in our system. 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 23 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 

*ESTIMATED WATER TRANSMISSION 
MAIN UNIT CONSTRUCTION COSTS
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN DIAMETER 
(INCHES)

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN LENGTH 

($/L.F.)
12”  225 

14”  250 

15”  265 

16”  275 

18”  300 

20”  320 

24”  365 

26”  385 

30”  425 

36” 480 

42” 535 

  

*Based on the following EMWD assumption: cost $/L.F. = Diameter (inch) x 40.47 x [Diameter (inch) ^-0.309]. 

 

The most current water transmission main estimated costs are used to determine the ratio of water 

main cost to diameter as shown in the table on the previous page.  By applying these ratios to 

system transmission mains, the cost of all size mains for the entire system is determined by zone. 

 

FUTURE TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

 

It is anticipated that the additional storage facilities will require approximately 1 mile of new 24” 

diameter transmission main. The cost of future transmission main is equal to $365/L.F. x 5,280 

L.F. = $1,927,000, to be added to the Base Zone total. 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 24 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 

BASE-ZONE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN DIAMETER 

(INCHES) 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN LENGTH 

(L.F.)

UNIT COST PER 
UNIT LENGTH 

($/L.F.)

ZONE 
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN COST
12”   *222,839  225  $50,138,775 

14”  2,430  250  $607,500 

15”  940  265  $249,100 

16”  34,359  275  $9,448,725 

18”  5,252  300  $1,575,600 

20”  24,228  320  $7,752,960 

24”  99,712  365  $36,394,880 

24” future 5,280 365 $1,927,000 

26”  2,620 385 $1,008,700 

30” 57,433 425 $24,409,025 

36” 30,618 480 $14,696,640 

42” 70 535 $37,450 

TOTAL   $148,246,355 

*Approximately 60% of all 12” mains in the system are transmission mains with the remaining 40% being distribution 
mains. Therefore, only 60% of the total 12” mains are included in the above table. 
 

A-ZONE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

DIAMETER 
(INCHES)

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

LENGTH 
(L.F.)

UNIT 
COST 

PER UNIT 
LENGTH 

($/L.F.) 

ZONE 
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN COST
Andreas Hills  12”  *5,323  225  $1,197,675 

Andreas Hills  16”  6,832  275  $1,878,800 

Janis Tuscany  12”  4,626  225  $1,040,850 

Janis Tuscany  16”  3,782  275  $1,040,050 

Janis Tuscany  24” 1,450 365 $529,250 

Terrace  12” *2,526 225 $568,350 

Palm Oasis 12” *10,280 225 $2,313,000 

Palm Oasis 16” 4,200 275 $1,155,000 

TOTAL        $9,722,975 

*Approximately 60% of all 12” mains in the system are transmission mains with the remaining 40% being distribution 
mains. Therefore, only 60% of the total 12” mains are included in the above table. 



 

                                                                                                              Page 25 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 
B-ZONE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

DIAMETER 
(INCHES)

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN LENGTH 

(L.F.)

UNIT 
COST 

PER UNIT 
LENGTH 

($/L.F.) 

ZONE 
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN COST

Foothill  *12”  2,690  225  $605,250 

Chino West *12” 2,762 225 $621,450 

TOTAL        $1,226,700 

*Approximately 60% of all 12” mains in the system are transmission mains with the remaining 40% being distribution 
mains. Therefore, only 60% of the total 12” mains are included in the above table. 
 
 

C-ZONE WATER TRANSMISSION MAIN COSTS 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN 

DIAMETER 
(INCHES)

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN LENGTH 

(L.F.)

UNIT 
COST PER 

UNIT 
LENGTH 

($/L.F.)

ZONE 
TRANSMISSION 

MAIN COST

None  0  0  $0  $0 

TOTAL        $0 

 

TRANSMISSION MAIN COST PER ZONE SUMMARY 

ZONE 

TRANSMISSION 
MAIN COSTS 

WITHIN ZONE 

CAPACITY 
UNITS 

SERVED BY 
ZONE

CAPACITY 
UNIT COSTS  

WITHIN 
ZONE

CUMULATIVE 
CAPACITY UNIT 
STORAGE COST 

PER ZONE

Base  $148,246,355  38,031  $3,898  $3,898 

A-Zone  $9,722,975  4,294  $2,264  $6,162 

B-Zone  $1,226,700  684  $1,793  $7,955 

C-Zone  $0  216  $0  $7,955 

 

The cumulative capacity unit water transmission main cost in the Base-Zone is the cost of water 

transmission in the Base-Zone divided by the total system capacity unit because the entire system 

including the upper zones benefit from water transmission in the Base-Zone.  This unit cost is 

passed onto all zones.  The cumulative cost water transmission in the elevated zones is the 

accumulated cost from each zone the water was transmitted to and then pumped out from that 

zone. 

 



 

                                                                                                              Page 26 of 26                                                                    Resolution No. 1167                 

 

 

The cost of a 1-inch service in each of the Agency zones are comprised of the cumulative capacity 

unit costs for water production (wells), pressure boosting (boosters), treatment, storage and 

transmission facilities. 

COST PER ZONE SUMMARY 

ZONES 
PUMPING  

COST 
TREATMENT 

 COST
STORAGE 

 COST
TRANSMISSION 

 COST

SURFACE 
WATER 
 COST 

TOTAL 
CAPACITY 
UNIT COST

BASE $1,133  $35  $1,213  $3,898  $98  $6,377 

A  $1,776  $35  $2,503 $6,162 $98  $10,574

B  $2,794  $35  $3,526 $7,955 $98  $14,408

C  $3,999  $35  $3,526 $7,955 $98  $15,613

 

In order to determine the capacity unit cost for each meter size the AWWA meter factors are used.  

The table below shows the capacity unit charge (Backup Facility Charge) per meter size. 

 

METER SIZE 
AWWA METER 

FACTOR BASE-ZONE A-ZONE B-ZONE C-ZONE 

3/4 X 5/8 0.4 $2,550 $4,229 $5,763 $6,245 

1 1.0 $6,377 $10,574 $14,408 $15,613 

1.5 2.0 $12,754 $21,148 $28,816 $31,226 

2 3.2 $20,406 $33,836 $46,105 $49,961 

 

FINAL BACKUP FACILITY CHARGE COST SUMMARY 

METER SIZE 
AWWA METER 

FACTOR BASE-ZONE A-ZONE B-ZONE C-ZONE 

3/4 X 5/8 0.4 $2,550 $4,225 $5,760 $6,245 

1 1.0 $6,375 $10,570 $14,405 $15,610 

1.5 2.0 $12,750 $21,145 $28,815 $31,225 

2 3.2 $20,405 $33,835 $46,105 $49,960 

 



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1168 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 
DIRECTORS OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 

ESTABLISHING RATES, FEES AND CHARGES FOR 
RECYCLED WATER SERVICE 

 
 
 WHEREAS, by previous action this Board has approved various rates, fees and charges 

for recycled water service, as provided by law; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is appropriate at this time to revise the Agency’s charges for recycled water 

service and for other related services, while restating all other rates, fees and charges which remain 

unchanged; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in December 2016 this Board conducted a majority protest hearing for the 

proposed revision of the Agency’s monthly charges for recycled water service over the next 

subsequent five years, as required by law, and has determined that a majority protest does not exist;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of Desert Water 

Agency as follows: 

 

1. Backup Facility Charges.  Every applicant for recycled water service shall, in 

addition to other charges and as a condition of receiving such service, pay a Backup 

Facility Charge based on the size of the applicant’s meter connection as follows: 

 

Meter Size                  Charge 

2 inch  $     8,300.00 

4 inch  33,300.00 

6 inch  75,000.00 

8 inch  125,000.00  

10 inch  166,700.00 

12 inch  250,000.00 



 

 

Resolution No. 1168
- 2 -

2. Backup Facility Charges for Increased Service.  Backup Facility Charges for 

recycled water service shall be imposed for all existing recycled water service 

connections for which increased capacity is requested and larger meters are 

installed. The charges shall apply to the difference in service capacity between (a) 

the new meter and (b) the meter which is being replaced. 

 

3. Accounting of Funds.  All revenues collected from Backup Facility Charges for 

recycled water service shall be deposited with other such fees in a separate capital 

facilities account or fund in a manner to avoid any commingling of the charges 

with other revenues and funds of the Agency, except for temporary investments, 

and such revenues may be expended solely for the purpose for which the Backup 

Facility Charges are collected.  Any interest income earned by moneys in said 

account or fund shall also be deposited in that account or fund and may be 

expended only for the purpose for which the Backup Facility Charges are imposed.  

The Agency shall make findings once each fiscal year with respect to any portion 

of the Backup Facility Charges remaining unexpended or uncommitted in the 

account five or more years after deposit of the charges.  The findings shall identify 

the purpose to which the Backup Facility Charges are to be put, and will 

demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the charges and the purpose for 

which the charges are imposed. 

 

4. Meter Installation Charge.  The charge for meter installation for recycled water 

service shall be the actual cost plus any applicable overhead charges. 

 

5. Flow Control Valve Charge.  The charge for installation of a flow control valve for 

any recycled water service connection shall be the actual cost of the device, its 

installation and any applicable overhead charges. 

 

6. Service Connection Charge. The charge for the recycled water service connection 

shall be the actual cost of connection to an existing main plus any applicable 

overhead charges. 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Resolution No. 1168
- 3 -

7. Meter Test Deposit.  The required deposit for testing a recycled water service meter 

shall vary according to the size of the meter, as follows: 

 
Meter Size                  Charge 

5/8 x 3/4 to 2 inch  $  70.00 

3 inch or larger   $140.00 

 

8. Plan Check Fees.  Plan check fees for Agency-installed recycled water facilities 

with no mains shall be $140.  For developer-installed facilities with main, the fees 

shall be $140 plus $0.10 per lineal foot of main installed. 

 

9. Design Review Fees.  Fees charged for design review for recycled water facilities 

shall be as follows: 

 

 a.)  Agency Engineering Department  $140 per hour 

  b.)  Engineering Consultants   Actual cost plus 15% 

  c.)  Legal Consultants    Actual cost plus 15% 

 

10. Restoration of Service.  For restoring recycled water service during Agency’s 

normal working hours, on normal working days, the charge shall be $140.  After 

normal working hours, or on days other than normal working days, the charge shall 

be $280. 

 

11. Metered Service Charges.  Service charges for recycled water service shall include 

a monthly service charge and a quantitative charge as follows: 

 

  a.)  Monthly Service Charge. 

 
Meter Size                   Charge 

2 inch   $15.00 

3 inch   $26.97 

4 inch   $40.43 

   
 
 
 



 

 

Resolution No. 1168
- 4 -

  a.)  Monthly Service Charge.  (Cont.) 
 

Meter Size                        Charge 

6 inch  $77.83 

8 inch  $122.71 

10 inch  $317.19 

12 inch  $399.47 

 

  b.)  Quantitative Charge. The base rate charge for all metered and unmetered  

         recycled water used for all purposes shall be $0.79 per 100 cubic feet. 

 

12. Monthly Flow Control Valve Charges (8” – 12”).  A charge of $35.00 per flow 

control valve per month will be added to the billing for testing and annual 

maintenance. 

 

13. Deposit to Establish Credit.  The minimum deposit amount to establish credit will 

be two (2) times the average monthly bill.  If this cannot be determined, the 

minimum deposit shall be charged as follows: 

 
 Meter Size                   Deposit 

5/8 x 3/4 inch  $  100.00 

1 inch  100.00 

1-1/2 inch  150.00 

2 inch  200.00 

3 inch  250.00 

4 inch  300.00 

6 inch  350.00 

8 inch  400.00 

10 inch  450.00 

12 inch  500.00 

 

 

 

 



 

 

Resolution No. 1168
- 5 -

 

14. Development Review.  A charge for Agency provided Administrative Services 

shall be collected at the rate of $140 for each of the following: 

 
a) Will Serve Letter 

b) Development Bond Amount Letter 

c) Response to Initial Study 

 

15. Effective Date.  The charges set forth herein shall become effective July 1, 2017, 

and as of that date shall replace the charges set forth in Resolution No. 1146. 

 

 ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2017. 

 

 

 

 

       ______________________________ 
       James Cioffi, President 
       Board of Directors 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 



 

 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 1169 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF 

DIRECTORS OF DESERT WATER AGENCY 
 ESTABLISHING RATES, FEES AND CHARGES  

FOR SEWER SERVICE 
 
 
 WHEREAS, by previous action this Board has approved various rates, fees and charges 

for sewer service, as provided by law; and 

 

 WHEREAS, it is appropriate at this time to revise the Agency’s monthly charge for sewer 

service, while restating all other rates, fees and charges which remain unchanged; and 

 

 WHEREAS, on December 15, 2016, this Board conducted a majority protest hearing for 

the proposed revision of the Agency’s monthly charge for sewer service, over the next subsequent 

five years, as required by law, and has determined that a majority protest does not exist; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in addition to the Agency’s charges for sewer services, charges imposed by 

Coachella Valley Water District (CVWD) must also be collected by the Agency, as CVWD’s 

collection agent, for sewer service and treatment in Cathedral City; and 

 

 WHEREAS, in addition to the charges collected for CVWD in the Cathedral City area, 

the Agency has also entered into an agreement with the City of Palm Springs (City) to provide 

wastewater treatment and disposal service to the Agency’s customers receiving sewage collection 

service from the Agency in the Dream Homes and Palm Oasis areas; and 

 

 WHEREAS, said agreement requires the Agency to collect from those customers the 

City’s sewer capacity and customer service charges for wastewater treatment and disposal 

provided by the City, in addition to collecting the Agency’s charges for sewer services; and 

 

 



 

                                                                                                                                     Page 2 of 6                                                                                                                              Resolution No. 1169   

 WHEREAS, this resolution reflects the current City and CVWD rates for sewage 

treatment and disposal services, which are subject to change by those entities, while adjusting the 

Agency’s monthly sewer service charge and restating other Agency charges already in effect;   

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of Directors of Desert Water Agency 

that the rates, fees and charges assessed by the Agency for sewer services by the Agency shall be, 

and that those currently charged by CVWD and the City for sewer service within the Agency’s 

sewer service areas are, as follows: 

 

 1. Capacity Charges 

 

 CVWD Treatment 
Cathedral City 
(Effective 07/01/14) 

City Treatment 
Palm  Oasis / Dream Homes 
(Effective 07/01/15) 

A.)  Residential 
      (including single family,       
      apartments, condos and        
      mobile home park spaces 
     
     (1 EDU=1 Unit or Space) 
 

1. Total Charge:   
    $5,240.00 per EDU 
     
     a. $4,190.00/EDU (CVWD) 
     b. $1,050.00/EDU (DWA) 

2. Charge: $ 3,000.00/Unit/Space 
      
    a. $3,000.00/Unit/Space (CPS) 
 
 
     

B.)  Commercial, Industrial,       
      Institutional 

1. Total Charge:   
     $5,240.00 per EDU 
 
     a  $4,190.00/EDU (CVWD) 
     b. $1,050.00/EDU (DWA) 
 

2. Charge: $306.00/FU  
     (Fixture Unit) 
     
      a. $306.00/FU (CPS) 
  
 

C.)  Hotel /Motel 
       
       (1/2 EDU = 1 Room) 

1. Total Charge:   
     $5,240.00 per EDU 
      
     a. $4,190.00/EDU (CVWD 
     b. $1,050.00/EDU (DWA) 

2. Charge: $1,500.00/Room  
     (with kitchen) 
      
     a. $1,500.00/Room (CPS) 
   
3. Charge:  $1,290.00/Room  
    (without kitchen) 
      
     a. $1,290.00/Room (CPS) 
 

D.)  R.V. Park 
       
       (1/2 EDU = 1Space) 

1. Total Charge:   
     $5,240.00 per EDU 
       
     a. $4,190.00/EDU (CVWD) 
     b  $1,050.00/EDU (DWA) 
 

2. Charge:  $2,340.00/Space 
      
     a. $2,340.00/Space (CPS) 
   

                               
 
 
                  

2. Accounting of Funds.  All revenues collected from capacity charges shall be deposited with 

other such fees in a separate capital facilities account or fund in a manner to avoid any 

commingling of the charges with other revenues and funds of the Agency, except for the 

temporary investments, and such revenues may be expended solely for the purpose for 



 

                                                                                                                                     Page 3 of 6                                                                                                                              Resolution No. 1169   

which the capacity charges are collected.  Any interest income earned by moneys in said 

account or fund shall also be deposited in that account or fund and may be expended only 

for the purpose for which the capacity charges are imposed.  The Agency shall make 

findings once each fiscal year with respect to any portion of the capacity charges remaining 

unexpended or uncommitted in the account five or more years after deposit of the charges.  

The findings shall identify the purpose to which the capacity charges are to be put, and will 

demonstrate a reasonable relationship between the charges and the purpose for which the 

charges were imposed. 
 

3. Connection Fee. 
 

 a.) Single Family Residence - $1,700 

 

 b.) Other than Single Family Residence: 

 A charge for all new connections based on the front footage served thereby shall be 

levied and collected at the rate of $70 per lineal foot of frontage, or the actual rate 

in accordance with a valid main extension refund agreement, whichever is greater. 

 

4. Plan Check Fees. 

 

 a.) Existing Main Available (lateral installation only) 

  1) Single Family Residence (1-4" Lateral) - no fee 

  2) Single Family Residence (other than above) and all other types of   

   development - $140 
 

b.) The Plan Check fee for Agency-installed sewer facilities with no mains shall be 

$140.  For developer-installed facilities with mains, the fee shall be $140 plus 

$0.10 per lineal foot of main installed. 
 

5. Design Review Fees. 
 

 a.) Desert Water Agency Engineering Department - $140/Hour 

 b.) Engineering Consultants - Actual Cost plus 15% 

 c.) Legal Consultants - Actual Cost plus 15% 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                                                     Page 4 of 6                                                                                                                              Resolution No. 1169   

6. Monthly Service Charges 

 
CVWD  Treatment 
Cathedral City 
(Effective 07/01/17) 

City Treatment 
Palm Oasis / Dream Homes 
(Effective 07/01/17) 

A.  Residential   
Single Family, Condo 
 
(1 EDU = 1 Unit) 
 
 

1.  Total Charge:   $35.13/EDU 
      
     a.  $29.58/EDU (CVWD) 
     b.  $5.55/EDU (DWA) 

 Rate (1) 

2.  Total Charge:  $26.55/Unit 
      
     a.  $21.00/Unit (CPS) 
     b.  $5.55/Unit (DWA) 
 
Rate (5) 
 

Mobile Home Park 
 
(1 EDU = 1 Space) 
 
 

1.  Total Charge:  $35.13/EDU 
     
     a.  $29.58/EDU (CVWD) 
     b.  $5.55/EDU (DWA) 
 
 

Rate (1) 

2.  Total Charge: $26.55/Space  
      plus $1.98/FU 
      
     a.  $21.00/Space (CPS) 
     b.  $5.55/Space (DWA)  
     c.  $1.98/FU (CPS) 
 
Rate (6) 
 

Apartments 
 
(1 EDU = 1 Unit) 

1.  Total Charge:  $5.55/EDU 
     plus $1.07/100CF of water   
     consumption through any   
     meters used all or partially 
     for domestic use. 
     
     a.  $1.07/100 CF (CVWD) 
     b.  $5.55/EDU (DWA) 
         (minimum charge shall be     
          $29.58 plus $5.55/EDU) 
 
Rate (4) 

2.  Total Charge:  $26.55/Unit 
      
     a.  $21.00/Unit (CPS) 
     b.  $5.55/Unit (DWA)  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Rate (7) 
 

B.  Hotel / Motel 
 
(1/2 EDU = 1 Room) 

1.  Total Charge:  $5.55/EDU  
     plus $1.07/100 CF of water      
     consumption through any    
     meters used all or partially 
     for domestic use 
      
     a.  $1.07/100 CF (CVWD) 
     b.  $5.55/EDU (DWA) 
          (minimum charge shall be   
           $29.58 plus $5.55/EDU) 
 
Rate (4) 
 

N/A 

C.  R.V. Park 
 
(1/2 EDU = 1 Space) 

1.  Total Charge:  $5.55/EDU  
     plus $1.07/100 CF of water       
     consumption through any        
     meters used all or partially  
     for domestic use 
     
     a.  $1.07/100 CF (CVWD) 
     b.  $5.55/EDU (DWA) 
         (minimum charge shall be 
         $29.58  plus $5.55/EDU) 
 
Rate (4)  

N/A 

  



 

                                                                                                                                     Page 5 of 6                                                                                                                              Resolution No. 1169   

6. Monthly Service Charges (Cont.) 
 

CVWD  Treatment 
Cathedral City 
(Effective 07/01/17) 

City Treatment 
Palm Oasis / Dream Homes 
(Effective 07/01/17) 

D.  Commercial,       
      Industrial, or 
      Institutional 
      (0ther than schools)                

1.  Total Charge:  $5.55/EDU  
      plus $1.07/100 CF of water   
      consumption through any  
      meters used all or partially  
      for domestic use 
     
      a.  $1.07/100 CF (CVWD) 
      b.  $5.55/EDU (DWA) 
          (minimum charge shall be    
           $29.58 plus $5.55/EDU) 
 
Rate (4) 

2.  Total Charge:  $1.98/FU 
     (Minimum $21.00) 
      plus $5.55/EDU 
       
       a.  $1.98/FU (CPS) 
           (minimum $21.00) 
       b. $5.55/EDU  (DWA) 
 
 
 
 
Rate (8) 
 

E. Schools and Colleges 
     Kindergarten      
     Elementary 
     Schools & Colleges 

1. Total Charge:  $5.55/EDU  
     plus $0.12/Student 
      
     a.  $0.12/Student (CVWD) 
     b.  $5.55/EDU (DWA) 
 
Rate (3) 

2.  (See Commercial) 
 
 
 
 
Rate (8) 
 

     All Other Schools 

 

 

 

1.  Total Charge:  $5.55/EDU  
     plus $0.17/Student 
     
     a.  $0.17/Student (CVWD) 
     b.  $5.55/EDU (DWA) 
 
Rate (2) 
 

N/A 
 
 
 
 
 

*The number of students to be used in calculating the monthly sewer charges shall be based on the previous 
year’s average monthly attendance. 

F. Interceptor/Separator 
    Surcharge 

           $14.00 
 
Rate (4) 

N/A 

   

7. Sewer Lateral Inspection.  The charge for inspection of all new sewer laterals 

 installed on existing mains shall be $140 per lateral. 

 

8. Development Review. A charge for Agency provided Administrative Services shall be 

 collected at the rate of $140 for each of the following: 

 

   a.) Will Serve Letter 

   b.) Development Bond Amount Letter 

   c.) Response to Initial Study 

 

 

 

 

 



 

                                                                                                                                     Page 6 of 6                                                                                                                              Resolution No. 1169   

9. Effective Date:  The charges set forth herein shall become effective July 1, 2017 and as 

of that date this Resolution shall replace Resolution No. 1145. 

 

 

 ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2017. 

 

 
  
 
       _________________________________ 
       James Cioffi, President  
       Board of Directors 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer 
Secretary-Treasurer 
 



SB/BOARD/MEMOS/KRIEGER 

7-C 
 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 20, 2017 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF FISCAL YEAR 2017/2018 OPERATING, 
 GENERAL AND WASTEWATER BUDGETS 
 
Attached for your review is the final draft of the proposed Operating, General and 
Wastewater Fund Budgets for Fiscal Year 2017/2018.  
 
The Finance Committee met on June 9, 2017 and adjustments were made to the 
General Fund Capital Expenditures and General Fund Reserves.   
 
Staff is available to answer any questions the Board may have with regard to the 
budgets, and requests adoption of the budgets for Fiscal Year 2017/2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



7-C 
 
 
 

COPIES OF THE  
FINAL DRAFT 

2017-2018 BUDGET 
ARE AVAILABLE 

FOR REVIEW 
UPON REQUEST 

 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 

June 20, 2017 



Board/Memos/Martin 

7-D 
 
 
 

STAFF REPORT  
TO  

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 20, 2017 

 
 
 
RE: REQUEST ADOPTION OF RESOLUTION NO. 1170  
 ESTABLISHING TAX RATE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2017-2018   
 
Attached for the Board’s review is a copy of Resolution No.1170 which certifies to 
the Riverside County Board of Supervisors the Desert Water Agency tax rate for 
the 2017-2018 Fiscal Year.  The taxes collected are used to meet our financial 
contractual obligations relating to the State Water Project. 
 
Resolution No. 1170 has been reviewed by our attorney, and through the adoption 
of this resolution, the Desert Water Agency Board of Directors will fix the tax rate 
of $0.10 per $100 of assessed valuation, as adopted in the 2017-2018 General 
Fund Budget (Same tax rate as 2016-2017). The resolution further directs the 
County Board of Supervisors to levy such tax rate for the 2017-2018 Fiscal Year 
on all taxable property within the Agency boundaries. 
 
Staff requests the Board adopt Resolution No. 1170 establishing the tax rate for 
the 2017-2018 Fiscal Year of $0.10 per $100 of assessed valuation.  Following 
adoption of this resolution, Staff will submit a copy to the County Board of 
Supervisors to be included on their upcoming agenda for adoption. 
 
 
  



 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 1170 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
THE DESERT WATER AGENCY DETERMINING,  

CERTIFYING, AND DIRECTING 2017-2018 LEVIES  
PURSUANT TO SECTION 27  

OF THE AGENCY ACT AS AMENDED  

 
 
  WHEREAS, Section 27 of the Agency's enabling act provides that the Board of 

Directors shall determine the amounts of money necessary to be raised by taxation during the 

fiscal year, and shall fix the rate or rates to be levied which will raise the amounts of money 

required by the Agency, and within a reasonable time previous to the time when the Board of 

Supervisors of Riverside County is required by law to fix its tax rate, the Board of Directors shall 

certify to the Board of Supervisors the rates so fixed and shall furnish a statement in writing 

containing:  (a) an estimate of the minimum amount of money required to be raised by taxation 

for the payment of principal and interest on any bonded debt of the Agency;  and (b) an estimate 

of the minimum amount of money to be raised by taxation for all other purposes of the Agency;  

and 

   

  WHEREAS, these general provisions of law have been amended in part by the 

statutes enacted in response to the passage of Proposition 13 in June, 1978, (Article XIIIA of the 

California Constitution); and 

 

  WHEREAS, Section 93(a) of the Revenue and Taxation Code now limits the 

ability of the Agency to levy ad valorem property taxes, except for that amount which is equal to 

the amount needed to make annual payments for the interest and principal on general obligation 

bonds or other indebtedness approved by the voters prior to July 1, 1978; and 

 

  WHEREAS, Section 93(b) of the Revenue and Taxation Code further provides 

that for other purposes of local government, the County shall levy an ad valorem property tax 

equal to $1.00 per $100 of assessed valuation, and the revenues from such tax are to be 

distributed to local agencies in accordance with the provisions of Sections 95 et seq. of the 

Revenue and Taxation Code; and 

 

  WHEREAS, this Agency has a contractual obligation to make annual payments  

to the State of California pursuant to its Water Supply Contract dated October 17, 1962; and  

   



Reso. 1170 
 
 
 

 

 2

  WHEREAS, such contractual obligation was approved by the voters of the State 

and existed prior to July 1, 1978 within the meaning of Article XIIIA of the California 

Constitution and Section 93(a) of the Revenue and Taxation Code; and  

 

  WHEREAS, this Agency has been advised by the Assessor of Riverside County 

that the assessed valuation of the property within the Agency for the fiscal year 2017-2018 is 

$13,969,282,756. 

 

  NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of the 

Desert Water Agency as follows: 

 

  1. The Board does hereby determine that the minimum amount necessary to 

be raised by taxation during the fiscal year 2017-2018 for payment of the contractual obligations 

to the State of California pursuant to the Water Supply Contract of the Agency, dated October 

17, 1962, is $13,969,300 and does hereby fix a tax rate of $0.10 per $100 of assessed valuation 

upon all taxable property within the Agency, which will raise such required sum. 

 

  2. The Board does hereby certify to the Board of Supervisors of Riverside 

County that for the Fiscal Year 2017-2018 it has fixed the tax rate of $0.10 per $100 of assessed 

valuation for payments due under its State Water Contract, and does hereby direct that such 

Board of Supervisors, at the time and in the manner required by law for levying of taxes as may 

be levied by the Board of Supervisors, shall levy such tax rate for the fiscal year 2017-2018 upon 

all taxable property within the Agency. 

 

  3. The determination of the amount necessary to be raised by taxation which 

is set forth in Paragraph 1 of this resolution shall constitute the statement in writing required to 

be filed with the Board of Supervisors pursuant to Section 27 of the Agency's enabling act.  The 

tax rate set herein is fixed pursuant to such Section 27, and Section 93(a) of the Revenue and 

Taxation Code, and shall be in addition to the allocation of the general tax levy distributed to this 

Agency pursuant to Section 93(b) of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

 

  4. In meeting the obligations due under its State Water Contract, the Agency 

relies first and to the extent feasible upon replenishment assessments and revenues derived from 

rates and charges made for the sale of water delivered pursuant to such contract, and other non-

tax sources of funds.  However, the Board does hereby find and determine that such revenues are 

and will be insufficient to meet the payments due under the State Water Contract during the 



Reso. 1170 
 
 
 

 

 3

fiscal year 2017-2018, and that it is necessary to levy the tax rate fixed herein in order to make 

such payments.  This tax rate does not constitute an increase or a decrease in the Agency's 

reliance upon water rates or other charges in order to make its required payments to the State. 

 

  5. A certified copy of this Resolution shall be filed with the Board of 

Supervisors of Riverside County, and the office of Auditor-Controller of Riverside County, 

forthwith. 

 

  ADOPTED this 20th day of June 2017. 

    

  
 
       ______________________________ 
       James Cioffi, President 

Board of Directors 
        
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________ 
Kristin Bloomer, Secretary-Treasurer 
Board of Directors 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



7-E 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 20, 2017 

 
RE: REQUEST AUTHORIZATION TO EXECUTE QUITCLAIM DEED 

FOR APN 687-510-002 TO CITY OF CATHEDRAL CITY   
 
 

In November 2012, the Agency received a request from the City of Cathedral City 
requesting the vacation of a series of DWA easements located within Parcel Map 36428, 
land that the City, along with three other private owners, subdivided (to include the new 
Volkswagen dealership on HWY 111). 
 
The easements were acquired by DWA from the Palm Springs Water Company for the 
purpose of maintaining water facilities that served the area. The Agency also acquired 
APN 687-510-002, a 0.03 acre parcel that at one time had a small water reservoir. The 
facilities within the easement, along with the reservoir were abandoned several years 
ago. 
 
On November 6, 2012, the Board authorized staff to Execute Quitclaim Terminating 
Easement Interest with Parcel Map 36428. This did not include APN 687-510-002.  
 
With the vacation of all of the easements to the parcel, the Agency has no legal authority 
to access the parcel and the size of the property prohibits any beneficiary use for the 
Agency. Also, within the past year, the property was occupied by a homeless individual, 
illegally storing numerous items at the site. The City requested that the Agency remove 
the individual and his belongings, however, without legal access to the property, the 
clean-up was performed by the City of Cathedral City since they have property that is 
adjacent to the parcel. 
 
When the City approached the Agency for an easement to construct a portion of the CV 
Link on Agency property, the Agency agreed to work with the City on an easement and 
in exchange asked if the City was willing to accept APN 687-510-002 through a Quitclaim 
Deed. The City agreed to receive said parcel, and has also agreed to replace the existing 
chain link fence surrounding Well 31 with a new no climb type fence, providing a more 
secure site for the Agency. 
 
Attached for Board’s review is a copy of the Quitclaim Deed along with supporting 
documentation. At this time, staff recommends Authorization to Execute Quitclaim Deed 
for APN 687-510-002 to the City of Cathedral City.  
 





















 

 

7-F 

BOARD/STAFF RPTS/STEVE 

 
      

STAFF REPORT  
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 20, 2017 

 
 
 

RE: REQUEST BOARD AUTHORIZATION FOR GENERAL MANAGER 
TO EXECUTE EASEMENT IN FAVOR OF CITY OF CATHEDRAL 
CITY 

 

 
The City of Cathedral City is seeking an easement over a portion of Desert Water 
Agency’s property to install, maintain, and use as a public pathway for pedestrians 
and bicyclists. In exchange for the easement, the City of Cathedral City has agreed 
to receive APN 687-510-002 through a Quitclaim Deed, and has also agreed to 
replace the existing chain link fence surrounding Well Site 31 with a new no climb 
style fence.  
 
Attached for the Board’s review is a copy of the proposed Agreement for Grant of 
Easement. Staff requests Board authorization for the General Manager to execute 
the easement document.    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

















8-A 

Page 1 of 2 
 

STAFF REPORT 
TO 

DESERT WATER AGENCY  
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 
JUNE 20, 2017 

 
RE: MAY 2017 WATER USE REDUCTION FIGURES 
 
Desert Water Agency and its customers achieved a 27.86% percent reduction in potable 
water production during May 2017 compared to the same month in 2013 – the baseline 
year used by the State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board) to measure 
statewide conservation achievements. Desert Water Agency’s cumulative water savings 
June 2015 through current is 24% percent. DWA reports its production to the state on a 
monthly basis.  

 
Staff is also tracking the water use compared to the threshold in the rate study regarding 
the proposed drought surcharge. The first trigger for the Board to consider action would 
be at use 10% below April 2015 – March 2016 levels. This trigger was not met this month 
and the cumulative since January is below the 10% trigger. 

DWA is asking its customers to save 10-13% compared to 2013 to help achieve long-
term sustainability. The cumulative savings beginning in June of 2016 when we put our 
10-13% target in place is 21.4%. 

Below is additional information reported to the State Board for this month.  

40

30 29

24
21

28

9.5 10

24.6

15

23

39

33

22
18.5

8

16

21

14

29

33

23.6

15

28

Ju
n

-1
5

Ju
l-

1
5

A
u

g-
1

5

Se
p

-1
5

O
ct

-1
5

N
o

v-
1

5

D
e

c-
1

5

Ja
n

-1
6

Fe
b

-1
6

M
ar

-1
6

A
p

r-
1

6

M
ay

-1
6

Ju
n

-1
6

Ju
l-

1
6

A
u

g-
1

6

Se
p

-1
6

O
ct

-1
6

N
o

v-
1

6

D
e

c-
1

6

Ja
n

-1
7

Fe
b

-1
7

M
ar

-1
7

A
p

r-
1

7

M
ay

-1
7

Savings and Targets

Percent saved Cumulative

36% 32% 10-13% 

Restrictions 



  

Page 2 of 2 
 

May 2017 water production  2,393.4 AF 

May 2013 water production   3,317.5 AF 

Percent changed in May per drought surcharge baseline (May 2015) 1.95% reduction  

Quantity of potable water delivered for all commercial, industrial, and 
institutional users for the reporting month 

761.9 AF 

The percentage of the Total Monthly Potable Water Production going 
to residential use only for the reporting month 

68.17% 

Population (inclusive of seasonal residents) 105,992 

Estimated R-GPCD  161.79 

How many public complaints of water waste or violation of 
conservation rules were received during the reporting month? 

35 

How many contacts (written/ verbal) were made with customers for 
actual/ alleged water waste or for a violation of conservation rules? 

8 

How many formal warning actions (e.g.: written notifications, warning 
letters, door hangers) were issued for water waste or for a violation 
of conservation rules? 

0 

How many penalties were issued for water waste or for a violation of 
conservation rules? 

0 

Comments: The Agency’s service area is highly seasonal making population analysis a 
complex task. The State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) analyzes data on a 
per capita basis. Historically, DWA has submitted data based on the permanent population 
of the service area; however that data does not accurately reflect water use in DWA’s 
service area which has a highly seasonal population. Based on local data, the correct 
population is higher than previously reported. The Residential Gallons Per Capita Per Day 
(R-GPCD) is being submitted using the corrected population.  

DWA has continued to receive some notifications from customers relating to time of day 
and day of week, which are no longer restricted. 

DWA would like it noted that the amount of fresh water outflow to the ocean during the 
month of May was 4,920,054 acre feet. 

Additionally, since it began recycling water Desert Water Agency has reclaimed 91,497 acre 
feet. If our recycled water production for April was taken into consideration against our 
potable production, the conservation achieved would have been several percentage points 
higher. 
 


	062017 Board Agenda
	Item 2 060617 Board Minutes
	Item 3 062017 GM Report
	Item 4A 060917 Finance Committee
	Item 4B 061417 Executive Committee
	Item 6 062017 Treasurer Rpt
	Item 7A Ordinance 66 thru 68 Late fees and shutoff staff report
	Item 7B Resolution 1167 thru 1169 proposed rates staff report
	Item 7C 062017 Adopt Budgets 2017-2018 Staff Rpt
	Item 7D Tax Rate 2017-2018 Staff report
	Item 7E Cathedral City Quitclaim Staff Report
	Item 7F City Of Cathedral City Well 31 Easement Staff Report
	Item 8A May 2017 Production Staff Report

